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Chairman’s Statement

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Tongfang
Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present to you the audited annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$2,093.7 million (2017:
HK$1,344.3 million), representing an increase of 55.8% as
compared to the previous year. The profit for the year of the
Group was HK$71.5 million (2017: HK$35.9 million). The
basic earnings per share amounted to HKO0.60 cents (2017:
basic loss per share HK0.04 cents).

The Group recorded a net profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 was primarily attributable to (i) the medical,
pharmaceutical and health business of the Group has been
expanding since the first half of 2018; (ii) the revenue and
other gain generated from the fitness business of the Group
following the Group’s acquisition of 51% of the issued
share capital in TFKT True Holdings in May 2017; and (iii) the
increase in revenue generated by the cement business of the
Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in December
2018. The Company considers stable and sustainable returns
to our shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain
the dividend policy to achieve such goal.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board would take into account
the Group’s results of operations, earnings performance,
cashflows, financial condition, future prospects, as well
as statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment of
dividends, and other factors that the Board may consider
relevant.

—Z— \FEF 3R Annual Report 2018 5
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Whilst the Board will review from time to time for
determination on proposed dividend with the above factors
taken into account, there can be no assurance that dividends
will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

OUTLOOK

Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business

With the continuous adjustment of the macroeconomic
development and the deepening reform of the medical
system in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), 2019
will be a critical year for the development of the Group’s
medical, pharmaceutical and health business. Facing pressures
and challenges, the core strategy of the Group is “seeking
progress while maintaining stability”. In 2019, the focus of
the Group will be strengthening risk controls, enhancing
operational quality, seizing market opportunities, steadily
propelling the development of key projects, enhancing its
innovative research and development capabilities and striving
for accomplishing the targets set for 2019, so as to lay a
strong foundation for the Group's sustainable development in
the future.

Fitness Business

As cardiovascular disease and the obesity epidemic continue
to rise, the fitness industry will play an increasingly important
role in the health of global populations. Fitness businesses
that adapt to meet this challenge should find security over
the long-term. As Millennials increasingly drive consumer
spending, providing services that appeal to their values will be
crucial. However, that doesn’t mean that other generations
should be neglected at their expense. The active-ageing
segment is another growth area, which gains immense health
benefits from regular fitness activity, so there are huge
opportunities in this area too.

Cement Business

In 2018, the cumulative cement production volume in the
PRC was 2,177 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year
increase of 3%. The cumulative clinker production volume in
the PRC was 1,422 million tonnes, representing a year-on-year
increase of 3.56%, maintaining low-speed growth.



BH_ZT-NFHEETRAEFENRE
}Ei‘m%?XéiEgH#EEHHTTT};ﬁ ENE
HWERE LR EEE T T %ﬁ&iﬁﬁgl@
BRKAREEAE - ?{Z{Fﬁiﬁu+ E—NF
2BKEEEHRRETE

—E-NFREEFERRAIENEEZEF

-EAMBE AR ERBR  LEE
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁ% CHHEEENRERSE - A
BKRITESEERTHREAGENRE
RIFIE =& B EEKT  ERBIMKRRE
BA - HE—EEN -

B

RAFELRERHSRE BEEREER
—EXRFAEE TREURRAEEHE
EeERERZEETELEERBARD
FE o

FE
40

—E-AF=RAR=+NH

AL RREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

ERHRE

Chairman’s Statement

It is expected that the growth rate of real estate investment
will face downward pressure under continued tightening of
regulatory control of the property market of the PRC in 2019.
In the light of an expected downward trend of the growth
rate of real estate investment and a lag effect in demand for
newly invested infrastructure projects, the national cement
production volume in 2019 is expected to decline slightly.

The year 2019 is yet another important year for the PRC's
environmental governance. As such, it is expected that
there will not be a significant reduction in the government'’s
efforts in policy implementation, especially for markets in
southern regions, which will continue to contribute to supply
reduction. Therefore, the cement industry will continue
the implementation of supply-side structural reform, while
enhance the green production level. The enterprises will
increase their investment in environmental protection, which
will expose them to certain pressure.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our
shareholders, customers and suppliers for their continuous
support to the Group. | would also like to express the Group's
appreciation for the contributions of the members of the
Board and all staff.

Huang Yu
Chairman

29 March 2019
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$2,093.7 million (2017: HK$1,344.3 million), representing
an increase of 55.8% as compared to the previous year. The
profit for the year of the Group was HK$71.5 million (2017:
HK$35.9 million). The basic earnings per share amounted to
HKO0.60 cents (2017: basic loss per share HK0.04 cents).

The Group recorded a net profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 was primarily attributable to (i) the medical,
pharmaceutical and health business of the Group has been
expanding since the first half of 2018; (ii) the revenue and
other gain generated from the fitness business of the Group
following the Group’s acquisition of 51% of the issued
share capital in TFKT True Holdings in May 2017; and (iii) the
increase in revenue generated by the cement business of the
Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business

In 2018, the PRC's healthcare reforms has gradually
moved towards the critical stage. At macro level, the
PRC government successively adjusted the management
structure of the national healthcare sector, establishing the
trinity supervision and management system composed of
the National Health Commission of the PRC, the National
Medical Products Administration and the National Healthcare
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Security Administration. It also amended the National
Essential Drug List* ((BIRE AR %Y B $%)) and implemented
continuous reforms in the medical insurance payment of
hospitals. The government also put forward numerous reform
requirements and specific measures against chemical generic
medicine which accounts for the largest share in the market,
particularly mid- to high-end generic medicine, and many
of which are significant measures such as 4+7 procurement
with target quantity. Besides, the whole industry has been
deeply influenced by policies in recent years such as constant
environmental supervision and the taxation supervision
resulted from the extension of the Third Phase of the Golden
Tax Project.

1. Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd* ([F /7 &%
= E B PR 2 F) (“Tongfang Pharmaceutical”)

Tongfang Pharmaceutical is principally engaged in the
production and sales of chemical generic medicine
with over approximately 30,000 square meters of drug
production workshops in Yanging District, Beijing. Its
key products are prescription drugs and its therapeutic
areas mainly include drugs for local anesthesia and
gynecological purposes. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the operating revenue amounted to RMB237.7
million, representing a growth of 45.3% as compared
to RMB163.6 million for 2017. Gross profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018 amounted to RMB212.7
million, representing a growth of 48.4% as compared to
RMB143.3 million for 2017.
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BAEEDRSIRMEEDTZE
“Food Production Licenses” awarded
to Tongfang Pharmaceutical

RTEXERE (2 EERELLEE]
“Safety Production Standardization Certificate*”
awarded to Tongfang Pharmaceutical
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In 2018, Tongfang Pharmaceutical confronted a complex
external environment and faced significant pressures
and challenges. It implemented a series of effective
measures to cope with various risks such as optimizing
system, strengthening management, controlling risks
and facilitating accountability mechanism. Tongfang
Pharmaceutical streamlined 81 schemes in total, and
established and carried out a supervision mechanism.
Tongfang Pharmaceutical also formed a strategic
planning committee and required the subsidiaries
to formulate a 3-5 year strategic development plan;
streamlined various quality regulations and policy
documents to strengthen the supply and sales,
production, quality and technical management of the
subsidiaries and strictly control the quality risks. It also
required the subsidiaries to strengthen safety production
education, carry out regular safety drills and implement
safety production responsibility system. Since the
beginning of the year, with the efforts made by all staff
of Tongfang Pharmaceutical and its subsidiaries (the
“Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group”), the subsidiaries did
not have any quality, environmental or safety incidents.
Under stringent environmental protection policies, the
environmental impact assessments achieved significant
progress. All subsidiaries passed various “unannounced
inspections”. The team building and corporate culture
construction had made remarkable results, resulting in
a more reasonable and optimized team deployment.
Tongfang Pharmaceutical increased its investment in
research and development and constantly improved its
product structure, eventually achieving a higher growth.
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RAZARBEEXFRLF ((RER
1)

PRAREBETENHEPEEHEEL 2
¥ PREPEEE - HEkOEMN
MEBURRAEEEM ZIEER
MeBE_ET—N\E+_A=+—-H
IFFE  EERARBARKIZ6E S
TR -_ZE—tFEARKCLIFEE
TERI145%  HE_T—N\F+=
A=+—HLEFE  EFBAARE
3708t A —E—+tFARK
24 3BT RS52.3% °

RARBER T EXKENLERS
T EEEENEBEINARZN
T-BENTAE 25 A% 82
FHNFTHREERA - BFATA
ZEMT - FORIERE  BRIEE - B
B BBERAL] B TEER] - A5
REFETENKLEEER/REMAAB
B EEREREEEAAIH > BER
MERE REmEEE -E_FT—t
FERATHNZET  RAREE

RETEXRZERNEARE  XER
T—ERELMNER —T—AFN
F k18 B BR 78 =R R S RO AR A 7K E

EFERREARATN(EEELR])

EERETENERERME ([REE])
NEHEPHEE Y EERBEERE
% EBBUREETREIERERE 2
SEXRE - BE_Z—N\F+_A
=+—HIEFE EERABAR
Be4aodmEETL AT —tFAR
MAS 1B LRI 9% HE-Z
—N\F+_A=Z=+—HLEFE F
MEAEARKIBNIEEL AK=F
—tFARET1BEETERS45% °

AL RREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

BERBNWR DM

Management Discussion and Analysis

2.

Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (BRA RN RBEZGR 2 7)) (“Shaanxi Life
Care”)

Shaanxi Life Care is principally engaged in business
in the Chinese medicine-related fields, including the
planting, manufacturing and distribution of Chinese
medicines and operating a production facility in Baoji,
Shaanxi. For the year ended 31 December 2018, an
operating revenue amounted to RMB73.6 million,
representing a growth of 14.5% as compared to
RMB64.3 million for 2017. Gross profit for the year
ended 31 December 2018 amounted to RMB37.0
million, representing a growth of 52.3% as compared to
RMB24.3 million for 2017.

With the effective leadership of Tongfang
Pharmaceutical Group and the efforts made by the
management and all staff, Shaanxi Life Care continued
to uphold the operating principles of “adjustment,
reform, innovation and enhancement”, adhere to the
work standard of “clear objectives, right approaches,
smooth communication, effective assessment and
efficient incentives” and strive for achieving the
operating indicators set by the Board by proactively
innovating its sales model, strengthening its internal
management and enhancing quality management
and control. Despite the unfavorable circumstances
in 2017, Shaanxi Life Care still stabilized its corporate
development and achieved a certain level of growth back
then. In 2019, it will strive for restoring the best level in
its history.

Chongqing Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EE &
“B AR A7) (“Chongqing Kangle”)

Chongging Kangle is principally engaged in the research
and development, production and sales of active
pharmaceutical ingredients (“API”) and intermediate
APl in Chongging Changshou Chemical Industrial Park.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, an operating
revenue amounted to RMB64.9 million, representing a
growth of 43.9% as compared to RMB45.1 million for
2017. Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB13.1 million, representing a growth of
84.5% as compared to RMB7.1 million for 2017.

—Z— \F £ Annual Report 2018 11
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In 2018, Chongging Kangle launched new products
in the market and reached a certain level of sales
scale. However, due to numerous factors such as
environmental protection supervision and quality
standard adjustment, several significant customers in the
PRC failed to meet its sales performance expectations.
Therefore, Chongqging Kangle adopted a number of
measures for the deployment to the development in
2019 and in the future, including the plans of adding
product lines to its existing offerings, adding green
facilities and strengthening its sales teams and channels,
so as to accomplish more rapid growth and the
operating objectives in 2019.

SPF (Beijing) Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (Hf B & (& X)
LY AR A R) (“SPF”)

SPF is principally engaged in the supply of standardized
laboratory animals and animal indigenous raw materials.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, an operating
revenue amounted to RMB43.8 million, representing a
growth of 27.0% as compared to RMB34.5 million for
2017. Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to RMB25.2 million, representing a growth of
70.3% as compared to RMB14.8 million for 2017.
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“Certificate of the High and
New Technology Enterprises”
awarded to Chongging Kangle

ERRLERER
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Chongging Kangle be recognised
as “Chongging Municipal
Enterprise Technology Center”

HERERER
[Z2 A EREL=ZREE]
SPF be recognised as “Safety
Production Standardization
Level Three Enterprise*”
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Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

BEEN®E DM
Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2018, SPF confronted relatively severe challenges. SPF
is the PRC’s largest supplier of ICR/KM submandibular
gland, a raw material of mouse nerve growth factor
drugs. However, the sales volume of such drugs
recorded a sharp decline as the downstream customers
were affected by the national policies regarding the
restrictions on outpatient prescription. In the face of
the risks, the board and management of SPF adjusted
its strategies by investing key resources and efforts
in laboratory animal business and gradually shrinking
the biopharmaceutical raw material business. With
constant adjustment throughout the year, SPF eventually
minimized the negative impacts caused by the risks and
stabilized its operating situation.

2018 was a challenging year for the Tongfang Pharmaceutical
Group as well as the entire pharmaceutical industry in
the PRC. The Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group proactively
searched for solutions to the problems under various
pressures. Every part of the changes, from strategic
adjustment to changes in details of specific operations,
demonstrated the wisdom and effort of every staff. The
core strategy of the Tongfang Pharmaceutical Group was
to plan on development after stabilizing its operations, that
was, maintaining the operation results accomplished in the
past two years, avoiding systematic risks and stabilizing
its operations, and at the same time capturing present
opportunities, in order to seek further development.

Hr B2 =
Factory of SPF
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Fitness Business

In 2017, the industry topped 174 million consumers around
the globe, according to the International Health, Racquet
and Sportsclub Association (“IHRSA”) Global Report 2018.
In revenue terms, industry revenue totalled an estimated
US$87.2 billion in 2017 and the club count exceeded 200,000
facilities globally. According to the latest report, emerging
markets, particularly in the Asia-Pacific region, showed
potential for continued growth.

22 million members are served at more than 25,000 clubs
in the Asia-Pacific region. In total, this market, excluding
the Middle East, generates annual revenues of US$16.8
billion, according to the IHRSA Asia-Pacific Health Club
Report (Second Edition). The fitness market shows signs of
rapid growth in Singapore at 5.8% and Taiwan at 3.0%.
Both markets belong to the fast-expanding and maturing
second-tier markets. This segment features gradually
professionalizing services, expanding consumer bases, and
high concentration of leading participants. With room for
growth, already fierce competition is expected to continue in
the future.

The revenue of the Group’'s fitness business for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was HK$367.7 million which
includes a franchise income of HK$57.2 million as compared
to HK$229.1 million (including franchise income of HK$33.3
million) for the seven-month same period of last year ended
31 December 2017. The profit for the year of the Group’s
fitness business was HK$32.2 million as compared to HK$20.6
million for the seven-month period of last year ended 31
December 2017. As disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 28 July 2017 relating to acquisition of entities engaging
in fitness business, the seller undertook to the Group that if

Rz EmBEERIE [Yoga Edition | F#

Premium Yoga brand “Yoga Edition” opening in Taipei
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The audited consolidated net profit after tax attributable to
TFKT True Holdings and its subsidiaries (the “True Cayman
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 is less than
US$10.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$86.7
million) (subject to a 10% buffer of downward adjustment),
the seller would pay to the Group an amount equal to such
shortfall on a dollar-to-dollar basis. Based on the consolidated
accounts of the True Cayman Group for 2018 available
to the Company, there is a shortfall of US$7,600,000 (or
HK$58,900,000) (2017: US$3,449,907 (or HK$27,125,000))
against the guaranteed amount. Please refer to note 8a to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company contained
in this annual report for the recognition of such shortfall in
the financial statements.

The Singapore operation of the Group’s fitness business
is positioned in the middle-market segment. Singapore
turnaround is a key component of the projections. The
business underperformed for the past two years not delivering
core strengths. Issues included: sales focus was traditionally
based only with upfront prepaid membership led to current
non-paying members; insufficient re-investment at the older
club, service and fitness products against a background of
new competitor entrants to the market, resulting in lower
retention and a drop in membership over the period.

The Group's fitness business is one of the largest independent
fitness and yoga lifestyle chains with 24 state-of-the-art clubs
serving 110,000 members in Singapore, the PRC and Taiwan.
It has received multiple consecutive industry awards from
various renowned health and lifestyle magazines, recognizing
the Group’s first-class fitness and yoga studios as well as
classes.

The Group's business strategy of opening conveniently-located
and large clubs to offer ample facilities to service its members,
has efficaciously catered to broad member interests with
dedicated facilities for yoga, spinning, group exercise, personal
training sessions and weight and cardio training, etc. To add,
the Group also achieves its brand differentiation through a
distinctive, modern and upscale brand image with a focus on
health and wellness lifestyle, with a particular appeal to the
underserved female market segment.

Its primary business segment and strategic focus are
combining fitness and yoga studios: a format popular with
members, and gives the Group’s fitness business a unique
combination of yoga and fitness under one roof with added
revenue stream from personal training services.
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Cement Business

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's revenue
from the cement business amounted to HK$1,230.3 million
(2017: HK$761.5 million). The increase in revenue from the
cement business was mainly attributable to the increase in
the average selling prices and sales volume of cement as the
supply-demand correlation improved. For the year ended 31
December 2018, the sales volume of the Group’s cement
and clinker was 2,797,000 tonnes (2017: 2,601,000 tonnes),
representing a slight increase of 7.5% as compared to last
year.

The Group experienced different degrees of year-on-year
reduction in the production volumes of clinker and cement
in the first half of the year as a result of the seasonal halt of
production. The operating rate of the kilns improved in the
second half of the year.

The Group’s development project of new cement production
facilities at Bailonggang, Pudong, Shanghai (“Bailonggang
Project”) obtained the approval letter issued by Shanghai
Municipal Development and Reform Commission on 26
January 2014. The approval has an effective period of two
years from the date of issue. The Group has applied for a
postponement of Bailonggang Project as required by the
government, and the Group is currently endeavoring to
procure the relevant government authority to approve the
application for the postponement.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

On 13 February 2018, 400,000,000 shares of the Company
(the “Share(s)”) were allotted and issued to raise gross
proceeds of approximately HK$201.3 million. Details of the
issuance of Shares and update on the use of proceeds are set
out in the section headed “Use of Proceeds from Issue of New
Shares” in this annual report.

Except for the proceeds raised from the above issuance of
Shares, the Group’s capital expenditure, daily operations and
investments during the year ended 31 December 2018 were
mainly funded by cash generated from its operations and
loans from principal bankers and third parties.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group maintained bank
balances and cash reserves of approximately HK$151.8
million (2017: HK$415.0 million), including cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$90.4 million, time deposits
of approximately HK$10.9 million and pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$50.5 million (2017: cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$381.5 million and pledged
bank deposits of approximately HK$33.5 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
borrowings of approximately HK$548.9 million repayable
within one year (2017: HK$629.5 million) and outstanding
borrowings of approximately HK$0.1 million repayable after
one year (2017: HK$175.5 million). The Group's outstanding
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
Renminbi (“RMB"), and Singapore dollars (“SGD") as to
69.2%, 30.7% and 0.1%, respectively. Around 19.1% of the
Group'’s outstanding borrowings were charged with interest at
floating rates while the remainder were at fixed rates.

The gearing ratio (total borrowings over total assets) of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 was as follows:

—F-N\#F —FtF

2018 2017

FTHET FHE T

HK$°000 HK$'000

BEBE Total borrowings 548,992 805,002
BmEE Total assets 3,342,464 3,444,210
BEBEKLX Gearing ratio 16.4% 23.4%

N—_E—-NE+-A=+—8 ' —FAH
1277888 L (ZE—+F : 1586855
T0) ZEHBE T AR M 5 AP ZE
REEEB—MERITHLEEEM (EE)HE
RARI(EBEMDREZTERKEH
FERFE - RBFBHERAR B A=
- N\FMNA-+THEAZAE -

As at 31 December 2018, a balance amounting to HK$127.7
million (2017: HK$158.6 million) was included in the amounts
due from other related parties, which represent the provision
of entrusted loans through a bank to Shanghai Building
Material (Group) Company Limited* ( E/82# (£E) BER A
A]) (“Shanghai Building Material”) and the related interest
receivable. Details of the transactions were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 April 2018.
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Financial Management and Policy

The Group’s financial policy aims at minimising the Group’s
financial risk exposure. Our policy is not to engage in
speculative derivative financial transactions and not to invest
the current capital in financial products with significant risk.

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC and
Singapore and most of its transactions, related working
capital and borrowings are denominated in RMB, SGD, United
States dollars (“US$"”) and HKS$. The Group closely monitors
such foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant currency exposure if necessary. However, since
the Group's consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK$ which is different from its functional currency, it
is inevitable that the Group would face foreign exchange
exposure, whether positive or negative, from translating the
accounts to its presentation currency.

Pledge of Assets

Details regarding the pledge of assets are set out in note 50
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Material Acquisitions

On 23 January 2018, the Company and Kingwood Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Shenzhen Shiao Wan
Yun Investment Co. Ltd.* ORIYITTEREEREBERQA])
and Sea Best Group Limited (collectively, the “Vendors”) in
relation to the acquisition of remaining 40% equity interest
in Tongfang Pharmaceutical by the Group (the “Acquisition”).
Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the Purchaser
conditionally agreed to acquire and the Vendors conditionally
agreed to sell, a total of 40% equity interest in Tongfang
Pharmaceutical, at a total consideration of RMB200,000,000,
of which (i) RMB100,000,000 was satisfied in cash and (ii)
RMB100,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of 243,863,777
consideration shares by the Company to the Vendors at
the issue price of HK$0.5 per consideration share. Upon
completion of the Acquisition on 3 May 2018, Tongfang
Pharmaceutical has become an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Details of the Acquisition were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 23
January 2018, 13 February 2018, 16 March 2018 and 3 May
2018, respectively and the circular of the Company dated 27
February 2018.
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Material Capital Commitments and Investments

As announced by the Company on 15 February 2012,
Shanghai Allied Cement Co., Ltd* (LB A KEBRE A
7)) (“Shanghai SAC”) entered into the Bailonggang Project
Construction Cooperation Agreement* (KBEAREZR A&
SIEB ] A EWa&)) and the Principle Agreement for the
Establishment of the Joint Venture Company* (B R A&
& A (BA))#:%)) on 13 February 2012 with Shanghai
Building Material, a state-owned enterprise, for the purpose
of setting up a joint venture company (the “JV Company”)
to operate and manage the development of new cement
production facilities at Bailonggang, Pudong, Shanghai
(the “Bailonggang Project”) after the relevant government
approvals for the Bailonggang Project being obtained. The
setting up of the JV Company constituted a very substantial
acquisition of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. The 50% share of registered capital of the JV Company
amounting to RMB400.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$456.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$480.0 million))
would be contributed and funded by internal resources of
the Group. Details of the transaction were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 15 February 2012 and
30 January 2014, respectively and the circular of the Company
dated 16 March 2012.

As announced by the Company on 3 October 2012,
Shanghai SAC entered into three purchase agreements on
28 September 2012 for the purchases of certain equipment
and machineries at the aggregate consideration of RMB380.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$433.2 million (31
December 2017: HK$456.0 million)), for future use in the
Bailonggang Project. The Company does not intend to
retain such equipment and machineries for its own use.
Up to 31 December 2018, Shanghai SAC has settled the
first installment of the total consideration under the three
respective agreements in an aggregate amount of RMB68.3
million (31 December 2017: RMB68.3 million) (equivalent to
approximately HK$77.9 million (31 December 2017: HK$82.0
million)). Details of the transaction were set out in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 3 October
2012 and 15 November 2012, respectively.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,527 (2017:
2,118) employees. The Group maintains a policy of paying
competitive remuneration packages and employees are also
rewarded salary and bonus on a performance related basis. In
addition, share options and awarded shares may be granted
to eligible employees pursuant to the terms of the share
option scheme and the share award scheme, respectively.
The purpose of the schemes is to provide incentives to the
selected employees to contribute to the Group and to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees, and
attract and retain human resources that are valuable to the
Group.
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OVERALL APPROACH, STRATEGY AND
REPORTING PRINCIPLES OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

We have adopted the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the List of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in preparing this report. The
board of directors (the “Board”) of Tongfang Kontafarma
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is responsible for the
annual planning, preparation and setting of direction of
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, as well
as communicating such directions to the management who
monitors the effectiveness of environmental, social and
governance, risk management and internal control system.
The Board considers that we have complied with the “comply
or explain” provisions as set out in the ESG Guide for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

OUR ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE (“ESG"”) MANAGEMENT
APPROACH

The Board endorsed an initiative to pursue a clear and
prioritised ESG management approach that is closely
aligned with the Company’s overall business strategy. The
executive committee of the Board is responsible for the
formulation of policies and guidelines, and allocates budgets
for ESG activities and undertakings in achieving sustainable
development. Our vision is to promote sustainable economies,
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build a solid foundation and a bright future for the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and enhance
the value of business partners of the Group and shareholders
of the Company. Our strategy is to comply with all
environmental requirements applicable to our business and to
continuously improve our environment management towards
the industry best practice.

BUSINESS OPERATION OF THE GROUP

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was
principally engaged in (1) the manufacturing and sales of
prescription drugs and laboratory related products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (the "“Medical,
Pharmaceutical and Health Business”); (2) the operation of
fitness centres and provision of consultation services for
fitness and health activities in Singapore and the PRC and
operating the franchise business for royalty and service
fee income in Taiwan (the “Fitness Business”); and (3) the
manufacturing and sales of cement and clinker and trading of
cement in Shandong province and Shanghai in the PRC (the
“Cement Business”).

The management of the Group is committed to incorporating
ESG elements into the strategic assessment of daily operation,
and has considered the long-term impact of our stakeholders
on our ESG matters. We have appointed internal functional
department and engaged external advisor to assist the
management in reviewing our operation, in order to identify
the relevant ESG matters and assess their importance to
our business and stakeholders’ interests. According to our
assessment, this report provides general disclosures that cover
Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business, Fitness Business
and Cement Business. Environmental protection and product
responsibilities are considered as key aspects for us.
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Environmental

Emissions

Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business

In response to the promotion of alternative energy use
by the PRC government, we have implemented a solar
energy power generation project (the “Solar Energy Power
Generation Project”) in our plant in Beijing. In this project,
solar photovoltaic modules were installed, covering an area
of over 30,000 square feet and fulfilling the daily energy
consumption requirement of our plant in Beijing. Any surplus
solar power would be sold to the plants nearby. The Solar
Energy Power Generation Project effectively promotes the
development of alternative energy and contributes to a better
environment by reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Tongfang
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd" (R T B ¥ EE AR A 7l)
("Tongfang Pharmaceutical”) has confirmed the supplemental
agreement with a power system engineering company on the
Solar Energy Power Generation Project. After entering into
the agreement, the project is expected to commence before 1
June 2019.

In addition, unpleasant smell (mainly composed of ammonia)
is emitted from our experimental laboratory animal workshop
during the process of breeding animals. In addition to the
above emission reduction measures, we adopted isolated
ventilation cage to raise the animals, collecting 100% of the
waste gas from the cage and have it diverted to the spray
tower by way of power fan. Inside the tower, water recycled
from other processes is sprayed from the top to react with the
ammonia, thus neutralizing and purifying the waste gas. To
improve the efficiency of the spray tower, hackettens are used
to increase the surface area and efficient distribution of the
gas. Purified gas is discharged through chimneys to achieve
reduced emission of waste gas.
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During the reporting period, since the emissions such as
nitrogen oxides (“NOx"), sulphur dioxide (”SO,”) and dust
("PM") produced from the Medical, Pharmaceutical and
Health Business were not significant, a decision was made not
to disclose such information. Carbon dioxide (“CO,") emission
from electricity consumption was approximately 3,795 tonnes
(2017: 11,886 tonnes'). Due to the suspension of a subsidiary
in 2018, the total CO, emission dropped.

Clinical waste such as reagent bottles, disposed drug and
experimental liquid waste are the major hazardous wastes of
Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business. We centralise
and handle all of our hazardous waste in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations. All hazardous wastes
have to go through detoxification treatments by qualified
vendors before disposal. The production base of Chongging
Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. *(EERLEZEFR A
Al) (“Chongging Kangle”) produced 56 tonnes (2017: 147
tonnes) chemical wastes in 2018. Our experimental laboratory
animal workshop produced 3.2 tonnes (2017: 20.5 tonnes) of
medical wastes including animal carcasses. The volume of the
above hazardous wastes decreased significantly as a result of
the following measures:

- By summing up the four official inspections in 2018
(e.g. National Medical Products Administration* (BIZ
HREEREIER) in the PRC and U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (“FDA"), etc.) and multiple domestic
and foreign customer audits, clean production and
improvements on process technology were pushed
forward, resulting in significant improvements of product
qualities and technical indicators as well as reduced costs
and reduced chemical wastes;

- Solvent recycling fixtures were improved to increase
the recycling of cooling water for distillation and
condensation facilities, resulting in significant increase of
solvent recovery rate and effective reduction of chemical
wastes emission;

U The results for the year 2017 has been restated and recalculated based
on the new data.
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- The adoption of front-end collection of chemical
wastes in batches and the application of
distillation-concentration regime to high-concentration
chemical wastes effectively lowered the volume of
emissions and processing costs; and

- In 2018, some external procurements were made
for quinclorac to reduce our production. Due to
market factors, the production of products such
as diphenylmethyl thioacetamide, amodiaquine
hydrochloride and ecabet sodium decreased significantly,
lowering the volume of chemical wastes produced by the
Company.

Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (BR
ARNRBELEZFR AR (“Shaanxi Life Care”), a subsidiary
engaged in planting, manufacturing and distribution of
Chinese medicines, produced approximately 200 tonnes of
non-hazardous waste during 2018 due to the increase in
purchases of heating in winter and the increase in production
in the fourth quarter. Such wastes included slag/coal-fired
boiler wastes after heating and dregs/wastes produced
after extraction of Chinese medicines. In addition to the
above non-hazardous wastes produced by Shaanxi Life
Care, non-hazardous wastes consumed by finished products
consisted mainly of paper boxes, plastics and general
commercial wastes. We consider the amount of materials
consumed by finished products and non-hazardous wastes not
insignificant, and thus the Group decided not to disclose such
information.

EEEY-SHETAE - BREE

Chongging Kangle — Facilities for purification of exhaust gas and electrolysis
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Fitness Business

Since Fitness Business is a service industry, which only
produces greenhouse gases emission from electricity
consumption, and does not constitute other significant
discharge of waste gas, hazardous or non-hazardous wastes.
During the reporting period, CO, emission from electricity
consumption was approximately 9,935 tonnes (2017: 6,370
tonnes'). As compared with only seven months of business
operation in 2017, the total CO, emission in the whole year of
2018 has increased slightly. Please refer to the section “Use of
Resources” below for electricity conservation measures in the
Fitness Business.

Cement Business

During the production process of clinker and slag, wastes
gas emissions (such as NOx, SO, and PM) and greenhouse
gas emissions (such as CO,) are produced. We have installed
gas analysers in cement kilns for online monitoring of the air
pollutants. We have also installed SNCR for de-sulfurization
and de-nitrification in our kilns in accordance to the
Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Cement Industry
"GB4915-2013" requirement (concentration<20mg/Nm?,
NOx<400mg/Nm?, SO,<100mg/Nm?). Dust-reclaiming mills
were put in place to recycle the dust generated during the
production process for reuse in cement production. Site visits
are regularly conducted by local environmental authorities
to monitor the pollutant emissions of the production lines.
All emission standards have met the requirements of the
environmental authorities and are strictly controlled within the
standards of the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
PRC* (R ZE A R B 4 REIR IR ).

During the past few years, we have completed the upgrade
for the inverters of clinker powder raw mill, the technological
updates for belt-conveyed bulk cement carriers and the
upgrade for electrical dust precipitator. We have adopted
low NOx staged burning techniques in the kiln system. As a
result of the ongoing upgrades of our manufacturing plants,
Shandong Allied Wangchao Cement Limited* (LLUERBA T
RAJEBR AR (“Allied Wangchao”) has been identified
as one of the national high-tech enterprises. In the coming
future, we will continue to improve the dust collection rate of
our cement kiln and push forward the development of other
environmental projects.

L The results for the year 2017 has been restated and recalculated based
on the new data.
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R E B - KR EKH Ak &EEE?@ During the reporting period, the production process of clinker
EEBEPEEERESR (FIANOX - SO, and slag of Cement Business produced wastes gas (such as

PM) SFHEY) - EF*@?@%&fTﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁt NOx, SO, and PM), Such data was not disclosed as it was
AEBREAHEER - RBMEECOHE considered not significant. CO, emission from electricity

W#925,042M8 (ZZF—+45 : 24,1180F") - Eﬁi consumption was approximately 25,042 tonnes (2017: 24,118
FFHHRERD  ABRKKE L - BN tonnes'), similar to the previous year’s emission without much
IKEEBT ABIEKRENEENEEREE change. Also, Cement Business does not constitute significant
Y2 BERK - emission of hazardous or non-hazardous wastes.

B E M ER Emissions Performance Table
o BR BELREEYR .
Inchators Medical, Pharmaceutical BEEXK KRER
and Health Business Fitness Business Cement Business
ZE-N\%§ ZE-tE “E-N\E ZE-tf E-\E ZE-tE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
AT BHYEER REAREHR  ANAZEEE BERBRER BIEBIOKEERMEENENDD
C REdnEE NOX - SO.EPMEU R EX - HAE M RERBEH -

During the reporting period, the Company considered the emissions such as NOx, SO, and PM from Medical,
Pharmaceutical and Health Business, Fitness Business and Cement Business not S|gn|f|cant and thus a decision was
made not to disclose such information.

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective
emissions data

A2 REREBHNE
- REZEEM
CO, 5 3,795 11,8860 9,935H 6,370 25,0428 24,1181

A2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total 3,795 tonnes 11,886 tonnes' 9,935 tonnes 6,370 tonnes' 25,042 tonnes | 24,118 tonnes'
- €O, emission from electricity
consumpnon

1 —E-EENERCHEMRIL BTN EIE [ The results for the year 2017 has been restated and recalculated based

EFAHE o on the new data.
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- BR BERRERE :
Inchators Medical, Pharmaceutical BEEK KEER
and Health Business Fitness Business Cement Business
“E-N\fF “E-tF “E-N\F “E-tF “E-N\F “E-tf
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
L2BmYSemE | {L2E: 1470 [ ;
SERY32E | BARN205% KERBIABER
Al3 Pﬁiiﬁ%@ﬁ% Cghemical waste: Cghemica\ waste: W@ﬁ TE?Z?&%BT?&?% 0
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced l?/l6e(t1(i)cnar;ev?/aste: llﬂfditcoaqr:;;ste: Not applicable significant emission of
3.2 tonnes 20.5 tonnes hazardous waste
M4 FELEEREY RERUIOR | o RHEBRKERBAERIEAREREN B
BEg waste: 200 (I\Iiote) The Fitness Business and Cement Business had no significant emission of
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced fonnes non-hazardous waste.
ALS BREEHERED B JARKSTRE BHEEE | BAURZL_EE (DG ERR | AAZKTHERNEERE Ol
Bl RAENR %Eémczﬁmkﬁ BE- %4 | BEG ARMERETOENE | LERETELONE  LEARE
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate REZABVARRREAREY | G EEREH ETBHR - U T £ERERY
emissions and results achieved o BRWER100% £ MEEF | Apart from replacing our lighting % CEZRBRRA TENOKD B
%ex system with Light Emitting Diodes | E#I51lf - MR REBHABELE

A Solar Energy Generation Project
was implemented, causing a
significant drop in CO, emission from
electricity consumpnon In addition,
we adopted isolated ventilation cage
to raise our animals and collected
100% of the exhaust gas for
purification purposes.

("LED(s)"), we also promoted energy
saving by putting posters in the
fitness centres.

AR BESHELNCO,
REERRAAREL -
Dust-reclaiming mills were in place
to recycle the dust incurred in
the manufacturing process and to
be reused in cement production.
Production and transportation
reformation were also completed.
Low NOx staged burning techniques
in the kiln system were adopted.
Thus, no significant waste gas
emission was produced during the
reporting period. CO, emission from
electricity consumpt|on had not
much change as compared with the
previous year.

AT1.6
Al6

HIRBEEEREEEZYN %
HEELENRHRAGNE
Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved

FEEERENERENSRARR
HATEFEZ[ AR  BRNEY
EERHROREE HE T LER
BREUNEE Rt NARED
R RS RRAR O

All'hazardous wastes will go through
detoxification treatment by qualified
vendors before disposal. Through
improved production techniques and
recycling equipment, the production
of chemical and medical wastes was
lowered. Thus, substantial reduction
of chemical and medical wastes was
achieved during the reporting period.

RAZBRIREBRARKEANAZREZREN LN -

The Fitness Business and Cement Business had no significant emission of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: The Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business considered the
amount of materials consumed by finished products and non-hazardous

wastes not significant, and thus a decision was made not to disclose
such information.

H: HRBER BERREREGRARKRFEADN
MR REEEDE FEKX - WAEBRETHE
BEEEH -
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Use of Resources

We have made constant efforts in reducing the consumption
of resources and emissions in all possible aspects in the course
of business operations by promoting the 3R Principle (Reduce,
Reuse and Recycle). We have formulated internal operational
guidelines containing detailed requirements regarding water
and electricity consumption such as the operating hours and
temperature setting of air conditioners.

Huge amount of water is required during the cement
manufacturing process, residual heat power generation
process, the medicine manufacturing process and provision of
fitness service. Our sources of water vary and largely depend
on the location of our plants and fitness centres. We are
consciously taking steps in reducing our consumption and
contributing towards maintenance and recharge of water
sources. We provide waste recycling bins at all common
areas of our plants to separate waste by nature for recycling
and appoint recyclables waste collection contractors to help
discharge them.

We have completed the replacement or upgrading of our
aged equipment to models that are more efficient. When
constructing or upgrading plants, impacts on the environment
are our key consideration. We have completed the
replacement of LED lights in our plants and office, providing
energy savings of up to 40% compared to conventional lights.

Bra TR —-SHEANBERERE
Allied Wangchao - Facilities for residual heat power generation
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Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business

Regular energy audit or carbon audit was performed by
certain subsidiaries of the Group to monitor energy usage. All
of our pharmaceutical plants have passed the environmental
assessment certification of the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment Administration of the PRC* (I A R FEH
A REIR IR EB). At the same time, all of our central-station
air handling units adopts frequency control to constant
temperature and humidity, which provides energy savings of
up to 25-30%. In order to encourage energy saving among
employees, the Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business
is planning to incorporate the amount of energy saving into
department assessments, providing performance incentives to
projects with significant energy saving. We consumed 12.57
million kWh in 2018 (2017: 39.37 million kWh'), mainly
attributable to the suspension of a subsidiary, resulting in a
drop of electricity consumption for the year.

Water used in pressure cookers in our experimental laboratory
animal workshops would be recycled for cleaning the
equipment and for the spray absorber, which provides water
savings of up to 1,540 tonnes each year. During the reporting
period, we consumed 46,800 tonnes (2017: 114,600 tonnes')
of water. The above decrease in water consumption is
attributable to the following measures:

—  The enforcement of clean production, recycling, and
prohibiting the cleaning of workshops using a large
amount of drinking water (use sweeping instead); and

—  The production of diphenylmethyl thioacetamide,
amodiaquine hydrochloride and ecabet sodium
significantly dropped due to market factors, resulting in
drop of related water use.

! The results for the year 2017 has been restated and recalculated based
on the new data.
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Fitness Business

Electricity and water are the major resources used in the
Fitness Business. Apart from replacing our lighting system
with LEDs, we promote energy saving by having posters
around the fitness centres to remind members and staff to
consume less water. Furthermore, we are digitalising our
business and transitioning ourselves into a paper-less office.
During the reporting period, our electricity consumption was
16.97 million kWh (2017: 10.86 million kWh?'), our water
consumption was 471,892 tonnes (2017: 307,528 tonnes).
As compared with only seven months of business operation
in 2017, the total electricity and water consumption in 2018
increased slightly.

Cement Business

Regular energy audit or carbon audit has been performed by
certain subsidiaries of the Group to monitor energy usage
over the years. Our cement has met the Norm of Energy
Consumption per Unit Products of Cement “GB16780-2012"
requirement. During the reporting period, we consumed
82.94 million kWh (2017: 79.88 million kWh') of electricity.
At the same time, we have technically improved our water
usage and discharge system so that discharged used water
is able to meet the production standards for reuse purpose.
As such, the water system is able to achieve zero emission.
During the reporting period, we consumed 222,500 tonnes
(2017: 240,038 tonnes) of water. The electricity consumption
and water consumption are comparable to those of 2017
without significant changes. Our cement is either distributed
by cement tankers or packed in environmental friendly bags,
which fulfilled the National Standard of Sacks for packing
cement “GB9744-2010".

! The results for the year 2017 has been restated recalculated based on
the new data.
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EBRERABEMR Use of Resources Performance Table
8 BB BERREREK '
IndicaT{ors Medical, Pharmaceutical and - LE KRER
Health Business Fitness Business Cement Business
“E-N\% “E-t% “E-N\E “E-tE “E-N\% “E-t%
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
125768 393788 16,9768 10.866 & 8294AE 79.88E &
A1 BREE TRE TRE! TRE TRE THRE TRE
A2.1 Electricity consumption in total 12.57 million 39.37 million 16.97 million 10.86 million 82.94 million 79.88 million
kWh kWh' kWh kWh!' kWh kWh'
A2.) BFEKE 46,8000 114,600 471,892 307,528 222,500 240,0381E
A2.2 Water consumption in total 46,800 tonnes | 114,600 tonnes' | 471,892 tonnes | 307,528 tonnes | 222,500 tonnes | 240,038 tonnes
BRTAGHEERR YRAZ | EARKDEIEBRANIEE | eHETEREHAnEL 20

Az3§ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ§%%&ﬁﬁﬁ

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved

BEMHMPREFRA  HaE
25-30% ° FI% - AEBE THO
BB BERREEHKHELH
RERIEMADAZH HREX
HReIE R ITAMRE -

A Solar Energy Generation Project
was implemented and central
air-conditioning modules with
frequency control was adopted, with
energy savings reaching 25-30%. At
the same time, in order to encourage
energy saving among employees, the
Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health
Business is planning to incorporate
the amount of energy saving into
department assessments, providing
performance incentives to projects
with significant energy saving.

R LERER-FHBRATRILE
B FRREEAEE
Electricity consumption during the
year dropped significantly due to the
above measures and the suspension
of a subsidiary.

A24 BEKBUER KR AT B AR -
PR KR B R TG R

A2.4 Description of whether there are
problems with sourcing proper water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency
initiatives and results achieved

AMNERBNERNRER S AR
KeBRRANERREREEMNR
WA - SEEIKE 5408 -
Water used in pressure cookers in
our experimental laboratory animal
workshops would be recycled for
cleaning the equipment and for the
spray absorber, which provides water
savings of up to 1,540 tonnes each
year.

7o RABLEDERRAR G B
MAERGRLRE B KEM
% RERERETHORK: I
o BMEETEHATL - BRK
BEBHAE -

Electricity and water are the major
resources used in the Fitness
Business. Apart from replacing
our lighting system with LEDs, we
promote energy saving by having
posters around the fitness centres
to remind members and staff to
consume less water. Furthermore,
we are digitalising our business
and transitioning ourselves into a
paper-less office.

BT tERBLEANEER
B —F-\EREMRERELKE
MR-

As compared with only seven
months of business operation in
2017, the total electricity and water
consumption in 2018 increased
slightly.

CEFRER - AANKELH
BEORERMEma R RERE
[GB16780-2012 ) f# 7 °

Regular energy audit or carbon audit
has been performed to monitor
energy usage. Our cement has met
the Norm of Energy Consumption
per Unit Products of Cement
"GB16780-2012" requirement.

AMEEHRAMERAGET TR
T NEH RO ERAKEIE
ERMAERE - At - KRGME
HTHH -

We have technically improved our
water usage and discharge system so
that discharged used water is able
to meet the production standards
for reuse purpose. As such, the
water system is able to achieve zero
emission.

p5 BEmARekTANEE
A2.5 Total packaging material used
for finished products

HmERHNRIBRER BARNAEZRENKRARRS - AN AR RRANIHLAEA - HA

SERETRERBEAM -

Materials consumed by finished goods are mainly paper boxes, plastics and bags which fulfilled the National Standard
of Sacks for packing cement. Since the materials consumed for finished goods are considered not significant, the
Group decided not to disclose such information.

U — R FEENERERER L REN N BE !

EHHE -
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Performance of 2017 had been restated and recalculated pursuant to
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BRERARER The Environment and Natural Resources
?ﬁﬁﬁf* B EREBEE TSR AT We recognise the environmental responsibilities associated
C WAEREROEEIEHEIBIEN Y with our business and are committed to minimising the
gE“ o B MIAIRIBIR IS BN AF E TS HIRIE environmental impacts of our business operation. Our
ZF'?HX METE - BTERBROIIE environmental strategy is to strike a harmonious balance
RE BMERELEIRZL=92—H between our business and the environment. In order to
IR R EBIRMR o promote a green working environment, we request at least
one-third of the managed area of our operation plants to be
green.
BRARERENEK Environment and Natural Resources Performance Table

o BE BERREREK
- Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health BELK KRER
Business Fitness Business Cement Business
ZE-N\§ “B-tE ZE-N\§ “B-tE ZE-N\§ “B-tE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
A1 RFEERIERERAAER | AANTEREHEMT :
MEAYERDHRERERY | Our major environmental policy is as below:

Indicators

Eny e .
A3.1 Description of significant - BEARRAMMRBOAARARE

impacts of activities on the To comply with all environmental requirements applicable to our operations

environment and natural - BEOXBERANERAER , ‘

resources and the actions taken Toi improve t_he eDV|rgan1§ntaI structure towards thF |‘ndustr)‘/’s best practices

to manage them - H‘QJLLE /%%ﬂk%%@%m%fﬁ%%(mmﬁ%u ) E&E“-‘Eﬁ%iﬁ)
To integrate environmental considerations in all stages of business operations (e.g. planning, design and
manufacturing)

- BRRIBREIREER

To enhance environmental awareness of our employees via trainings
- XRANGERELENRRED

To support environmental activities of the communities where we operate
- BREFEARIEE

To encourage green coverage on lawns

REEHR FEEETENRBERERE LERER BRARERTRARETRR
In the reporting period, the Group complied with local laws and regulations on environmental protection. Relevant laws and
requlations mainly include but are not limited to:

- (PEARLNAREREE) (ZFLEH : 2015.01.015 M)
Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic of China* (Chairman’s Decree No. 9: 2015.01.01
Implementation Edition)

- (PEARAMBARAFMAE) TR EIE : 2016.01.01ZHR)
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution* (Chairman’s Decree No.
31:2016.01.01 Implementation Edition)

- (REARKMEKZEMRE) (TFSH70% : 2018.01.01F1HR)
Law of the People s Republic of Chma on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution* (Chairman's Decree No. 70:
2018.01.0 Implementann Edition)

- (RENERIFEHNEE)
Standards for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage*

- (ERENSEMARBEE)
Hazardous Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Technology Policy*

EREBRA AERAMMELPEREREERRARERANEMNERES -

During the reporting period, no reported instance of non-compliance to relevant environmental laws and regulations was
noted in our operation.
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T
B’

BMRRAEEDERMEZENEE AT
WEEMERMEEBREAF R FEEMH
e -N-ZEBE-N\FE+-ZA=+—H8 K&
ERE BELKRBEXEFBSI0REES (=
T—tF:750%) 5 XEFRHFL645
BE(ZZE—+tF :1,124%EE8") (MEH
BETREeERIFPLOMNET) - KR
HIRB233EEE (ZE—+HF : 2234) o
BB OREMERETE—AFABEME
BN TIERE -

Social

Employment

We recognise our employees as an important asset and
we provide fair and equal opportunities to our employees
regardless of their backgrounds and genders. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had 810 employees (2017: 750
employees) from the Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health
Business, 464 employees (2017: 1,124 employees') from
Fitness Business (staff members of fitness centres in Taiwan
are not included in the data for both years) and 233 (2017:
223 employees) employees from the Cement Business. We
are committed to build an open and inspirational working
environment to all our employees.

(F=FEE i

Distribution of employees

BE - BERERER
Medical, Pharmaceutical
and Health Business

U ST EEMEME R E R BRI
REFE -
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Fitness Business Cement Business
2018 2017

g I i S

! The results for the year 2017 has been restated and recalculated based
on the new data.
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EMEBAFHFE

IERMBREDERENTBIZE -IER
BHRRERBTEHERA  KHEEER
B iRl BUEBRME T - RIIREBEBE
BENMRAEEHMNGFE - TIERMH RS
B R SR E R T A RS TERER -

EMBARICEEFMZES R 2 HER
BRG] (P EARAXMBEEE) - (F
EARKMBEEEHARE) 882 (5T
EHBELR) : MR 2R EER)F) R T
BROFMOR  BRELATHS B4
HARERAEERA - RPIRBEHS T
ERER (BIR(PEARAMBH SRR
B KEERABESEEEKM): aEz(2
REEERBIR) ~ (85 TIRIKRE RG] B0
B2 RAFBEERE)F) HEREDATES
W RPNFHM T REZITRNRE
BE - THEREMAKERENTEEMS T
RRIER ©

EREHEAN REHRERBRBS T
RERNEMDHREEM -

BEREFTEDEANEE

BB IARREAREA LR - Fik
RRSOERRENER & ) mH HETT
R KERE - AR RBENRFHE
RENBERLTALERE - EREREA
AEBEREFAEDRENERIBEEI -

EMBLEERRE

HZMEEEERGE T HRAEEERLE
AREBEREIEE - EEBRBZEERE
RETRMEFH  HMBEEBEEEFE
HEBREIN T RmMEF  FEHERMA
BT o

We promote fair competition

All employment decisions shall be based on objective criteria.
Equal opportunities principles are applied in all employment
policies, in particular to recruitment, training, career
development and promotion of employees. Remuneration
packages are determined based on responsibilities and
performance. Working time, rest periods and defined
contributions are in compliance with relevant labour laws and
regulations.

Pursuant to relevant employment regulations in each region,
such as: the Labour Law of the PRC* ({H ZE A 07 44
3%)) and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC* ({(Fh & A B 4
B L B4 [FE)), the Labour Standard Act of Taiwan and
the Employment Act of Singapore, the employee handbook
of each of our subsidiary regulates our remuneration scheme,
including basic salary, bonus, social security contribution and
statutory holidays correspondingly. We contributed social
security and provident fund in compliance with local labour
law and regulations, namely the Social Insurance Law of the
PRC (KREARKEMBEIM REE)) and the Regulations
on Management of Housing Provident Funds* ({{FE A&
S EIREH)), the National Health Insurance Act and the
Labour Pension Act of Taiwan and the Central Provident Act
of Singapore, etc. Our remuneration scheme is comparable to
the peers in the local industry. Working hours and rest periods
are in compliance with local labour laws and regulations.

In the reporting period, no reported instance of
non-compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations was
noted.

We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment

We do not tolerate discrimination or harassment against
any employee based on their gender, age, race, or any
status protected by law. Complaints about discrimination or
harassment would be dealt with on a confidential basis and
impartially. In the reporting period, no reported instance on
discrimination or harassment was noted.

We welcome feedbacks

We encourage our employees to provide feedbacks and
address their concerns to the management proactively. A
number of channels are in place for its employees to express
grievances and complaints which will be well-handled
according to the predetermined procedures to ensure equality
to all employees when related matters are handled.
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REHZ S
EMRERXZZHERERE

BZHE O REERBEZZ2MHTHERE K
ERERIBEREE - MBLESHEAE
BTIRR - REMZEEEHE o HA 5
ETREHES  AEEMAREE - HAX &
EEEARFENHBELZERENEZAE
EEARR

- (REARAMBEBERBDQZE)

- (PEARANBLZZ2LEER)

- REKITBRER &)

- BEBEZEHELER)
- MBI ESREEREEX)

BAERERAREBZI - NIESEERE
He2E8d BRMAZETLE2E8EESR
AELEmMNREKY ITEHARAAEE
BERHBBBARE LERE K
T ARl R E R 5 B M IF IR -
EEEMELEREMNERSSIIM - &

Health and Safety
We promote occupational safety and health

We are committed to provide a safe working environment
to our employees and to protect them from occupational
hazards. Environmental, health and safety management
systems are implemented in all sites. Safety guidelines are
formulated and communicated to all employees. Relevant
regulations on health and safety that have significant impact
on the Group include but are not limited to:

—  Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Occupation

Diseases* ((F 2= A R L MBI B Z /BT 8%))

- Law of the PRC on Work Safety* ({(FhEE AR HXFIEH %2
HEEED)

—  the Regulations on Work-Related Injury Insurance* of the
PRC KT &R HI))

—  the Occupational Safety and Health Act of Taiwan
—  the Workplace Safety and Health Act of Singapore

Relevant trainings are organised regularly to improve our
employees’ awareness on health and safety. We have
appointed safety officers to supervise the safety level of each
aspect of operations and provide the Group’s employees
with information and training courses about operation of
equipment in office, production facilities, mining tools and

36 =—Z— \F%# Annual Report 2018
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P9 B 2 & BUAR % X E MR B8 | B T TE B
SMEBIE B - RECR 1 F AR R AFARRE

RZE—NE+A=-+H BMNEHRH
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BRI EEEIMIHY S EEFTRF<FiE
ITHES  FMBEESBABHTELR N
B BMAEERELHESR B8
SNBREBEERIEF  WREFIMEREL 2R
LB e’ FBizsafefFE

EREHMEAAN RARBMNELPHR
ERBEBEZZERENERERNME
M2 s =M -

BERIE
BMREE2ERE

BHAEEFRDREABLE  REMT
RRENEI - RABERESRTEE
MEEMEREELEEERE (TGMP])
Fll e HAMBIENERRAESEREE

B IF - R E EERIIE A AR

HETER
HIEBETMEFHET

R E MR BRI ERE TR
ST YRET(REAR LA S

F)RCRILERETHE)  (CRRELE
KRBT RBE - MR ABE A
R IR RA R RAE « ERE BN
REBRETIRRHL THEMDRES
f o

inspection equipment on a regular basis. Spot checks by
the management on the implementation of safety measures
are in place. Regular internal trainings and ad-hoc external
trainings are provided to our physical trainers to ensure they
are well-equipped.

On 20 July 2018, regular firefighting training and fire drill
were carried out in our experimental laboratory animal
workshop. In addition, annual or semi-annual fire drills were
carried out in each of our fitness centres and organized by
the property management department of the headquarters
during the year, in which all on-site personnel are required to
participate. Meanwhile, we also provided CPR/AED trainings
to the employees, and were awarded the Bizsafe certificate by
the Occupational Safety and Health Division of Singapore.

In the reporting period, no reported instance of
non-compliance to relevant occupational safety and health
laws and regulations was noted in our operation.

Development and Training
We provide learning opportunities

We provide our employees with adequate trainings regarding
production, skillsets and code of behaviour. We provide
appropriate and ongoing trainings on quality and Good
Manufacturing Practice (“GMP") to our employees. Our
system not only ensures that all applicable employees are
trained, but also monitors the effectiveness of the trainings.

Labour Standards
Prohibition on child and forced labour

Our employment policy strictly prohibits the employment
of children and forced labour, and strictly complies with
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor* ({Z£IF1{F
FAZ T8 7E)), Special Protection for Juvenile Workers* ({z&
B F T BRIREFEY) in the Labour Law of the PRC* ({H £
AR LTI 4 &% )) and other relevant laws and regulations
of the PRC, Singapore and Taiwan. In the reporting period, no
reported instance on child labour or forced labour was noted.
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HREREE

BB RM AR EEN SR ERD
PERB AEBHEEREZEILA
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HEERHEERERETYERSRERE
EHIRHE AR T EAMHER -

EmEF
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Supply Chain Management

All our raw materials were sourced from the Group’s list
of qualified suppliers. Admission to the list of qualified
suppliers must follow strict standards. After a preliminary
screening, potential suppliers will be subject to an on-site
audit entailing a comprehensive assessment of the supplier’s
quality management level, capability of ensuring a stable
supply, safety and environmental management, employee
health and social responsibility, corporate culture and business
reputation, etc. The list of qualified suppliers was managed
closely with regular assessments to eliminate unfit suppliers.

Product Responsibility

Product quality is one of our main focuses in our business
operation. We have established a strict internal control system
to manage our intellectual property, encompassing the
administration of trademarks and patents, the management
of proprietary technology and confidentiality, and intelligence
and information gathering, which include the compliance of
relevant regulations such as Law of the PRC on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests* ({(H#E A RHEMEH & & #
# {R#%)) of the PRC, Consumer Protection Act of Taiwan
and Personal Data Protection Act of Singapore. Trademarks
of newly designed products would be registered on a timely
basis. Detailed descriptions of most of our products are
updated timely on our websites.
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Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business

We provide medical-related products in accordance with the
relevant regulations including the Drug Control Law of the
PRC* ({PEARKEMBEAEEREEE)), the Regulations for
the Implementation of the Drug Administration Law of the
PRC* (K EE ARMME %R EBEEMIKD)), GMP, Good
Supply Practice for Pharmaceutical Products (K& R&EE2E =
EIBE)) and Pharmacopoeia of the PRC ((FR B &2 81 )). We
apply and adhere to a strict set of quality standards, and we
adopted policies and procedures to identify, measure, control
and sustain product-quality excellence. We strive continuously
to improve these standards in order to enhance our quality
and safety procedures and ensure ongoing compliance with
GMP. Our manufacturing facilities are inspected by national
authorities. We adopted GMP in all of our manufacturing
plants. Our chemical drugs production base located in Beijing,
the Chinese medicines production base located in Baoji City,
Shaanxi Province, and the active pharmaceutical ingredients
(“API") and intermediates APl production base located in
Chongging City have all obtained the GMP certification from
the China Food and Drug Administration of the PRC. The API
and intermediates APl production line located in Chongging
City holds a valid FDA certification and the Prequalification
("PQ") of the World Health Organisation (“WHQO"), while
Chongging Kangle holds a valid new WHO PQ for an API. Our
experimental laboratory animal workshop located in Beijing
City holds a valid experimental laboratory animal production
qualification certification of the Beijing Municipal Science &
Technology Commission. On 10 December 2018, SPF (Beijing)
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (HTB & (It R) EMEMER A
A]) (“SPF") was awarded 2018 Beijing Advanced Laboratory
Animals Industry Award* (Gt RERB)¥ITE L E SR ) by
the Beijing Association on Laboratory Animal Care* (AL R E &2

BMITEB D).

Labelling is essential for our brand reputation. To prevent
mislabelling, we separate our production lines for different
products. All of our products are labelled with detailed
information in line with the requirements of relevant labelling
laws and regulations.
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According to our drug recall policy, our pharmaceutical
products are divided into three categories based on their
emergence level of harmful impact and consequences. The
drug recall policy also prescribes that affected items be
recalled immediately, as fast as 24 hours. To ensure the
effectiveness of the recall process, recall drills are performed
every year.

Our experimental laboratory animal workshop breeds over 3
million mice every year and we sell those mice to domestic
and international research institutions, tertiary institutions
and other pharmaceutical companies to support the life
and health science research. In 2016, SPF, which principally
engaged in the supply of standardised laboratory animals and
animal indigenous raw materials, obtained the 2015 Beijing
Advanced Laboratory Animals Industry Award* (it = & &
BT E L EERES) issued by the Beijing Association on
Laboratory Animal Care* QL RERENYITEHE). To ensure
the laboratory mice being raised humanely, we provide them
with a good living environment with adequate space, quality
food and suitable temperature. Technical updates regarding
the animal welfare are given to related employees from
time to time. We follow the Principle of Animal Welfare and
Humane Endpoint (B ¥ @A B KB ZE AR A and
implement euthanasia on our laboratory mice.

Fitness Business

We are committed to provide quality fitness service with
latest state-of-the-art cardiovascular training equipment to
our customers. Our fitness centres are located in Taiwan,
Singapore and the PRC. As at 31 December 2018, there are
12 fitness centres and 1 yoga and dance club in Taiwan, 8
fitness centres and 1 yoga and dance club in Singapore, and 2
fitness centres in the PRC. Free personal trainers sessions are
provided to new customers to help them get familiar with the
correct ways to use the equipment. We provided a 24-hour
cool down period for each signed contract. Customers are
welcomed to cancel any signed contracts within the cool
down period. We handle our customers’ private information in
accordance to the relevant privacy protection laws. Our fitness
centres in Singapore are awarded the Shape Sports Awards
for consecutive four years from 2015 to 2018.
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* EHEF

Cement Business

We are committed to provide quality cement to our
customers through customer engagement such as quarterly
guestionnaire surveys. We ensure the quality of our products
is still up to the National Standard of Common Portland
Cements “GB175-2007" in 2018.

Anti-corruption

In order to maintain a fair and efficient business and working
environment, we put great emphasis on anti-corruption. We
does not tolerate any form of corruption. Also, we adopted
relevant code of conduct in employee handbook, complying
strictly with relevant anti-corruption laws such as the Criminal
Law of the PRC* ({(FFZE ARLMBEAIE)), Law of the PRC
Against Unfair Competition* ((FEARZELMBE R TIEE
Hw %)), Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial
Bribery* ({FARZE ILEEHBBIT AN EITHE)D) and Taiwan's
Anti-Corruption Act to prohibit employees from extorting,
charging or accepting any form of interest from people,
companies or organisations which conducts business with the
Group. Whistleblowing system is formulated for employees to
report any suspect of all forms of illegal practices.

Community Investment

We actively take part in community and charitable activities.
For the Cement Business, the Group donates cement to help
surrounding villages repair bridges, construct roads, and
improve infrastructure facilities. For people living in poverty,
the Group helps them through donating money or goods.
Since the establishment of the Group, it has donated over
RMB4.1 million to external parties. Over the years, Allied
Wangchao has sponsored uniforms to schools on Children’s
Day (1 June), sponsored notebooks and granted scholarships
to the children of our employees, paid visit to the elderly
living in adjacent villages and poverty-stricken families of our
staff during Chung Yang Festival and voluntarily repaired
roads nearby. The Group has spent over HK$15.4 million on
donation and charity work since 2008. As part of corporate
social responsibility initiatives, we also provided free personal
training sessions to underprivileged children in Singapore.

*  For identification purpose only
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Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis
on the principles of transparency, accountability and
independence. The board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors” and the “Board”, respectively) believes that
good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices
of the Company in light of the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion
of the Directors, the Company applied the principles of, and
complied with, all the applicable code provisions of the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Year").

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises five Directors in total, with two
executive Directors (the “Executive Director(s)”) and three
independent non-executive Directors (the "“INED(s)”). The
composition of the Board during the Year and up to the date
of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Yu (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Chaowen (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Ng Qing Hai (resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 3 September 2018)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Yi (resigned as a non-Executive Director with effect
from 23 January 2018)
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INEDs

Mr. Chan Sze Chung
Mr. Zhang Ruibin
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section in the Directors’ Report on pages 71 to
78 of this annual report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the Directors.

Board Process

During the Year, the INEDs provided the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) with a wide range
of expertise and experience. Their active participation in
the Board and Board committee meetings has brought
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance and management process, taking into
account the interests of all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

Throughout the Year and up to the date of this report,
the Company had three INEDs representing not less than
one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each INED an annual confirmation of his independence
and considers that all the INEDs are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group,
and to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim
results and other ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with.
The attendance records of each Director at board meetings,
board committee meetings and annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM") for the Year are set out below:

EREE Z%-)\F

E3e [Re%Be EMZEE EHZEE REZEE 288 MRBEAE
Risks
Nomination Remuneration Audit  Investment Management
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee 2018 AGM

REEERETEEZ  Number of meetings held

RE during the Year 8 1 2 2 2 1 1

bR/ BT 2Ry
Number of meetings attended/held " "

yrES: Executive Directors:
ENLE(ZE) Mr. Huang Yu (Chairman) 8/8 /1 0N on 171
BEVRE (BEH  Mr Jiang Chaowen (Chief Executive
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F4TES: Non-Executive Director:
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Year were made by reference to the number of such meetings held
during their respective tenures.

2. Mr. Jiang Chaowen was appointed as an Executive Director with effect
from 23 January 2018.

3. Mr. Ng Qing Hai resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 3
September 2018.

4. Mr. Zhang Yi resigned as a non-Executive Director with effect from 23
January 2018.
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The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group's overall strategy,
annual operating budget, annual and interim results,
Directors’ appointment or re-appointment (based on the
recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance
as well as other significant policy and financial matters. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the
executive management under the instruction/supervision of
the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms
of reference. The respective functions of the Board and the
management of the Company have been formalised and set
out in writing and are reviewed by the Board from time to
time to ensure that they are consistent with the existing rules
and regulations.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance each year
to facilitate maximum attendance of Directors. A notice
of a regular Board meeting of at least 14 days is given to
all Directors such that they are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) assists
the Chairman/the Chief Executive Officer in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable laws,
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
3 days before the intended date of a regular Board meeting
(and so far as practicable for such other Board meetings).
Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before being tabled at the
following Board meeting for approval. All minutes are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial
Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board, which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”) also stipulate
that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director
shall not vote (nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum)
on any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract,
arrangement or proposal in which such Director or any of his/
her close associates has a material interest.
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Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
the related materials and to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management. Directors are continuously updated on the
major development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written
procedure was established in December 2011 to enable the
Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a
reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
("CPD")

For CPD, in addition to Directors’ attendance at meetings and
review of papers and circulars sent by the management of the
Company, the Directors participated in the activities including
the following during the Year:

SHBESERRTY
Participation in CPD Activities
HERES
BEERAZ
Bzl e
BEEE
Attending
trainings/
briefings/
REEREN seminars/
Reading conference
Regulatory relevant to
EEnE Name of Directors Updates  Directors’ duties
BTES: Executive Directors:
mAIEAE Mr. Huang Yu v v
Beix 4t Mr. Jiang Chaowen v v
|58 5k A HED Mr. Ng Qing Hai Note D v
FHITESE : Non-Executive Director:
o Bk 5T 4 (e Mr. Zhang Yi (Note 2 v
BYFHTES: INEDs:
PR B IR & Mr. Chan Sze Chung v v
SR B M SR A Mr. Zhang Ruibin v v
REERE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack v v
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Notes:

1. Mr. Ng Qing Hai resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 3
September 2018.

2 Mr. Zhang Yi resigned as a non-Executive Director with effect from 23
January 2018.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on directors’ training.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive should be separate
and performed by different individuals.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer are separate. Such division of responsibilities
reinforces the independence and accountability of these
Directors. Mr. Huang Yu, the Chairman of the Board, is
responsible for leadership and effective running of the Board,
while Mr. Jiang Chaowen, the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for overall management of the Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Policy specifies the director nomination
process and criteria for the identifications, selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company. Details of which are set out in the section headed
“Nomination Policy” of this report.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction
package from the Company Secretary or the lawyer of the
Company on the first occasion of his/her appointment.
This induction package is a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the responsibilities and on-going
obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)(the “Ordinance”), Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO"). In addition, this induction package includes
materials briefly describing the operations and business
of the Company, the latest published financial reports of
the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. Directors are
continuously updated on any major developments of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practices.
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All INEDs were appointed for a specific term, but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or
any other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate
or retire from their office but are eligible for re-election.
Details of the term of appointment of the INEDs are set out
in the section headed “Terms of Office for the Independent
Non-Executive Directors” contained in the Directors’ Report
on pages 78 to 79 of this annual report.

According to the Articles of Association, at each AGM,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation. Further, any Director appointed by the Board to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment whilst for
those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall
then be eligible for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties in accordance with its terms of reference. The duties
of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions
include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and CPD of
Directors and senior management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has performed the corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Investment Committee, the Risks
Management Committee and the Executive Committee, each
of which has its specific written terms of reference. Copies of
minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the committees,
which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required to report
back to the Board on their decisions and recommendations
where appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for
a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section headed “The
Board” of this report, have been adopted for the committee
meetings so far as practicable.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired by the Chairman of
the Board and comprises a majority of INEDs. Currently, the
Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely
Mr. Huang Yu (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), who
is Executive Director, and Mr. Chan Sze Chung, Mr. Zhang
Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, who are INEDs.

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is to
make recommendations to the Board on matters including
nomination and appointment of directors, succession
planning and structure, composition and diversity of the
Board. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and it can seek independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if
considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the
Nomination Committee are included in its terms of reference,
which are available on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary
in accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal
with matters by way of circulation. A Nomination Committee
meeting was held in 2018 and the attendance of each
member is set out in the section headed “The Board” of
this report. In addition to the above-mentioned Nomination
Committee meeting, the Nomination Committee also dealt
with matters by way of circulation during the Year. During
the Year and up to the date of this report, the major work
performed by the Nomination Committee was as follows:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval
of the resignation of non-executive Director and
appointment of Executive Director and the new
compositions of the Executive Committee and the Share
Dealing Committee;
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(ii)
(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

assessed the independence of INEDs;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of
the proposed resolutions for re-election of Directors at
AGMs;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval
of the renewal of an INED’s appointment and relevant
terms of the appointment;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s approval
of the new compositions of the Executive Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Risks Management
Committee and the Share Dealing Committee
subsequent to the resignation of Executive Director;

reviewed the structure, size, composition of the Board
taking into account the board diversity policy of the
Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”);

reviewed the functions/roles of the Board, Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and management;

reviewed the implementation of the nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) and the revisions to the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee and the
Board Diversity Policy; and

adopted the measurable objectives under the Board
Diversity Policy.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy which sets
out the director nomination process and selection criteria to
identify, select and recommend candidates for Directors.

The Director nomination process is as follows:

1.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods
for identifying director candidates, including
recommendations from Board members, management,
and professional search firms. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates
properly submitted by the Shareholders.

All director candidates, including incumbents and
candidates nominated by the Shareholders, are
evaluated by the Nomination Committee based upon
the director qualifications. While director candidates
will be evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination
Committee retains the discretion to establish the relative
weighting of such criteria, which may vary based on the
composition, skill sets, and experiences of the collective
Board rather than on the individual candidate.
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The evaluation of director candidates may include,
without limitation, the following:

review of resume and job history;
- personal interviews;

- verification of professional and personal references;
and

- performance of background checks.

The Board will consider the recommendations of
the Nomination Committee and is responsible for
designating the director candidate(s) to be considered
by the Shareholders for their election at the general
meeting of the Company, or appointing any suitable
candidate to act as Director to fill a Board vacancy or
as an additional Director subject to compliance of the
Articles of Association.

All appointments of Director should be confirmed by
letter of appointment and/or service contract setting out
the key terms and conditions of the appointment of the
Directors.

The selection criteria considered by the Nomination
Committee in evaluating director candidates is as follows:

1.

All director candidates will be evaluated based upon
the director qualifications, skills and experience, gender
diversity, etc. that can add to and complement the
range of skills, experience and background of existing
Directors.

The Nomination Committee considers the following
qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a
director candidate in recommending to the Board
potential new Director, or the continued service of
existing Director:

the highest personal and professional ethics and
integrity;

— proven achievement and competence in the
nominee’s field and the ability to exercise sound
business judgment;

—  the ability to assist and support management and

make significant contributions to the Company’s
success;
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— an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities

that is required of a member of the Board and
the commitment of time and energy necessary to
diligently carry out those responsibilities;

- independence: the independent non-executive

director candidates should meet the
“independence” criteria as required under the
Listing Rules and the composition of the Board is in
conformity with the provisions of the Listing Rules;
and

—  skills that are complementary to those of the

existing Board and the ability to contribute to
the effective carrying out by the Board of the
responsibilities which, in particular, are set out as
follows:

(@) participating in Board meetings to bring an
independent judgement to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

(b) taking the lead where potential conflicts of
interests arise;

(c) ensuring the committees of the Board on
which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by
the Board; and

(d) conforming to any requirement, direction
and regulation that may from time to time
be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the Articles of Association or imposed
by legislation or the Listing Rules, where
appropriate.

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum
criteria for director candidate, although the Nomination
Committee may also consider such other factors as it
may deem are in the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders.
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Board Diversity

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The
Nomination Committee has been in charge of the review of
the Board Diversity Policy. The Board Diversity Policy sets out
the objectives and principles regarding board diversity for the
purpose of achieving the Company’s strategic objectives of
balanced diversity at the Board as far as practicable.

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity criteria, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, knowledge, professional
experience and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on
merit and the contribution that the selected candidates may
bring to the Board.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives under
the Board Diversity Policy for the Year. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and discuss any
revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval. The
Nomination Committee also monitors the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
members, namely Mr. Zhang Ruibin (Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan Sze Chung and
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, all being the INEDs.

== — \fF£3% Annual Report 2018 53



BHEREXEBEERAA

Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

PNETTCR
ERER/RE

Corporate Governance Report

FWEE e T ERER/MDE §$&$
SESMEEAB ZARAHMER MR
BALNEMEAGIAR 2 =T MEES
RbZZ -FHEZE ST HERMAE
EZH - ARERE FEN K RIS IR o Fr
MEZEeREERAMERABITERS -
W ARAR ﬂZﬁ%Eﬁ%%%@ﬁ%ﬁ
EXER -FHEEE T EAHE LB
BN ERESLE R - % B E D R

R RARBEEZBUERNEH -

RiEBEEE FHEES5FAED
B —REH - \_E*AE'?Méé
SELRTMAEH  BRAKBEZHEBR

ERARE[EETE | —HR o bx Ll 3 B
ZEZER)  NAFEN HIWES S
MEBEEERXH T AREEE - RAE
ERARBEAREBMIE FHEEE
BT TSIt T

() BHREZREFTSHENTATES
ZH S

(iy BHLEZRESSRAEETERAKE
@ﬁ%ﬁA%Zﬁﬁ%Mﬁ%&%
B R

(i) BRRERESTSHEEERAEE
SREBAEBHEE T —tF+—A
=T+ BHIEFEZHMNEFE - AR
TESAFEZH IR -

BRESKEREDNCEZREFTRNEF
ZERBFAG LIREMRILE -RE=
Z BN R MRS e TR F 2 BN
@M@%%I#ﬁﬁ%%ZEﬁ%%E%
RiIERESBZRBBENEIREE 2
%é%ﬁﬁ#% WARHINE B 22
REE=GHE ESFHH 2 FBHRA
Eﬁ%ﬁZ“AW%ﬁ§W%m'ﬁ§$

RE T N\EhHREANEEE AR
%a%mz S TEEME 2BBHEBIE
REZERE(EFEHE IAWRE - K
5 80 37 BN 36 2 5% 18 7 A 2 9 5820
B2 EREmNMON A2 [ 188 N
BR]—&A -

54 == — &%} Annual Report 2018

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Group and other matters relating to
remuneration. The remuneration of all Directors is subject
to regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee
to ensure that their remuneration and compensation are
reasonable. The Remuneration Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and it can seek
independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions
of the Remuneration Committee are included in its terms of
reference, which are available on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year
in accordance with its terms of reference. Two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held in 2018 and the attendance
of each member is set out in the section headed “The
Board” of this report. In addition to the above Remuneration
Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee also dealt
with matters by way of circulation during the Year. During
the Year and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board'’s approval of
the remuneration package of new Executive Director;

(ii) reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval of
the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group; and

(iii) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval
of the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017, and the salary increments of the
Executive Directors for the Year.

Each Director will be entitled to a Director's fee which is
to be proposed for the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM
each year. Further remuneration payable to the Directors
(including any service fees of the INEDs) for their additional
responsibilities and services will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their respective employment
contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on
the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee. Details
of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report while
detailed changes in the emoluments of certain Directors since
the date of the 2018 Interim Report of the Company and up
to the date of this report were also disclosed in the “Changes
in Directors’ Information” of the Directors’ Report. Details of
the remuneration policy of the Group are also set out in the
"Employees and Remuneration Policies” section contained in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on page 20 of this
annual report.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management of
the Group (other than the Directors) during the Year by band
is set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently consists of three INEDs,
namely Mr. Chan Sze Chung (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack. To
retain independence and objectivity, it is chaired by an INED
with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The primary duty of the Audit Committee is to assist the
Board in its oversight of the completeness, accuracy and
fairness of the financial statements of the Company, the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and internal
control systems, the independence of the external auditor and
the performance and effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit and compliance function. The Audit Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and
it can seek independent professional advice according to the
Company'’s policy if considered necessary. The major roles and
functions of the Audit Committee are included in its terms of
reference, which are available on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee
meetings were held during the Year and the attendance of
each member is set out in the section headed “The Board”
of this report. In addition to the above Audit Committee
meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by
way of circulation during the Year.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees

proposed by the external auditor in respect of the final
audit for the Year (the “2018 Final Audit”) of the Group;
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(ii)

(iii)

(vii)

reviewed the independent review report/audit
completion report from the external auditor and the
management'’s response in relation to the final audit for
the year ended 31 December 2017, the interim results
review for the six months ended 30 June 2018 (the
“2018 Interim Period”) and the 2018 Final Audit;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of
the financial reports for the year ended 31 December
2017, for the 2018 Interim Period and for the Year
together with the relevant management representation
letters and announcements;

reviewed the internal control review reports/summary
prepared by the Internal Audit Department (the “IAD")
and external consultants respectively, and instructed that
the issues raised would be addressed and managed by
the management;

reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval of
the updated report on substantiation of the resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget; and

reviewed and recommended for the Board’'s annual
review of the connected transaction policies, the related
party transaction policies and procedures, the whistle
blower policy, the policy on the disclosure of inside
information and the code of conduct and compliance
manual.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently consists of two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Huang Yu (Chairman of the Executive
Committee) and Mr. Jiang Chaowen.

The Executive Committee is vested by the Board with all the
general powers of management and control of the activities
of the Group, save for those matters which are reserved for
the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written
terms of reference of the Executive Committee.
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The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to
discuss the operating affairs of the Group and may also deal
with matters by way of circulation. The Executive Committee
is mainly responsible for undertaking and supervising the
day-to-day management and is empowered to:

(i) formulate and implement policies for the business
activities, internal control and administration of the
Group; and

(i)  plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the
business activities of the Group within the overall
strategy of the Group as determined by the Board.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry
made by the Company, that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the
Year. Relevant employees who, because of their office in the
Company, are likely to be in possession of inside information
have been requested to comply with the provisions of the
Model Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing,
with the support from the finance department of the
Company, the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Ordinance have been complied
with. The Directors believe that they have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made
judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable
and ensure the consolidated financial statements are prepared
on a going concern basis. The reporting responsibilities of the
Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 91 to
98 of this annual report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

1.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Through
establishing the Audit Committee, Risks Management
Committee and the Risk Management Team under it,
the Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and performs
its obligations of continuously supervising and managing
the design, implementation and monitoring of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Risks Management Committee currently consists of
four members, namely Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack (Chairman
of the Risks Management Committee), Mr. Chan Sze
Chung and Mr. Zhang Ruibin, who are the INEDs, and
Mr. Huang Yu, who is the Executive Directors.

During the Year, the Group has engaged an external
consultant to assist in the assessment of risk
management and performance of internal audit services,
perform the internal audit function of the Group and
conduct annual review according to the requirements of
the CG Code, and report to the Board the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the Year.

Risk management process

The Group's risk management uses a blended top-down
and bottom-up approach for identifying risks. Through
identifying the internal and external sources of risks in
the existing business of the Group (including cement,
medical and fitness businesses), the known possible
risk events and their areas of impact are assessed. The
identified risks of the Group are categorised into 4 main
areas which involve financial, operational, reputation
and human resources. A discussion of the policies and
procedures on the management of each of the major
types of risk which the Group is facing is included in the
section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in
the Directors’ Report on pages 67 to 68 of this annual
report.
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Risks of the Group are ranked as high, medium or low
levels under risk evaluation in terms of five categories
of consequence and five categories of likelihood of
occurrence. Risk level evaluates the residual risk levels
based on the controlling power of existing controls. The
result from the risk analysis is evaluated to determine
whether or not identified risks are within expected
tolerance levels. Through the risk evaluation, risks are
transferred, eliminated or effectively controlled through
proposed risk mitigation measures. For each proposed
risk mitigation measure based on the results of risk
evaluation, a risk owner is designated to follow up the
risk treatment, and an expected completion date of
the relevant mitigation measure should be assigned to
ensure accountability for risk mitigation. The relevant
information of risk evaluation is documented in the top
risk records of the Group, which are put together and
escalated to the Risks Management Committee and the
Board for discussion and approval after the risk registers
are being provided by the operating subsidiaries and
consolidated by the Risk Management Team.

The roles and responsibilities of operating subsidiaries,
the Risk Management Team, Risks Management
Committee and the Board in risk management are as
follows:

Summary of the works of risks managements from
operating subsidiaries to the Risk Management Team:

o Prepares and updates the risk register of the
operating subsidiaries annually

° Follows up the remediation status of the proposed
risk mitigation measure documented in the top risk

records semi-annually

o Identifies any significant risks from operating
subsidiaries semi-annually

o Real-time monitors any risks that exceed the risk
appetite of the Group

Summary of the works of risks managements from
the Risk Management Team to the Risks Management

Committee and the Board:

o Reviews the remediation status of top risks annually
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] Reviews any updates to the risk universe annually

o Updates the risk management policy, including risk
assessment criteria annually

o Reviews top risk identification including top risk
dashboard, risk universe and top risk records
annually

] Real-time monitors any risks that exceed the risk
appetite of the Group

Internal Audit

Internal Audit plays an important role in internal
control, which is to assist the Audit Committee and
report the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems. During the year, the Group has engaged an
external consultant to provide internal audit services.
The Company sets up a three-year internal audit work
plan with the external consultant according to the risk
evaluation results. The external consultant conducted
the internal audit projects for the Year in accordance
to the approved audit work plan, understanding the
operation processes of the proposed scope review
through interviews with the management and/or the
responsible person for the processes during on-site
review; performed walk-through tests for relevant
internal control system processes; assessed the
effectiveness of the design of the internal control system
and confirmed its weaknesses, and provided suggestions
for improvement; and making enquiries to the
management and person in charge of the process and
reviewing relevant documents to understand and analyse
the implementation situation of review suggestions
stated in the 2017 internal audit report but have yet
to be rectified. The above scope of work and review
method have been confirmed and approved by the Audit
Committee.

Through the internal control review report for the
Year provided by the external consultant, the Audit
Committee and the Board analysed the internal control
findings, suggestions and assessed the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the internal audit function. The issues
raised in the internal control review report would be
promptly addressed and more strongly managed by the
management, and the Audit Committee and the Board
are satisfied that there are adequate risk management
and internal control systems in the Company.
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4. Annual confirmation

The Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss;
to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives. It has a key role
in the management of risks that are significant to the
fulfilment of business objectives. The Board, through
the Audit Committee and with the assistance of the IAD
and the external consultant, conducted risk management
and internal control reviews of the business operations
for the Year and considered it to be effective and
adequate for the Year. The management has provided a
confirmation to the Risks Management Committee (and
the Board) on the effectiveness of these systems for the
Year.

Handling and dissemination of inside
information

The Company has a policy with regard to the principles
and procedures for handling and disseminating the inside
information of the Company in compliance with the
requirements under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing
Rules. The policy regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information, which includes:

o Designated reporting channel for relevant officers in
possession of potential inside information to notify
the persons designated by the Board (the “Designated
Persons”);

o Designated Persons to assess the potential inside
information and provide advice, and where appropriate,
to escalate such information for the attention of the
Board to resolve on further actions so as to comply with
applicable laws and regulations; and

° Restrictive access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
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External Auditor's Remuneration

The remuneration paid/payable to the Group’s external
auditor in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the Year is set out as follows:

FHBxT
HK$'000
RASEREME 2 RS Services rendered for the Group
% EAR Audit services 3,500
IEZ SR 75 Non-audit services (including review of
(BEEHTEESE R EM) interim results and others) 1,250
st Total 4,750
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Si Tou Man Wai is the Company Secretary and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. Ms. Si Tou's brief
biographical details are set out in the “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” section in the Director’s
Report on page 76 of this annual report.

Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules stipulates that an issuer’s
company secretary is required to take no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training in each financial year. Ms. Si
Tou has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the Shareholders in a timely manner through
a number of formal channels which include interim and
annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and
news are also made available on the website of the Company.

In addition to publication of information, the general
meetings of the Company provide important opportunities
for constructive communication between the Board and the
Shareholders.
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The 2018 AGM was held on 6 June 2018. The Chairman
of the Board took the chair of the 2018 AGM to ensure
Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. The
chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee were also
present thereat to answer any question to ensure effective
communication with the Shareholders. The attendance record
of the Directors at the AGM is set out in the section headed
“The Board” of this report.

The chairman of any independent Board committee formed
as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such
chairman is appointed, at least a member of the independent
Board committee) should also be available to answer
guestions of the Shareholders at any general meeting to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that
is subject to independent Shareholders’ approval.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meeting
for each substantial issue, including but not limited to the
re-election of Directors and the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the independent auditor of the
Company.

The notice to Shareholders is sent at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting in the case of AGM and at least
10 clear business days in case of all other general meetings.
An explanation of the detailed procedures of conducting a
poll is provided to the Shareholders at the commencement
of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions from the
Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll
results are published in the manner prescribed under the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company can request the convening
of an extraordinary general meeting according to Article 64
of the Articles of Association by written requisition, with
stated business proposed to be transacted, which must
be validly served at the head office and principal place of
business of the Company registered in Hong Kong (the
“Head Office”) or at Tricor Secretaries Limited, the branch
share registrar of the Company (the “Registration Office”).
Besides, Shareholders may make a proposal at a Shareholders’
meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office in the form of a
proposed resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out
the proposal for discussion and be relevant to the Company’s
business scope.
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The Board has established a shareholders’ communication
policy. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board to
the Head Office for the attention of the Board in written
form, which shall state the nature of the enquiry and the
reason for making the enquiry. In addition, Shareholders can
contact the Registration Office for any questions about their
shareholdings.

As regards a proposed election of a person as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company at
http://www.tfkf.com.hk.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its directors and
officers.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
posted its Articles of Association on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the Year, no
amendments were made to the constitutional documents of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Yu
Chairman

29 March 2019
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Directors’ Report

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
presents their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and details of its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 55 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

The Group's revenue for the Year was derived mainly from
activities carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), Singapore and Taiwan. An analysis of the Group's
revenue for the Year set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM ISSUE OF NEW SHARES

On 23 January 2018, the Company and THTF Energy-Saving
Holdings Limited (the “Subscriber”) entered into a
subscription agreement pursuant to which the Subscriber
conditionally agreed to subscribe and the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 400,000,000 shares
of the Company (the “Share(s)”) (the “Subscription”) at
the subscription price of HK$0.5 per subscription Share.
The aggregate nominal value of such subscription shares
amounted to HK$800,000. The issue price of HK$0.5 per
subscription Share was identical to the closing price of HK$0.5
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 23 January
2018, being the date of the subscription agreement. The
Subscription was completed on 13 February 2018 and the
gross proceeds raised from it amounted to approximately
HK$201.3 million. After deducting the relevant expenses,
the net proceeds raised from the Subscription amounted to
approximately HK$200.5 million.

The Company had applied HK$119.0 million for the
settlement of part of the consideration payable for the
acquisition of remaining 40% equity interest in Tongfang
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd* (RIS BEX £ BB R Q 7))
("Tongfang Pharmaceutical”) by the Group. Details of this
acquisition were disclosed in the paragraph headed “Material
Acquisitions” on page 18 of this annual report. It was
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23
January 2018 that the remaining net proceeds will be used
for general corporate and business development and general
working capital.
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As at 31 December 2018, the remaining net proceeds from
the Subscription had been utilized in the following manner:

(i)  as to approximately HK$39.3 million in the repayment of
bank borrowings on 27 August 2018;

(i) as to approximately HK$20.0 million in the investment in
a financial asset on 30 November 2018; and

(iii) as to approximately HK$22.2 million in the settlement of
general working capital during the Year.

Details of the transactions were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company respectively dated 23
January 2018, 13 February 2018, 16 March 2018 and 3 May
2018 and the circular dated 27 February 2018.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on pages 99 to 100 of
this annual report and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend
for the Year (2017: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the Company’s reserves during the Year are set out
in note 54 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment totalling approximately HK$58.3 million.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” respectively from pages 5 to 7, pages
8 to 20 and pages 21 to 41 of this annual report and
the paragraphs below. The discussion and analysis in the
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
form part of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Medical, Pharmaceutical and Health Business

The risks exposed to the medical, pharmaceutical and
health business of the Group mainly arise from the impact
of macroeconomic policies. With the deepened reform
of the PRC's medical system involving adjustments to the
organizational structure at national regulatory level and
medical insurance policies as well as reform of all aspects
in relation to drugs, every sector within the pharmaceutical
system faces uncertainty. The Group needs to implement
practical and effective measures in a timely manner in
response to new external changes. Ineffective measures or
untimely responses may bring corresponding risks.

Fitness Business

The fitness, yoga and wellness markets in Singapore, the PRC
and Taiwan in 2018 (the markets in which the Group operates
fitness and yoga centres) experienced much changes. The
changes in each territory have been different, and at different
paces.

In Singapore, the top international fitness and yoga centre
operators have large established centres, and are in direct
competition with the Group. All of the larger fitness and yoga
centre operators compete mainly on pricing and to a lesser
extent, service offerings. The most significant change in the
market is the increase in the number of boutique and smaller
fitness and yoga centres, and the increasing popularity of
these. Mobile apps that allow subscribers to go to various
boutique and smaller fitness and yoga centres have also
gained popularity. Collectively, these have chipped away at
the number of members that go to larger fitness and yoga
centres.
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The changes in the market in Xiamen are different. There are
very few international fitness and yoga operators, however,
due to the attractiveness of being able to collect prepaid
term membership fees, and low barrier to entry, many local
participants have set up large new fitness centres with new
equipment and facilities. These are in direct competition with
the Group. Smaller boutique fitness centres have also been
set up in the area, but they are not the greatest threat to the
business of the Group in the PRC.

The changes to fitness and yoga landscape in Taiwan are
again different. There are only 3 top fitness and yoga centre
brands in Taiwan including the Group’s, and all are local.
However, boutique and small fitness and yoga centres have
been opening up, and the Group needs to keep an eye on
these new entrants.

The management of the Group’s fitness and yoga centres
in all of the above 3 regions is putting together a strategy
to deal with the changes effectively in each region, and to
minimise the impact of these changes.

Cement Business

The cement business of the Group are mainly conducted
in the PRC, the economic conditions in the PRC have a
significant impact on the operating results and financial
conditions for the cement business of the Group. The Group’s
average selling price of cement products fluctuates along with
demand and supply of the PRC cement market. Moreover,
the cement industry is highly competitive in the PRC. The
cement business of the Group competes with its competitors
for customers, raw materials, energy resources, distribution
network and skilled labour force. Although, the Group cannot
control market conditions but it believes that it has effective
measures in place to respond to changes. The Group will
continue to focus on the basis of pricing of our products, our
service, variety of product offerings, access to resources, sales
and marketing, network, production efficiency and brand
image to mitigate and control the various risks.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, a
discussion of the policies and procedures on the management
of each of the major types of financial risks which the Group
is facing is included in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to
the Group. The Executive Committee is responsible for
reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, with
the support and assistance of the legal consultants of the
Company and the company secretarial department.

Details of compliance with relevant laws and regulations are
set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 21 to 41 of this annual report.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Details of relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are set out in “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 21 to 41 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Company’s share option scheme as disclosed
under note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Particulars of the share award scheme of the Company
(“Share Award Scheme”) are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration offered to the employees of the Group
generally includes salaries, medical benefits and bonus on a
performance related basis. The emoluments of the Directors
are recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company and are decided by the Board, as authorized by
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) at
the annual general meeting, having regard to the Group's
operating results, the Directors’ individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
amended and restated articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Bank and other borrowings of the Group which are repayable
within one year are classified as current liabilities. Repayment
analysis of bank and other borrowings of the Group is set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report. The Group had not capitalised any interest
during the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results as well as the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
288 of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Yu (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Chaowen (chief executive officer of the Company
(the “Chief Executive Officer”))
(Date of appointment: 23 January 2018)

Mr. Ng Qing Hai
(Date of resignation: 3 September 2018)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sze Chung
Mr. Zhang Ruibin
Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Huang Yu and Mr. Chan Sze Chung shall retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 11 June 2019 (the “2019 AGM").

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Huang Yu, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director
(the "Executive Director”) and Chairman of the Board on
15 March 2014 and 24 July 2014, respectively. Mr. Huang
was also appointed as a chairman of each of the executive
committee, nomination committee, share dealing committee
and investment committee of the Company and a member of
the risks management committee of the Company. He is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Huang
obtained a master’s degree in science from the University of
Greenwich. He is the chairman of the board of directors of
Shenzhen Huakong Seg Co., Ltd.* (RIIFEZEBIKEHD AR
A a]) (stock code: 68), the issued shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an executive director of
Shenzhen Aorongxin Investment Development Co., Ltd.* (%
P RBEEREEREEGRAQA) (“Shenzhen Aorongxin®),
the chairman of supervisory committee of Penghua Fund
Management Co., Ltd* (J§ZEE & EE B R A a)) and the
vice chairman and president of Tsinghua Tongfang Co.,
Ltd.* (B A& % B R 2 Al) (“Tsinghua Tongfang”) (stock
code: 600100), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Huang is also the chairman
and a non-executive director of Neo-Neon Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1868), the issued shares of which are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), and a non-executive director of Technovator
International Limited (stock code: 1206), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Jiang Chaowen, aged 53, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director on 11 December
2017 and 23 January 2018 respectively. He was also
appointed as a member of the executive committee and
share dealing committee of the Company. He joined the
Group in July 2016, and is currently the president of
Tongfang Pharmaceutical and the chairman of SPF (Beijing)
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* (Hf B & (It =) £MHIMTE R R 7)),
Chongging Kangle Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (EERELREA
R 2 |]), Shaanxi Unisplendour Life Care Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.* (BEAARYRIBEEZE B A F]) and Huakong Innovation
(Beijing) Institute of Pharmaceutical Research Co., Ltd.* (¥
R (dE ) ZY B B R A7), all of which are the
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jiang graduated from the
School of Business Administration of Chongging University
with a postgraduate degree. He further studied at the Party
School of Chinese Communist Party of Chongging City,
Tsinghua University, Southwest China Normal University, and
Chongging University etc. during working time. Mr. Jiang is
currently a director of Chongging Jewelland Pharmaceutical
Co, Ltd.* (EEREBEMEER 25 and Si Chuan
Jewelland Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (FHJIIfERERZEH R QD
A]). Prior to joining the Group, he held positions of general
manager and chairman in various companies, including
The First South-west Pharmaceutical Factory* (7 g & %%
—) (Chongging Qingyang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* (&
B &2 AR AR and Chongging Jiachen Biological
Engineering Co., Ltd.* (EEERAEYM TIZEBR A F]). He has
nearly 31 years of extensive management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Sze Chung, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director (the “INED"”) on 20 December 2011.
He entered into a new appointment letter with the Company
on 11 December 2017 upon the expiry of previous terms with
a term from 18 January 2018 until 17 January 2020. He is
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of each
of the remuneration committee, nomination committee, risks
management committee and investment committee of the
Company. He graduated from the University of Wales with
a bachelor of arts degree in accounting and finance in July
1991 and obtained a master of arts degree in accounting
and finance at the University of Lancaster in December 1992.
Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Besides,
he is also recognised as a chartered financial analyst by
the CFA Institute of the United States of America. Prior to
joining the Company, he acted as the chief financial officer
(from December 2009 to August 2010) of Coolpoint Energy
Limited (now known as Viva China Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 8032), the issued shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange, as the acting chief financial officer (from
September 2008 to March 2009) of Nam Tai Electronic &
Electrical Products Limited, the issued shares of which were
previously listed on the Stock Exchange, and as the vice chief
financial officer (from March 2009 to November 2009) of
Nam Tai Electronics, Inc. (now known as Nam Tai Property
Inc.) (NYSE: NTP), the issued shares of which are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange. During the period from January
1993 to August 1997, Mr. Chan was employed by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and served as a senior accountant at the
time of his resignation.

—Z— \fF£3] Annual Report 2018 73



BHEREXEBEERAA

Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

EEEHRE

Directors’ Report

REW BREFO+AK R —W0F+t
At NHEZEABIYIERNTTES - K
EENMEZTAEARRZTMEESE
ELREZEZESZ REZEL RERER
ZEEURKREZESEEIKE - K%
ERFBEFRERTEBLEN - F AT
BARKERFBARRITS AT
BLEFFTEAE - BRI FMSFHAD
HESEER HEEREATERT
BB S F RN ~ The Association for
Financial ProfessionalsZ & & 1% BB 81 &
BN c RELERRHESERGRRE
—EBNPEARBTEURIARE=F
HoRAELEATRENFABREREGR
EERRIIIEPES - [RAUENEEEINET
BEROERAR (KRB EITRMHNR LEE
HFR LT RHAKHE - 600395) 2 1&
VEE(BEZZE—=ZFRA+/\AEE_Z
—tF=ZA=-+=81H) (IlB_T—WF
tAZTHRHREFEIRE (SB) BHER
HBERAR (HEBTRONARIBESFRX S
BT £ - B ASE 1 000733) 2 BUEE
(IB-E—NFLA+-_BREEMNBR
ENRNHBRAR (KB BITRONRIIE
HR LT RHAOKHE - 002039) 2 5&
YEE (WVBEZZE—A"F=ZATHEEZ
TREMNABRESMERKOAER QA
(HEBETRONFINBEZ G LT - &
P - 002037) 2 BIEF : k(B =
E-RELtAT+t-AREFILREEAOH
EREBRARIZHITES -

74 == — \FF% Annual Report 2018

Zhang Ruibin, aged 46, was appointed as an INED on 24
July 2014. Mr. Zhang was also appointed as the chairman of
the remuneration committee and a member of each of the
audit committee, nomination committee, risks management
committee and investment committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhang holds a doctoral degree in statistics from the
Xiamen University. He was a postdoctoral research fellow at
the Renmin University of China and & B A R IR 1T & @R 75 AT
He obtained a qualification of nonpracticing certified public
accountant in China. He was qualified as a senior economist
by E®&A AZEE. He was qualified as a certified treasury
professional of The Association for Financial Professionals. He
has been awarded the research project second prize by The
Securities Association of China and the key research project
third prize by the People’s Bank of China. Mr. Zhang is an
external director of Moutai Group Company Limited* ([
EMNFEBMEBBFREML2RA]). Mr. Zhang has been (i) an
independent director of Guizhou Panjiang Refined Coal Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 600395), the issued shares of which are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from 18 May 2013 to
23 March 2017; (ii) an independent director of China Zhenhua
(Group) Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000733),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, since 25 July 2014; (iii) an independent director
of Guizhou Qianyuan Power Co., Ltd (stock code: 002039),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, since 12 September 2014; (iv) an independent
director of Guizhou Jiulian Industrial Explosive Materials
Development Co., Ltd (stock code: 002037), the issued
shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
since 10 March 2016; and (v) an executive director of Beijing
Wudaokou Education & Technology Co., Ltd.* (b = 8 02
BRI AR Q) since 22 July 2016.
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Zhang Junxi Jack, aged 55, was appointed as an INED
on 21 August 2015. Mr. Zhang was also appointed as the
chairman of the risks management committee and a member
of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated
from the Nankai University with a bachelor degree in Physics
in July 1983. He obtained a master of business administration
degree established jointly by the Ministry of Education of
the People’s Republic of China (formerly known as the State
Education Commission of the People’s Republic of China),
Nankai University and Canadian International Development
Agency in July 1986. Mr. Zhang also obtained a doctoral
degree in the Department of Economics at the University of
Pittsburgh in the United States in August 1992. Mr. Zhang
has over 20 years of experience in the field of economics,
financial and business management, and mainly engaged
in teaching and research work in the aspect of Monetary
Economics and Finance. Mr. Zhang has been an independent
director of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd. since February 2013,
the vice principal of the Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics since December 2011 and a part-time professor
of China Center for Economic Research in Peking University
since September 2000. From April 2007 to March 2010,
he was an investment strategy and development analyst of
Binhai Investment Company Limited (stock code: 2886), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
From August 1992 to August 1995, Mr. Zhang taught in
the Department of Economics of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong, and he was engaged in teaching and researching
at the University of Dundee in the United Kingdom from
August 1995 to July 1997. Mr. Zhang taught in the National
University of Singapore from July 1997 to August 1998.
From September 1998 to August 2012, he has been a
doctoral tutor in the School of Economics and Finance at
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is an internationally
well-known financial economist, he has been the dean of the
China Academy of Finance and Development at the Central
University of Finance and Economics from September 2006
to August 2009 and the dean of the Institute of Finance and
Development at the Nankai University from September 2009
to April 2012.
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Senior Management

Si Tou Man Wai, aged 41, was appointed as the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of the Company
on 7 November 2014. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Si Tou holds a master of
commerce degree in funds management and a bachelor
of commerce degree in accounting and finance from the
University of New South Wales. She is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia. Ms. Si Tou has more than 18 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, financing, and financial advisory
services including mergers and acquisitions, valuation and
corporate restructuring, gained from both professional
firm and listed company. Prior to joining the Company, she
worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong. From 29
June 2015 to 26 September 2016, she was an independent
non-executive director of Pak Wing Group (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 8316), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Leung Ka Yip Danny, aged 37, joined the Company in
July 2016. He is the financial controller of the Company
and also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Leung was graduated from the University of Toronto with
a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration in Accounting.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Certified Management
Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, he worked
at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Hong Kong as an audit
manager. Mr. Leung has extensive experiences in the field of
accounting, auditing and financial management.

Cao Jie, aged 50, joined the Group in July 2016. He is a
director and the general manager of Huakong Innovation
(Beijing) Institute of Pharmaceutical Research Co., Ltd.*(ZE
ERIF (b R) Wb B R A A, a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Cao obtained his undergraduate degree
in Chinese Medicine from the Tianjin University of
Traditional Chinese Medicine in the year of 1992. He has
accumulated nearly 27 years of experience in the medical
and pharmaceutical industry working for, amongst others,
biotechnology companies and pharmaceutical science and
technology companies where he has acted as a research and
development director for approximately 15 years.
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Ng Qing Hai, aged 62, was appointed as a Director in March
2011, was re-designated as an Executive Director in December
2011. He resigned as an Executive Director on 3 September
2018 but remained as a senior management member of the
Group. He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Ng completed a three-year course in finance
and accounting in building materials industry in the faculty
of enterprises management at Shanghai Institute of Building
Materials Industry in 1983. He is a non-practising member of
The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng
was the 6th vice chairman of Shanghai Cement Industrial
Association of the PRC, and was a fellow member of the
Asian Knowledge Management Association from November
2005 to November 2006. He was appointed as a member
of 11th Shandong Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference in January 2013.
Mr. Ng was appointed as a director (on 27 June 2014) and
the general manager (on 21 December 2015) of Grand Ocean
Retail Group Limited (security code: 5907), the issued shares
of which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, and the
president (on 21 December 2015) and the director as well as
the chairman (on 18 October 2016) of its subsidiary, Grand
Ocean Department Stores Group Ltd. He is a director of First
Steamship Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2601), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, with effect
from 11 July 2016. Mr. Ng is a younger brother of Mr. Huang
Wuhu, a member of the senior management of the Group.

Huang Wuhu, aged 66, joined the Group in June 2001, is
a director and the general manager of Shandong Shanghai
Allied Cement Co., Ltd. (“Shandong SAC") and the chairman
of Shandong Allied Wangchao Cement Limited (“Allied
Wangchao"”), both of which are subsidiaries of the Company.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang worked for various
unions in Nan’an City of Fujian province, the PRC, now known
as Fujian Nan’an Rural Cooperative Bank, for more than
twenty years. He was a registered planner in the PRC and
was qualified as a finance economist and was also qualified
as an international senior occupation manager by the China
Manager Society. Mr. Huang was a Member of the Standing
Committee of the 7th to 9th Zaozhuang Committee of the
China People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is an
elder brother of Mr. Ng Qing Hai, a member of the senior
management of the Group.
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Li Chao, aged 56, joined the Group in February 2002. He is
currently the financial controller and a director of Shanghai
Allied Cement Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai SAC") and also a director
of Allied Wangchao, both of which are subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li completed a three-year course in finance
and accounting in building materials industry in the faculty
of enterprises management at the Shanghai Institute of
Building Materials Industry in 1983. In 2001, he completed
a three-year part-time post-graduate course in economic
management at Party School of Chinese Communist Party
of Hubei province, the PRC. Mr. Li was qualified as a senior
accountant by the Professional Title Reform Office of Hubei
province in 1996.

Yu Zhong, aged 56, was appointed a Director of the
Company in March 2011 and was re-designated as an
Executive Director of the Company from December 2011 to
15 March 2014. He joined Shanghai SAC in December 1993
and is currently a director and the vice general manager of
Shanghai SAC, and has been a director of Allied Wangchao
since December 2003. He served as the deputy general
manager of Shandong SAC, for the period from June 2001
to July 2004. Mr. Yu completed a two-and-a-half-year
course in cement craftsmanship at the Shanghai School of
Building Materials in 1982 and in 1988, he graduated from
the Shanghai Light Industry Authority Workers College in
industrial enterprise management. In 1993, Shanghai Building
Material Authority certified that Mr. Yu was qualified as an
economist.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Sze Chung was appointed for a specific term of two
years, which shall continue until 17 January 2020 but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or
retire from their office.
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For Mr. Zhang Ruibin and Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack, their terms
of appointment shall be three years, which commenced on 24
July 2017 and 21 August 2018 respectively and are subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or
retire from their office.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions
in the Shares and underlying shares of the Directors and
chief executive as at 31 December 2018.

R& & E
Number of Shares
BREMNA
(FiEE2) BRFERAD L
BAER NGIE Number of Approximate
EEgE Personal Corporate  share options #5  percentage of
Name of Directors Interests Interests (Note 2) Total  shareholdings
L)
Huang Yu = 3,172,778,000 — 3,172,778,000 56.77%
(BtzE1)
(Note 1)
BE#X
Jiang Chaowen - - 12,000,000 12,000,000 0.21%
[y
Chan Sze Chung - - 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
R Im it
Zhang Ruibin = = 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%
RKES
Zhang Junxi Jack = = 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.02%

—Z— \FEF 3R Annual Report 2018

79



BHEREXEBEERAA

Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

EEEHRE

Directors’ Report

B &E -
(1) R-ZE—N\FE+-A=+—8 ZFakt4k
HH R REEEME AR9% 2 % -
MENRBEEE R T ERRTEESE
ARAE (RYIZERE] FMEER2%
2@ RNERREBEMB R AE
REEAEERE (8 BRAR ([FaFx
EADBETEREEEEREARAA
([ EIEER]) BE&EITIRA100% 2 #Eas ©
A R B i 5 53,172,778,000/ f% 1D 2
ExnMAAN  WMEMLEREARTHR
REFEZRDPERELS -
BHRE—SFHE FHL2HEARRBEHA
—E-XELtA+-AZRAERAE
R A B IS KM FE3S -

(b) 3RS EE > M

)

Notes:

)

As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Huang Yu owned 99% interests
in the registered capital of Shenzhen Aorongxin and Shenzhen
Aorongxin owned 52% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty Asset Management Co., Ltd.* CEIITERZ
BEEBEABMRAF) (“Shenzhen Waranty”). Shenzhen Waranty,
through its subsidiary, namely Waranty Assets Management (HK)
Limited (“Waranty Hong Kong”), owned 100% interests in the
issued share capital of China Health Management Investment
Limited (“China Health”). Since China Health is the beneficial
owner of 3,172,778,000 Shares, Mr. Huang Yu was deemed
interested in the Shares held by China Health.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 July 2016
and note 38 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report for further details.

(b) Interest in associated corporation

IHEBER

EEBNEI

Approximate

percentage

HBEE S8 of interest in

= Name of g4 the associated

Name of Director associated corporation Capacity corporation

A RINEEAS EREAA 99%
Huang Yu Shenzhen Aorongxin Beneficial owner

Bt & - Note:

RZZB-N\F+ZA=1+—8B Eak*E#s
RYREEFEMEZAN99% 2 #E - M RYI Rl
ERARNERFIMERS2% 2 s o FI
ERFARENBARERZEEHETERE
BEBEITRA100% 2 #1 - PEEREERSE
3,172,778,0000% A% 1% °

BREXFBEEEN R-T—N\F+_A
=T B ARAEFIHZHTHRABR
MESAZBEABMERANR R R H AR
ZE(EERLBH MAEHRAIFEXVER) 25X
-~ HERDRESTHEEETMNDRER
ARAEIRIEREZ R AR RAIFE 3521667 2
BELMA - HRBEFETRIE MG KA T
KB R 2 eSS BORR ©

As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Huang Yu owned 99% interests in the
registered capital of Shenzhen Aorongxin and Shenzhen Aorongxin
owned 52% interests in the registered capital of Shenzhen Waranty.
Shenzhen Waranty, through its subsidiary, Waranty Hong Kong, owned

100%

interests in the issued share capital of China Health. China Health

directly held 3,172,778,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in
the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which were recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following
Director has declared interests in the following businesses
(other than those businesses where the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the
Company and/or any member of the Group) which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the
Year:

Mr. Jiang Chaowen holds directorship in and has interests in
the shares capital of Chongging Jewelland Pharmaceutical Co,
Ltd.* (BB E %2/ % B 2 7). Chongging Jewelland
Pharmaceutical Co, Ltd.* engages in the same businesses
of chemical Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients and their
preparations, antibiotic Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients
and their preparations, whole sales of biochemical drugs and
proprietary Chinese medicines as the Group. In addition,
he holds directorship in Si Chuan Jewelland Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.* (IOl & BEE R A Fl). Si Chuan Jewelland
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* engages in the same businesses
of production and sales of tablets, medical technology
development, and technology transfer and consultations as
the Group.

As the Board is independent of the board of directors of
those companies which engage in the same businesses and
the Director cannot control the Board, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm’s length from the businesses of those companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (not being
the INEDs) had an interest in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group as defined in the Listing Rules during
the Year and up to the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s businesses to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies
was a party or were parties and in which a Director or any
entities connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors and every
one of them is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which the Directors or any of
them, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty in their offices or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of the Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained Directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year which provides appropriate
cover for legal actions brought against the Directors.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate with the exception of granting of share options to
subscribe for Shares under the share option scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or executed during the Year.
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TERFEREMATARGD 2 SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
HRKE PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

IN SHARES

At 31 December 2018, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, the following Shareholders (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company) had 5% or more
interests in the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the

RZZF-—NE+-_A=+—H ARA
EAEZHRSITHRA BT ESTTH
g ATRR (ARAREFRHZITERAR
BRIN) R S AR RE A0 P B B AR iR AR
BES M EGRDIZE3361GET 2B MZ

5%k DA RS - register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:
HE
Long Positions
BABREEI L
Approximate
ik = percentage
BRREHE 5% Number of of interest in
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares shareholding
B R EmEAA 3,172,778,000 56.77%
China Health Beneficial owner (MzE1)
(Note 1)
ERREE REHEE RS 3,172,778,000 56.77%
Waranty Hong Kong Interest of a controlled corporation (MtzE2)
(Note 2)
R YIEE jh 2R REHEEE S 3,172,778,000 56.77 %
Shenzhen Waranty Interest of a controlled corporation (MF3E3)
(Note 3)
A7 & w R ORI ARA A RS E R 3,172,778,000 56.77%
QG221 Interest of a controlled corporation (MtsE4)
Tongfang Financial Holdings Co., (Note 4)
Ltd* (“Tongfang Financial”)
BER G EEIERER AT EnfEBA 513,994,000 9.20%
(FERFETRE]) Beneficial owner (P 7E5)
THTF Energy-Saving Holdings (Note 5)
Limited (“THTF Energy-Saving”)
Resuccess Investments Limited PR A B 513,994,000 9.20%
([Resuccess |) Interest of a controlled corporation (MzE6)
Resuccess Investments Limited (Note 6)
(“Resuccess”)
RARMERAR(TRAFKRG]) XESHEZEER 3,686,772,000 65.97%
Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* Interest of a controlled corporation (MtzE7)
("Tsinghua Tongfang”) (Note 7)
Y| R EE XA E R = 3,172,778,000 56.77%

Shenzhen Aorongxin

Interest of a controlled corporation

(BF5E8)
(Note 8)
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Notes:

Save

The figure refers to the legal and beneficial interest of China Health
in 3,172,778,000 Shares, 3,165,974,000 Shares of which are pledged
to Sun Hung Kai Structured Finance Limited (“SHK Finance”). Under
the SFO, the holding companies of SHK Finance are also deemed to be
interested in these 3,165,974,000 Shares.

Waranty Hong Kong owned 100% interests in the issued share capital
of China Health and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which China Health was interested. The figure refers to the
same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Shenzhen Waranty, through its subsidiary, namely Waranty Hong Kong,
owned 100% interests in the issued share capital of China Health and
was therefore deemed to have an interest in the Shares in which China
Health was interested. The figure refers to the same interests of China
Health in the Shares under the SFO.

Tongfang Financial owned 48% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shenzhen Waranty was interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

The figure refers to the legal and beneficial interest of THTF Energy-
Saving in 513,994,000 Shares.

Resuccess owned 100% interests in the issued share capital of THTF
Energy-Saving and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which THTF Energy-Saving was interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of THTF Energy-Saving in the Shares under the SFO.

Tsinghua Tongfang owned 100% interests in the registered capital of
Tongfang Financial and Resuccess and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the Shares in which Tongfang Financial and Resuccess were
interested.

Shenzhen Aorongxin owned 52% interests in the registered capital of
Shenzhen Waranty and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the
Shares in which Shenzhen Waranty was interested. The figure refers to
the same interests of China Health in the Shares under the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the

Company had not been notified by any person (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associate(s)) of any interest and short position in the Shares
and underlying shares which were required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers were
approximately 39.59% and 52.96% of the Group's sales and
purchases respectively.
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During the Year, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’'s largest customer and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’'s largest supplier were
approximately 29.14% and 39.21% of the Group’s sales and
purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares, had a
beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest suppliers
and customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Pursuant to the general mandate to buy back the Shares
granted by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting
held on 6 June 2018, the Company bought back a total
of 5,292,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange (the “Share
Buy-Back”). The Shares bought back were subsequently
cancelled.

Details of the Share Buy-Back during the Year are summarised
as follows:

B E RS E BRRHZEEE

Number of Purchase price per Share it 8|

A% purchased B& &K Aggregate

Month Shares Highest Lowest price paid

BT 7 TT B TT

HK$ HK$ HK$

LA 5,292,000 0.43 0.31 1,974,870
September

EEZeHERHREBEEARRETRERE
Bz R EBZFBHNRALQRF HH
BZE—NFNASNBZRA%E LUK BH
BZZE—NFALANH  —E—NFENA
tB - Z2E—N\FNALA+H —_E—N\F
hWA+—8B ZZE—N\FhA+ZAK=
TE—NFANATHBZBEEEREK -

B EX RN EITH D < FRE SRR % |
—BRAAREEN AR REMBRAR
BE T N\F+_A=+—RHILHHEH
EBA  HEFERARBEFLEHES

The Board believes the Share Buy-Back would create capital
management benefits to the Shareholders. Details of the
Share Buy-Back were set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 6 September 2018 and the next day
disclosure returns dated 6 September 2018, 7 September
2018, 10 September 2018, 11 September 2018, 12
September 2018 and 14 September 2018.

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Use
of Proceeds from Issue of New Shares”, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The following are the changes in the information of Directors
since the date of the 2018 Interim Report of the Company
and up to the date of this report, which are required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

(1) With effect from 3 September 2018, Mr. Ng Qing Hai
("Mr. Ng”) resigned as an executive Director but he
remains as a senior management member of the Group
overseeing and managing the cement business of the
Group. Mr. Ng also ceased to act as a member of the
executive committee, nomination committee, risks
management committee and share dealing committee of
the Board with effect from the same day.

(2) Director’s salary of Mr. Huang Yu was changed to
HK$715,416 per annum with effect from 1 January
2019.

(3) Director’s salary of Mr. Jiang Chaowen was changed to
HK$1,540,923 per annum with effect from 1 January
2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “related parties” under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of these transactions are disclosed in note
52 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Certain related party transactions as disclosed in
note 52 to the consolidated financial statements constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group has entered into the following
transactions which constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules:

Continuing Connected Transactions

As disclosed in the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 6 May 2017 and 28 July 2017, respectively,
True Fitness Holdings (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. (“True Fitness”),
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as the franchisor and True Concept Ltd.* (2EESfEESE
ERDAR AR (“True Concept”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of True Yoga Holdings Limited (“True Yoga”)
which was ultimately controlled by Mr. Patrick John Wee Ewe
Seng (“Mr. PJW") and owned as to 29% by the Company,
as franchisee have entered into a franchise agreement (the
“Franchise Agreement”) on 29 May 2017 for a initial term
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of 30 years, pursuant to which True Fitness shall grant and
provide True Yoga and its subsidiary with non-transferable
right and license to operate the business of operating and
managing each channel of distribution located within Taiwan
offering merchandise and services for sale by reference to
the system and using the proprietary marks in Taiwan (the
“Franchise Business”) in consideration for the payment of
royalty fee equivalent to 15% of the gross turnover of the
immediately preceding month derived from the Franchise
Business.

Mr. PJW is a substantial shareholder of TFKT True Holdings
which is a subsidiary of the Company by virtue of controlling
over 10% of the voting power at the general meetings of
TFKT True Holdings. Accordingly, Mr. PJW shall become a
connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level and
the transactions contemplated under Franchise Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
5 March 2018, True Fitness and True Concept entered into
a supplemental agreement to the Franchise Agreement
(the “Supplemental Agreement”) and a service agreement
(the “Service Agreement”) appended to the Supplemental
Agreement (the Franchise Agreement, the Supplemental
Agreement and the Service Agreement collectively referred
to as the “Revised Franchise Agreement”) to amend the way
fees are calculated, paid and classified. The amount of fees
to be actually received by True Fitness under the Revised
Franchise Agreement remains unchanged and so thus the
approved annual caps. Amendments are made merely to the
way of calculation and payment of the fee payable under the
Franchise Business such that they will now be classified and
sub-divided as (i) royalty fee under the Franchise Agreement
as amended by the Supplemental Agreement; and (ii) service
fee under the Service Agreement.

During the Year, the actual amount of transactions under the
Franchise Agreement was 57.17 million and was within the
annual cap of HK$91.80 million. To the knowledge of the
Company, True Yoga ceased to be an associate of Mr. PJW
according to the definitions under the Listing Rules with
effect from 14 December 2018. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Revised Franchise Agreement are no
longer the continuing connected transactions of the Company
since 14 December 2018.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the Board, including the INEDs, and have
confirmed that the continuing connected transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or better and according to the agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the
above continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. They have provided a letter to the
Board confirming that nothing has come to their attention
that causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the cap.

Connected Transactions

On 24 April 2018, Shanghai Building Material (Group)
Company Limited* (/&M (@) BR A7) (“Shanghai
Building Material”) and Shanghai SAC entered into an
extension framework agreement (the “Fourth Extension
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the term of
each of the following loans was further extended by one
year beyond the term extended by the extension framework
agreement dated 26 May 2017 (the “Third Extension
Framework Agreement”): (i) On 23 May 2014, Shanghai
SAC, Shanghai Building Material and a bank entered into
an entrusted loan agreement, pursuant to which Shanghai
SAC entrusted the bank to provide an entrusted loan in the
principal amount of RMB54.0 million to Shanghai Building
Material for a term of one year (the “First Loan”). The
maturity date of the First Loan was 26 May 2015; and (ii) On
2 July 2014, Shanghai SAC, Shanghai Building Material and
a bank entered into an entrusted loan agreement, pursuant
to which Shanghai SAC entrusted the bank to provide an
entrusted loan to Shanghai Building Material in the principal
amount of RMB78.0 million for a term of one year (the
“Second Loan”). The maturity date of the Second Loan was
3 July 2015. Pursuant to the Fourth Extension Framework
Agreement, the amount of the Second Loan was reduced
to RMB58 million, the First Loan and the Second Loan are
extended to 29 May 2019 and 28 June 2019, respectively. If
Shanghai SAC does not require Shanghai Building Material
to fully repay the Loan 60 days before the end of the term of
each of the First Loan and the Second Loan, each of the First
Loan and the Second Loan will be automatically extended for
one year.
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Since Shanghai Building Material holds 40% equity interest
in Shanghai SAC which is a subsidiary of the Company,
Shanghai Building Material, as a substantial shareholder
of Shanghai SAC, is therefore a connected person at the
subsidiary level of the Company. Accordingly, the Forth
Extension Framework Agreement constituted a connected
transaction at the subsidiary level of the Company and is
subject to the reporting and announcement, but is exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to (i)
the announcement of the Company dated 23 May 2014 in
relation to the provision of First Loan; (ii) the announcement
of the Company dated 2 July 2014 in relation to the
provision of the Second Loan; (iii) the announcement of
the Company dated 22 May 2015 in relation to the First
Extension Framework Agreement; (iv) the announcement of
the Company dated 27 May 2016 in relation to the Second
Extension Framework Agreement; (v) the announcement of
the Company dated 26 May 2017 in relation to the Third
Extension Framework Agreement, and (vi) the announcement
of the Company dated 24 April 2018 in relation to the Forth
Extension Framework Agreement for further details.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2019 AGM is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 11 June
2019. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the 2019 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 4 June 2019 to Tuesday, 11 June
2019 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered.

In order for the Shareholder to be eligible to attend and vote
at the 2019 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3 June
2019.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$0.3 million
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to 64 of this
annual report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public
float during the Year and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Group’s financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be
proposed at the 2019 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Yu
Chairman

29 March 2019

*  For identification purpose only



Deloitte.

BEFTEZEXKEEARLT

(REFEHEZMALZHERLA])
HERR

=z
=

HMEEZYENFEIE EFE287HR S
EREEXEEAR AR (TERR]) REKH
BRR(GBIEEER]) 26U EHRE
BER-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—HZ&EE
PR REBEEZALFEZLEAER
REMEZEKER KA ZEEHRNER
BRERDRURGAEVBRERNGE - &
REZSTHERE -

BMRS ZEHEAMBRRCRERS
St g ([BEGMAE]) Bz
FREMBHREEL ([FEEHBHREZER])
EEMAFHRE BERER_ZF-N\F
T_A=+T—HAZHEaMBRR  REE
EZALFEZHEAMBRARGAR S
ME  WEBREEATRIZEERE

ERzE®

HMEREEESAMAGRHZEESE
AHER([FBFT LR ETEZ - M
IR EFENAREZRTENRSE ZEH
EipL BAZAR A M MR AR BE—8
PE-FEL - REBESFMAGZE
EgtmBEETRA (ATHEBITA) - #&
fiBxn BEEE YERTTRPZH
fBEEAET - HfIEE RFAMESZE
ZERBDARMEEARMEREHR
E o

BAhREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

BB ETHRE
Independent Auditor’'s Report

=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF TONGFANG KONTAFARMA
HOLDINGS LIMITED

BrFREEXSEHERAT

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited B 7 EREXEE
BRRAF (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 99 to 287,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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AR EZEIG KEY AUDIT MATTERS

F%ﬁ%$?$lﬁm$ﬁ$ﬁﬁ1FﬁZ§r¥%ljiz%ﬁ - ¥ Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

ARG AMBERE Y ENRAEE Y= judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

15 o gi%%@mﬁﬁzﬁﬁ%ﬁ% BE AR A B 7S consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

BEREEZERRETEEN KMT-E matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

M EE E}E{ BEER o consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

ARERER BB NAEERRERSEE

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BHESRE-HAHAGESER(AHEEBRD

Expected credit losses (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables

BB E SRR FIB 2 BEN LI RSERETEFE
THRESEVHEY SE£ENGEHBRAAER
BX - BT E B A R Ex.g%r”&m/\
ENEREEERR SR T B RERE M -

We identified ECL assessment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial
position and the involvement of subjective judgement
and management estimates in evaluating the ECL
of the Group's trade receivables at the end of the
reporting period.

RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H  EEENEFERK
B (KRR EEBEREE) R4686,591,000/ 7T © 40
Kﬁ%éﬁﬁ“iﬁiﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂ EEBXEFERNTE
BB REERNFER @B T AN BEREEBHNE
ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬂf%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ R2018F1A1HHER T
1,950,000/ JL R 1B °
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s trade
receivables net of allowance for credit losses
amounting to approximately HK$686,591,000. As
explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, in the current year, the Group adopted
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and recognised an
additional impairment of HK$1,950,000 as at 1
January 2018 in accordance with the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 9.
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Our procedures in relation to ECL assessment of

trade receivables included:

e ERMEEEMABEZIERUFEZGEEERREE
Ry ) A S 4% 1

o Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the allowance for credit
losses for trade receivables;

o HH BEER-T—N\F—B—BIKREM
7 B 3 o P S5 0K B A T E 1 B 5 B A £

BB A AR

e Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment
made by the Group as at 1 January 2018 on
initial adoption of HKFRS 9;

o FBBEHMTRABLIA R EAGRHE 7= K
’%’;&mttf ﬁ*éiiﬁﬁﬁ{%%ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ
EWAEE (BER=E—N\F—HA— EI&:
? NF+ZA=+—RZEFRKFERE
D) B ER I ETHREOS - &

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at
1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual items in
the analysis with the relevant sales agreements
and sales invoices; and
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BEMzERNMEEBRRERSH

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EREZRE2EARFESRR ((AHFEBR) (B)

Expected credit losses ("ECL") assessment of trade receivables (CONTINUED)

MAGRE BRI TA0HKE - EEBERERER
wEME EZRTENEZERFENBEENER
AIEMENE  BAGHEUBERXNEREALETS
HoemAtERRERN 2 AEBREERHE - HitH
BERDEARBUERERIZEPAERFHRRERMEZ
ELEAX  WRBATEEERELAE -

As disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the
Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of
trade receivables based on provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns, after considering historical default rates
and forward-looking information of respective
trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information.

EHEERBZHBHNGS M EREKRMTE4L9 -
Details of the ECL are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

s THERBEHEEEN_ZT—N\F-—HA-BKZ
E-N\F+_A=T—HZEBEZRKRIERFE
BEBEBRARANEERHALY  BREEE
REBREESIRE 5 RURRZ ABEETR
KESEBERSEZTRERNNE RN - B
NERMNEBERE SRR EEREE (W
DEBEEBNERARMLEER) -

o Challenging management’s basis and
judgement in determining credit loss allowance
on trade receivables as at 1 January 2018
and 31 December 2018, including the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the trade debtors into different categories in
the provision matrix, and the basis of estimated
loss rates applied in each category in the
provision matrix (with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information).
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RepopPLORREHUBRENEEZARBIES BEE ZRENG

Impairment assessment of goodwill allocated to the operating fitness centres and providing

consultation services for fitness and health activities

HRNEREE 2B EML P R ERAE - SR
Kok PREES PO REHRRES NERZARBE
oA ERENERERBREREE -

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill
allocated to operating fitness centres and providing
consultation services for fitness and health activities
as a key audit matter due to the complexity and
significant judgments involved in the management’s
assessment process.

MANAR A M MR T 19TIRE - ZBEER _Z—N
FH+_A=+—HBZKRHEER219,417,0008 T - BF
HECORETZEERERAME T BB CHTE
B ([ReEEEM]) 2EREE-

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of such goodwill
was HK$219,417,000 as at 31 December 2018.
Determining whether goodwill is impaired required
the management’s estimation of the value in use
of the cash generating unit (“CGU"”) to which the
goodwill has been allocated.

WEARSELBUZEREER  EREEACER
BREBEWFAX BREUNREESBL 2 KL R
SFPORREHRESMERZARG 2 BEHERENE
MEAREEBZRERALRLRN - EREINE
BEVGEMYREELEUERAEBEETHE -
AEBEEEEET R_ZE-—N\F+A=+—8H%F
FEEBZHSELEM W ERE -

In estimating the value in use of the CGU, key
assumptions used by the management include
discount rates, growth rates and budgeted sales
and gross margin and their related cash inflows and
outflows patterns for the operating fitness centres
and providing consultation services for fitness and
health activities of the CGU. The management also
engaged independent valuers to carry out valuation
of the value in use of the CGU. The management of
the Group determined that there was no impairment
in the CGU containing goodwill as at 31 December
2018.
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of goodwill allocated to the operating
fitness centres and providing consultation services
for fitness and health activities:

e HIMEBUMERZER BHIREHINL:
o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuers;

e ®2E BEEBIAREBFERITEBE T
HEARKRRERESDSER @ s HFE
BReERERAUZRR (BEEREX  BHEIHE
BEEHER) URGEMZ2EBR

o Evaluating the assumptions underpinning the
discounted cash flow models, including growth
rates, budgeted sales and gross sales through
assessing the reasonableness of forecasted
future cash flows by reference to the future
business plan of the Group as well as industry
trend;

e FERAKMSBIBELEIBETHL  FHAE
ERABERMEACURERSSIE

o Assessing the reasonableness of the discount
rates applied in determining the value in use by
benchmarking against market data;

7

e it EEEEREMREIERESIFES
BRYWERAT U EHERAEECTER
R

o Evaluating the reasonableness of and
reperforming the sensitivity analysis provided
by the management of the Group to assess the
extent of impact on the value in use; and

e FRBBRARKREREEAFEERERR
BRERY TREMERZZENREAE - AR
ARBEREBES T LM -

o Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
forecasted future cash flows by comparing
them to the actual results in the current year on
a sample basis and understanding the causes of
any significant variances.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

BB RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wu Ka Ming.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29 March 2019
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REEBERAEMEEKER

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F —E—tF

2018 2017

k=3 THET FAT

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

WA -8 m&kR% Revenue — goods and services 5 2,093,724 1,344,336

SHE R ARTE AL A Cost of sales and services (1,530,726) (1,007,461)

E 7 Gross profit 562,998 336,875

Habg A Other income 7 44,774 40,096

Hih iz K Es 18 Other gains and losses 8a 4,427 23,638
TREERBEERE Impairment losses of financial assets,

MEkEo 2 net of reversal 8b (2,454) (17,850)
DHENIEEER Distribution and selling expenses (243,605) (133,027)
THER Administrative expenses (156,275) (138,808)
H B Other expenses (31,385) (32,641)
A& B A Finance costs 9 (43,851) (21,882)
FEAG — B & AR AR Share of results of an associate (12,704) (8,765)
Bl —fR& & R RRIEEA Share of results of a joint venture (13,059) (11,666)
B 5t A g A Profit before taxation 108,866 35,970
18 Taxation 11 (37,354) (119)
2N £ % A Profit for the year 12 71,512 35,851
Hi2m (ZH) W : Other comprehensive (expense)

income:
BErteENoEE Item that will not be reclassified
BmRIER - subsequently to profit or loss:
RBMREINEEESE Exchange difference arising on
ZEHER translation to presentation
currency (76,768) 101,338
BERABEETAEE ltems that may be reclassified
BmRIER - subsequently to profit or loss:
HBINEBEEZ Exchange difference arising on
VE 5 =%a translation of foreign operations 1,760 (7,319)
FREMEE Y EE Fair value change on debt
ATFERECEBFHIA instruments at fair value through
ZNFEES other comprehensive income (298) -
AREEHMET (X L) Other comprehensive (expense) income

Yz for the year (75.306) 94,019
AEFE2M (T H) ks Total comprehensive (expense) income

FER-C] for the year (3,794) 129,870
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REEBEREMEEBER

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-Z—\F+=ZA=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\¥ —E—tF

2018 2017
k=2 FHET FAETT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
INEE T (B) BT - Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:
AATRE Owners of the Company 32,499 (1,806)
eI IR 2 Non-controlling interests 39,013 37,657
71,512 35,851
AREEE2ME(ZH) WS Total comprehensive (expense) income
MR T - for the year attributable to:
RRRRE Owners of the Company (21,228) 60,782
FE 1258 AR 2 Non-controlling interests 17,434 69,088
(3,794) 129,870
AL (1L
HK cent HK cent
FIRAER (EE) Earnings (loss) per share 13
HR Basic 0.60 (0.04)
s Diluted 0.60 (0.04)
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mEMBARR R

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZ—/\F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018

—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
B 5 FET FAT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - BENMKE Property, plant and equipment 15 641,732 690,533
B ki &n Deposits for equipment and
machineries 16 77,827 81,927
TH(FEREZENEE Prepaid lease payments on land use
RIE rights 17 111,736 107,140
KBy Investment properties 18 4,855 5,276
5k Goodwill 19 437,569 439,160
BILEE Intangible assets 20 322,093 324,302
R—EEE AR 2R Interests in an associate 22 303 13,007
R—EEERRZER Interests in a joint venture 23 45,375 21,093
EEFIEE E Deferred tax assets 41 2,663 4,360
Hekse Rental deposits 12,211 5,127
& KRR Contract costs 27 3,043 -
B RITER Pledged bank deposits 31 2,216 2,247
1,661,623 1,694,172
RBEE Current assets
BHIEHEME Properties held for sale 24 2,204 2,321
EYEE Biological assets 4,295 4,761
FE Inventories 25 114,903 97,401
B & 5 38 Trade receivables 26 686,591 532,671
RSN Contract costs 27 11,481 —
HihEW A - e M Other receivables, deposits and
B R IE prepayments 28 164,554 149,432
& E = Loans receivables 29 106,036 178,878
FHBERRR A FERIE 2 Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 30 107,633 114,720
FEiBHME2E IR A FE Debt instruments at fair value through
RIEZEHRIA other comprehensive income 30 31,336 -
Hibig & Other investment 30 20,000 -
+ (AR 2 T T EFIE Prepaid lease payments on land use
rights 17 3,281 3,289
—EEERARK Amount due from a joint venture 51 343 7,972
1L AN TN Amount due from an associate 51 71,886 34,667
H b BB 75 R 5K Amounts due from other related
parties 52(c) 204,525 208,961
B HRITER Pledged bank deposits 31 50,543 33,515
HEREEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 31 101,230 381,450
1,680,841 1,750,038
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e M BARR K

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-Z—\F+_=-F=+—H At 31 December 2018

—E-N\E —T—+tF
2018 2017
B 2 FET F&TT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RBEE Current liabilities
ENESFELENEZE  Trade and bills payables 32 284,457 207,512
HihEZERE YIRS  Other payables and deposits received 33 144,586 123,782
K —RIR N ATHRIE  Amount due to an intermediate
holding company 51 16,164 17,011
R E A B8 B 75 5RIR Amounts due to other related parties 52(c) 38,445 57,974
BIEEE Tax liabilities 105,533 87,292
—FRIHZRITR Bank and other borrowings due within
HuEE one year 34 548,896 629,518
MEREEMT Obligations under finance leases 1,009 1,504
N Provision of reinstatement cost 42 42,962 -
I UL A Deferred income 35 285 114,721
AHMEE Contract liabilities 36 117,525 -
1,299,862 1,239,314
REBEEFRE Net current assets 380,979 510,724
WEERARBARS Total assets less current liabilities 2,042,602 2,204,896
BAR#E Capital and reserves
% 2% Share capital 37 11,177 9,900
B B R Share premium and reserves 40 1,382,204 1,214,123
RARREEGES Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 1,393,381 1,224,023
JE4E P AE = Non-controlling interests 515,680 624,689
EEAH Total equity 1,909,061 1,848,712
kERBEE Non-current liabilities
—FRINPZRITR Bank and other borrowings due after
HEmEE one year 34 96 175,484
5 i F5 I8 Deferred taxation 41 106,297 113,537
MEMEEET Obligations under finance leases 423 1,910
18 R B 2N B 4 Provision of reinstatement cost 42 14,754 18,943
PRIE WA Deferred income 35 186 46,310
SEHAEE Contract liabilities 36 11,785 -
133,541 356,184
2,042,602 2,204,896

FOEEFNBTAZHEARUBHRRN_F
—NF—A-TNAEEESHERRE
T AR MIESRERRE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 287
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

=E EEX
Huang Yu Jiang Chaowen

EF EF
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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mEERZER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZ - N\F+ZHA=+—HLEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

ALARRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FaLt
BRf LYV 2EUE
2B REEY BATE
HEZRD BERRERE REZBE
Shares  Employee Fair value
held for share- through other FERER
s REGERE share based EXEE  HARE  EREE  HEEE comprehensve  REEA Non-  EHEE
Share Share award compensation ~Translation Special Capital Other income  Retained B8  controlling Total
capital  premium  scheme  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves reserve profits Total interests equity
Tin ThEL T Tin T T Tin T Tin Thn Thn Tin T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000
(H3t40f) (Rt40(i)
(note 40(i) (note 40(i))
At 1 January 2017 9900 1,215,024 (860) 13,739 (53574) (392,735 824 32814 - 300702 1,125,834 517,229 1,643,063
X et (Loss) profit for the year - - - - - - - - - (1,806) (1,806) 37,657 35,851
BE2SIEHELL Exchange difference arising on translation to
5 presentation currency - - - = 66,507 - - - - - 66,507 34831 101,338
ERELY Exchange difference arising on translation of
2 foreign operations - - - - (3919 - - - - - (3.919) (3,400) (7319
TEE2ANA(RE)EE  Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year - - - - 62,588 - - - - (1,806) 60,782 69,088 129870
BF-2HERRE-BEZED  Obligation arising on a put option to
BELIAR anon-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - = = = - (81900 (81,900)
AR T~ £FEERRE—TE Derecognition of obligation arising on a put option

DEBRELZAE(HEY)  toanon-controling sharcholder (note 9) - - - - - - - - - - - 83335 83335
WEHEAR (Hie) Acquisition of subsidiaries {note 43) - - - - - - - - - - - 43558 43558
ERRRLENRAA Recognition of equity-settled

R share-based payments - - - 10,397 - - - - - - 10,397 - 10,397
BAlzBRE Share options lapsed - - - (2,426) - - - - - 2426 - - -
BRA&BiEEERR Purchase of shares for share award scheme - - (3.484) - - - B - - - (3.484) - (3.484)
BlE-2HRRZLE Deemed contribution from a sharefolder

GEZ) (note 40(i) - z - - - -l - - -l -l
BAEhE-HHBAAL Deemed acquisition of additional interest in

EIMER (Hia0(i)) a subsidiary (note 40i)(3) - - - - 562 - - 2,104 - - 2,666 (2,666) -
AEERRRUEDAEE  Partal disposal of nterest to non-controlling

shareholder - - - - - - - - - 591 591 2,709 3300
PETEERERZRE Dividend distribution to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - = = 5 o (6,664) (6,664)
RIE-+F+ZA=+-R  At31 December 2017 9900 1,215,024 (4,344) 2,710 9576 (392,739 28,061 34918 - 301913 1,224023 624,680 1848712
BE(Hd) Adjustments (note 2) - - - - - - - - - (194) (%)  @n)  (1265)
RZ2-N\¥-f-A At 1 January 2018 (restated)

(&5]) 9900 125024 (434) 70 9576 (39273 18061 34918 - BIN 126080 619978 1836060
AEREH Profit forthe year - - - - - - - - -4 R BB TN
RBRZHIERELY Exchange difference arising on translation to

EiZE presentation currency - - - - (5169) - - - - - (57691 (19071)  (76.768)
ARBhsHEE Exchange difference arising on translation of

EXzR foreign operations - - - - 4,268 - - - - - 4,268 (2.508) 1760
FEEMAAAERATE  Fairvalue change on debt instruments at far value

REZERIAZ through other comprehensive income

LTEEY ° = ° o = = = - (298) - (298) - (298)
FEERE (L) hieg Total comprehensive (expense)

income for the year - - - - (53,429) - - - (298) 32,499 (21,228) 17434 (3,794)
HE-EMBATBRES  Partal isposal of inerest in a subsidiary

(faE4tsE) without losing control - - - - - - - - = = = 2347 2347

§ Acquistion of additional interest in

EihiEs (ks a subsidiary note 52(d)) 48 111,689 - - 6) - - (1137%9) - - Bm) (15215 (119,000)
BTERR(WES2)) Issuance of ordinary shares (note 52(d)) 800 199,200 - = = = = = = - 200000 - 200000
ERERLENRAE Recognition of equity-settled

ERZR% share-ased payments - - - 479 - - - - = = 4,199 = 479
BAMBRE Share options lapsed - - - (4,692) - - - - - 4,69 - - -
BRA & EHEERR Purchase of shares for share award scheme - - (510) - - - - - - - (510) - (510)
BERRHRR Shares repurchased and cancelled (1 (194 - - - - - - - - (1,975) - (1.975)
ARTHERBSZRE Dividend distribution to non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - - - (8,864) (8,864)
RZE-VETZA=+-R  At31 December 2018 A7 1523949 (4,854) 1,817 (46,018)  (392,735) 28,061 (78,881) (298) 331,163 1,393,381 515,680 1,909,061
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RERERBR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEZ2-Z—\F+=-A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F Tt F
2018 2017
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEXK OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B B A g A Profit before taxation 108,866 35,970
MTHBEERZFAE :  Adjustments for:
iR E Amortisation and depreciation 81,495 56,745
BHtE AR BN Release of prepaid lease payments on land
HEFIEA use rights 3,396 3,151
TREEREESE - Impairment losses on financial assets, net
MR+ 58 of reversal 47,901 17,850

HE—MWB AR ZW  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (7.165) -

B f8 B & %8 B Government grant and subsidy (6,824) =

b & B AN Finance costs 43,851 21,882

HE—RBAZ AR ZEIE  Loss on disposal of a joint venture = 180

FLEW A Interest income (17,942) (19,053)

HERMBEYE - BEK  Net loss on disposal and write-off of

Rz EEEE property, plant and equipment 4,077 11,176
HeEmEEZEEEE  Net loss on disposal of intangible assets 407 =
FiRIBREIRATERIE Y Fair value losses (gains) on financial assets

EHMEEZATE at fair value through profit or loss

B1E () 2,369 (3,798)
W mAE E AR A AR Equity-settled share-based payments

Z A 4,799 10,397

iR il /NI Share of results of an associate 12,704 8,765

BiE—HEeERREE Share of results of a joint venture 13,059 11,666

FEREEE Loss on impairment of inventories = 1,469

B IS IE R B A Provision of financial guarantee - 1,488

HAEGE AR Z2E 2z Gain on shortfall of profit undertaking (58,900) (27,125)
CIEESEER 2 EE Operating cash inflow before movements in

WERA working capital 232,093 130,763
FEE Increase in inventories (25,674) (13,583)
HEYEER D () Decrease (increase) in biological assets 228 (1,739)
JiE U 2 5 3R I8 1 Increase in trade receivables (184,257) (157,647)
HihpElzIE « IR E K (Increase) decrease in other receivables,

TEATFRIE (S 00) Rk 4 deposits and prepayments (27,316) 4,958
B AR A Rk A Decrease in contract costs 1,574 -
AHaBERD Decrease in contract liabilities (55,728) -
FEN B SHERENNZE  Increase in trade and bills payables

=Pl 95,547 15,205
Hib B R 2 KIZE  Increase (decrease) in other payables and

200 Rl 4>) deposits received 48,970 (12,280)
EEU AR A0 OF ) Increase (decrease) in deferred income 732 (15,626)
FIBERER A TEERIE 2 Decrease in financial assets at fair value

TEEERD through profit or loss - 47,277
18 |2 Bl 72N 188 485 3% 0 Increase in provision of reinstatement cost 39,405 1,898
— 1Bt & R B /R FR3E N Increase in amount due from an associate (42,742) (34,983)
EEBELE(FMA)CESE Cash generated from (used in) operations 82,832 (35,757)
EATEH Income tax paid (15,968) (11,505)
EEXKHMB (FTA)ERE NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING

FEE ACTIVITIES 66,864 (47,262)
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RERERBFT

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

—E-N\F ZE—+F
2018 2017
k=3 TERT FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REX® INVESTING ACTIVITIES
e BE B B A B) (A& B Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
BAZE&NME®ZEY) and cash equivalents acquired 43 - (249,675)
HEME  MENEZHEZ  Proceeds from disposal of property,
Fff 18 2k 18 plant and equipment 2,527 4,433
BEWHE  BEREH Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (59,359) (84,592)
RNREBEFEE Addition of intangible assets (12,437) (6,791)
—f&% A REZ (A—Ff Repayment from (advance to) a joint
AERNARHEZBF) venture 7,595 (7,841)
Em A ER (REAM Repayment from (advance to) other
RAHE 5 R 2 B0 related parties 22,780 (449)
JEUE FREA TR Advance of loans receivables (4,738,272) (3,080,883)
H fth & Y R IE B K Advance of other receivables — (2,054)
EEFEBIERRIE AFE  Purchase of financial assets at fair
BREZESMEE value through profit or loss (123,642) (122,600)
BEEMEE Purchase of other investment (20,000) -
EEEKRERZFSHIE  Proceeds from redemption of loans
receivables 4,757,525 3,081,843
FEOFE BB 2ERRIR A F(E  Proceeds from redemption of financial
BEZEMEEZ assets fair value through profit or
18 =8 loss 93,350 85,473
—EHRNIERARER Repayment from an intermediate
holding company - 91,996
HEE I RITE R Placement of pledged bank deposits (113,523) (33,284)
EREEBRITER Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 95,077 423,001
REUE B K Withdrawal of time deposits = 24,001
P B BR HIl $R1T1F 3K Withdrawal of restricted bank deposit — 2,518
M —fE& % AT —FT& Further injection in a joint venture (37,341) y
HE—FHBATZIRE Net cash inflow on disposal of a
mAHEE subsidiary 44 3,714 =
TE T & FRIEIE N Addition of prepaid lease payments (13,865) -
2 F B Interest received 16,199 22,243
REXK (FTA) ASEE  NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
o INVESTING ACTIVITIES (119,672) 147,339
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RERERBR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEZ2-Z—\F+=-A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

—E2-NEF —tF
2018 2017
FET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
mME X% FINANCING ACTIVITIES
WE—HEHBRRZ Acquisition of additional interest in a
KEINE 2 subsidiary (119,002) -
HE—FEHEA AR Proceeds from disposal of interest in a
(I?ﬁ%@?’i? HlE) 2 subsidiary without losing control
YRS 2,347 -
Eﬁﬂ@ Interest paid (43,020) (20,316)
B 5 H 51 & B AR Other financial costs paid - (135)
MERTREMES New bank and other borrowings raised 239,469 222,153
EBERTREMES Repayments of bank and other borrowings (474,196) (528,706)
EERmERE Repayment of finance leases (2,063) (1,993)
SERE 2L Ea il o= Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (6,503) (2,500)
m—MEHR IR ARIEI  Repayment to an intermediate holding
company - (8,637)
KB E A AT 2 3R Advance from other related parties 7,270 5,692
KA RIS 2 B Advance from non-controlling interests - 48
MIEEREREN Repayment to non-controlling interests = (89)
F‘J?E% A% X B & — [ Ff B Proceeds from partial disposal of interest in a
NEIEDHERR Z TS I8  subsidiary to non-controlling shareholder — 3,300
B EBETEIE E XD  Purchase of shares for share award scheme (510) (3,484)
BITE AR Issuance of ordinary shares 200,000 =
B E &2 ik Shares repurchased and cancelled (1,975) -
MEXBAREFE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (198,183) (334,667)
Re&RBEELEEYR P FE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (250,991) (234,590)
FOZ2HERELEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 381,450 581,137
PEREE) v T & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (29,229) 34,903
FRZEERESLEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR 101,230 381,450
Bp Represented by
RITHRBERRE bank balances and cash 101,230 381,450
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eV BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—REHE

ARABIREBERASHEEEARFTNLER
AR (= NN —FEBIE3 MR - KiFE
MEFIR_F——%=ZA=-+—H
ERESRSEMKIA—RER2E
RAR - ARBIZERMBE T — %
—ATN\BEREBBERZHAAR
RE([BFr]) £ - HEERERF
BREREREREGRAR (THERE
Bl —ERREBELESEMKLZ
FABRDA]) - EHRERABR
AT RBEREZERARAA (—
BREHEARKME ([HE])EE
RIZZBREERF) - EREER
TRERKE -

NA B FEM R 2 ik AP.O. Box
1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands * ARG Z@RRBEERETE
EEMEAREBEHF S TITE138
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 21
March 2011 under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company have been listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 18 January 2012. Its parent
is China Health Management Investment Limited
(“China Health”), a private limited company which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate
holding company is Shenzhen Aorongxin Investment
Development Co., Ltd.* (RYITREMERELRBR
‘A \]), a company established under the laws of the
People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") with limited
liability. The ultimate controlling party is Mr. Huang Yu.

The address of the registered office of the Company
is P.O. Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and the head office
and principal place of business of the Company is 15th
Floor, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
55.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") which is different from the
functional currency of the Company, Renminbi (“RMB"),
as the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
consider that HK$ will facilitate analysis of the financial
information of the Group.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for
the first time in the current year.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4
Amendments to

HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and
the related Amendments
Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)
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2.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in
the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS
18 Revenue, HKAS11 Construction Contracts and
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources which arise from contracts with
customers:

o Revenue from manufacturing and sales of
prescription drugs and laboratory related
products;
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FERHIIEEBRE EAL 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
([EEMERESERN]|) RS AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
B EHREENBETR &) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)
NAEEREIEMZHET BB New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
TEMEER R E BB EREE mandatorily effective for the current year
CHIENE (CONTINUED)
21 ERUBBREERNFEISERET 2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
FAAZWA (&) Customers (CONTINUED)
o EEghLRIREHES o Revenue from operating of fitness centres and
MiEEF AR 2 WA & provision of consultation services for fitness
and health activities; and
o BT SHE KSR R EE L e Revenue from manufacturing and sales of
EBEKEZWA ° cement and clinker and trading of cement.
BRAAEEBHEETNERES Information about the Group’s performance
B 7 s &S 2B 1558 2 @ 5T I obligations and the accounting policies resulting
7 BRSSPI MIEES & M s34 from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes
- 5 and 3 respectively.
FEH & B BEHEERE155 A Summary of effects arising from application of
E4XzEHEHE HKFRS 15
TR EE T BB ISR E%E The following table summarises the impact of
AIEISRER —_FE—N\F—A— transition to HKFRS 15 on retained profits and
HZRB R NIEIEERS 2 non-controlling interests at 1 January 2018.
@ o
FERER
R B8 3% F Non-
Retained controlling B
profits interests Total
Bt 5 FAET FAET FAET
Notes HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
HERE B Recognition of contract costs a 8,693 7,405 16,098
W B FE FE 72 2 AR % Registration fee for service
EZA4ELE  package contract recognised
over time b (8,899) (7,580) (16,479)
M E Tax effects 73 62 135
R-E—N\F Impact at 1 January 2018
—A—RzZ®E (133) (113) (246)
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HZE-Z—\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
RAFITE BB BEREER 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
EEBMERSERN|)) RSB AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
Bl &SR & IS ET A (2) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)
AEEBRFERZHT BB New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
HEZEARERBUBHREER mandatorily effective for the current year
HE:NE-P) (CONTINUED)
E%Eﬂ%iﬁ%iﬁfﬂ FISERBEE 2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
FAHZWA (&) Customers (CONTINUED)
B & B R 55 3R 5 2RI F 155 A Summary of effects arising from application of
EEZHEHME (E) HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)
R_Z—N\F—A—HZ&EEH The following reclassifications, being the
WHNR%‘%WEE%ZEEEET’HHT adjustments without impact to the retained profits
TIEF D \*E(Eﬂ‘ijﬁ/\\\:%—)\ﬁ as at 1 January 2018, and remeasurements, being
—A—BZREREFITEELR adjustments with impact to the retained profits
Z2AE) NEHTE (BIEHRN as at 1 January 2018, were made to the amounts
— - \F-A-AZRERT recognised in the consolidated statement of
SELARENHE) - TXEY financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items that
B HBEWEBELNA - were not affected by the changes have not been
included.
" R=2B-N\F
FAIR -A-HRE
ZE-tF ERBERE
+=A=t-H ERE15% 2
EHvRESE RESHE
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December ENDE BN E 1 January
r 2017 Reclassificat\ion_s Remeasurements 2018
MisE FEL SR SR TAEL
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
BHBA Contract costs a - - 3,878 3,878
RBEE Current assets
BB Contract costs a - - 12,220 12,220
BRAR ik Capital and reserves
RiVGIEREE Share premium and reserves ab 1,214,123 - (133) 1,213,990
R ER Non-controlling interests a, b 624,689 - (113) 624,576
RBEE Current liabilities
HiENZIE R Other payables and deposits
BliRs received d 123,782 (18,711) - 105,071
HEAE Tax liabilities ab 87,292 - (135) 87,157
ETWA Deferred income C 114,721 (114,721) - -
AMAR Contract liabilities b, ¢ d = 133,432 1329 144,761
EREBE Non-current liabilities
EERA Deferred income C 46,310 (39,618) - 6,692
AHAEE Contract liabilities b, ¢ - 39,618 5,150 44,768
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from application of
HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

) The amounts in this column are before the adjustments
from the application of HKFRS 9.

(@) The Group incurred incremental sales
commission to employees in connection
with obtaining contracts with customers
for use of fitness centres in the form of
monthly membership. These amounts were
previously expensed as incurred prior to the
application of HKFRS 15. At the date of initial
application of HKFRS 15, incremental costs of
obtaining contracts of HK$16,098,000 were
recognised as contract costs. Accordingly,
the tax liabilities had been increased by
HK$2,148,000, the opening retained profits
had been increased by HK$7,533,000 and
non-controlling interests had been increased
by HK$6,417,000.

(b) Prior to the application of HKFRS 15, the
Group recognised revenue derived and
received from registration fee when service
package contract was entered with customer
of fitness centres for provision of consultation
services for fitness and health activities.

In accordance with HKFRS 15, registration
fees derived may not result in the transfer of a
promised service to the customer when service
package contract is entered with customer.
Management has assessed that registration
fee received should be recognised as revenue
over the contract period when those future
services are provided in accordance with the
service package contract. In addition, the
management has considered the financing
component is insignificant.



2.1

A
AR E BB
HES

BAhREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

eV BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI W BT BB
&g
(4&)

ERVBEREENFISHERARE
FAENZWA (&)

FEFG & BRI 7% 3 & B R E 1555 A
ELZHEHE(E)

Z)

N
B

(b)

o - D
&

Bt

|
|l

A

~

(o
)
D& m

=
=
=

"\
S
& |
m

SHo Emio

o
o
oH

~
s
Z

o mmE
o S\

N o
Koo
W S>p W BH
=
o =
=]
-

T

3

N
\\

n
7

B

B5 S
N
~
.
m*mﬁl,
fo)
o

O HF
=
o

5

O NIEN Y
X B

)

or
=)

5 3
> O
o
o
> s 38

>m
- &

B
5 FW R
N B TR

\
A

>
a
TREEDH

& m o
u)‘{—.w

2B
ik
=
I

\
/!

S5t > i
cRb
i 34

- Ol

Lt
Hﬂﬂ*ﬁ
e

Hw
=)

N Ul
ke
o)

o o
ST

St
o>

e
kDR %

SO 300 2
FEBRT >

- W

)E
D S S

=
MR N N g o

> BB B
25 - St e o
o 6 TR B

gmwmzﬁmﬁ
w1
~l
°
mew

35 5 S 3 o g
24 518 )

Wio

~
DN

Ho
PSS
o ot
o F“

oS
it
b=l

e

=
i
o
Ex
o
3
A
o
~&

m
i
L
e
It P

3N
%i
i

Sa

HF % i ofF —
<0 BB iy St
B
et

IR A B
e > 1
~—~ 0
WKE Wk

g\—'o-
Sy 77
Bkop | | 18

Ok 3
DS

%
=
o

WH MR D ¥

|
=
_m
R U B St - I 2 >
> o> N B Bk

fnf
Sk —+
3t 35 m A B3

\|
/i

feio
AN
Sy 11

S S A | 1 2 i
i
=K

P Pkt

=
I\
N
9
i)

I

2.

HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from application of
HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

(b) (CONTINUED)

Accordingly, contract liabilities of the
Group as at 1 January 2018 has been
increased by HK$16,479,000. Accordingly,
the tax liabilities had been decreased by
HK$2,283,000, the opening retained profits
had been decreased by HK$7,666,000 and the
non-controlling interests had been decreased
by HK$6,530,000.

(c) At the date of initial application of HKFRS
15, as included in the total deferred income,
HK$154,339,000 related to the instalments
received in advance for prepaid membership
packages or personal training classes was
reclassified to contract liabilities.

(d) At the date of initial application of HKFRS 15,
advances from customers in respect of sales
contracts in relation to manufacture and sales
of prescription drugs and laboratory related
products, cement and clinker amounting
to HK$8,637,000 and HK$10,074,000
respectively, which were previously included in
trade and other payables were reclassified to
contract liabilities.

The following table summarise the impacts of
reclassifications, being the adjustments without
impact to the retained profits, and remeasurements,
being the adjustments with impact to the retained
profits, by applying HKFRS 15 on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018 and its consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and its consolidated cash flows for the current year
for each of the line items affected. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been
included.
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2. F”EFE%)T“TE,% B %5 ¥ & 2 Al 2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from application of

114

ELECEHEHE () HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)
HE e BMAERZ 7 & Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position
TEERES
B s £
FIRZEE
Amounts
&5H without
As ENDE BifitE  application of
reported Reclassifications Remeasurements HKFRS 15
i3 FEL TAT TET TET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
BH A Contract costs a 3,043 - (3,043) -
RBEE Current assets
A KRR Contract costs a 11,481 < (11,481) =
BRARGEE Capital and reserves
RAVGRIE R Share premium and reserves ab 1,382,204 - 2,315 1,384,519
FERER Non-controlling interests ab 515,680 - 1,972 517,652
nBEE Current liabilities
A ENFER Other payables and deposits
BEhEs received d 144,586 30,338 - 174,924
REAR Tax liabilities ab 105,533 - 789 106,322
B Deferred income C 285 71,395 - 71,680
afaR Contract liabilities b, ¢ d 117,525 (101,733) (15,792) -
FrRBaE Non-current liabilities
BERERA Deferred income C 186 7,977 - 8,163
AHAR Contract liabilities b, 11,785 (7,977) (3,808) -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

RAFERFNERZHTEBY
BREZAREBUBHREER
CHENE )

21 BERAMBREENFISHERARE
FAENZBA (&)

JEFG & BRI 3 & E R E 1555 FF
EECHEHE(E)

Hr e MBH AR ZE (F)

o]

(a) RIEB B @ EER
WomHBEBAEARE
XNFERARIPLZR
HNEHEBELEZEILIE
HBERELER S H - BH
B ER BUSAHZIEE
BX 714,524,000 7T & X
§H o At FHIE B FER D
2,258,000/ JT * 1% B8 & F
R 46,624,000 7T K 3F
7 1% RE 7 Rk 45,642,000
=

e

ofF O R

J

b) RBEBBZEAF18
5% 0 ZN 5 B A EE AR A 2
B R EAARSmE R
BERLNFTLREEE
AHRERRE KA
ERBZWABHRBAE
X AKEBR-_Z—N\F
+ - A=+—BzZ24&%4
B & R 419,600,000%
T Atk B A E LN
3,047,000/ 7T © 1R 88 & Al
1 118,939,00058 7T K FE 5
f% 4 25 12 AN7,614,000/8
=

0 WBEBBZTAEAF18
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AR BREBEBR 2D EBR
EOEABELEWRA - B
B EXR RS HRE
79,372,000/ JL B & 4
BEEFTIEABELTERA -

2.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from application of
HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Under HKAS 18, incremental sales commission
incurred to employees in connection
with obtaining contracts with customers
for use of fitness centres, in the form of
monthly membership were expensed when
incurred. For illustrative purpose of the
table above, incremental costs of obtaining
contracts of HK$14,524,000 were expensed.
Accordingly, the tax liabilities was decreased
by HK$2,258,000, the retained profits
was decreased by HK$6,624,000 and the
non-controlling interests was decreased by
HK$5,642,000.

Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised
revenue derived and received from registration
fee when service package contract was
entered with customer of fitness centres
for provision of consultation services for
fitness and health activities. For illustrative
purpose of the table above, contract liabilities
of the Group as at 31 December 2018
has been decreased by HK$19,600,000.
Accordingly, the tax liabilities was increased
by HK$3,047,000, the retained profits
was increased by HK$8,939,000 and the
non-controlling interests was increased by
HK$7,614,000.

Under HKAS 18, instalments received in
advance for prepaid membership packages
or personal training classes was classified as
deferred income. For illustrative purpose of
the table above, HK$79,372,000 instalments
received in advance was reclassified from
contract liabilities to deferred income.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from application of

HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

position (CONTINUED)

(d) Under HKAS 18, advances from customers
in respect of sales contracts was included
in other payables and deposits received.
For illustrative purpose of the table above,
advances from customers in respect of sales
contracts in relation to manufacture and sales
of prescription drugs and laboratory related

products,

cement and clinker amounting

to HK$11,602,000 and HK$18,736,000

=] 1; BEHOEAHME H respectively, was reclassified from contract
HEREWIES - liabilities to other payables and deposits
received.
B Ba RAMEE Km X2 Impact on the consolidated statement of profit and
ZZ loss and other comprehensive income
TEERES
BBREEA
ER Ak
Amounts
&% without
As ENHE application of
reported Remeasurements HKFRS 15
if3 TAL SR FATL
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WA - &R Rk Revenue - goods and services a 2,093,724 2,856 2,096,580
BERRBHA Cost of sales and services b (1,530,726) 1,785 (1,528,941)
S| Gross profit 562,998 4,641 567,639
BBt A& R Profit before taxation 108,366 4,641 113,507
BB Taxation ab (37,354) (789) (38,143)
KEERR Profit for the year 71,512 3,852 75,364
AFEEHREZL Other comprehensive expense
for the year 4 (75,306) 56 (75,250)
AEERA(ZE)MALE Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year (3,794) 3,908 114
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

ER#HITEBHEHREER
ERAMKBEERDRE
BB REEEIT AR &)
RAFEERBER 2T EEY
?ﬁi&i‘zgmﬁiﬁﬂ 73R4 ZE A
IZ B

2.1

BERUBHEEENFEISHERER
FAENZWRA (&)

FEF & BRI T 4 & E R E 1558 FF
EECHEHE(E)

HEE B RE M2 H K et k.2

FE(E)

() REZBGERF18
5t AR E R E 2
5 K & B 7% 58 B 7% 1 £ A
{5 O MR PR AR
EFAHNRERERA LK
BEELEZRA -RE
P& 8 B %5 S £ RISE15
R EWRELEERRR
RIREERAHRM KRR
R 26 NP ATER B
A SR RREHE
BHE-_ZT-N\FET+_-A
=t HLEFEZWALE
Hn2,856,0007% 7T & 7t 18 R,
4>486,000/%8 TT °

b) REBBZETAEAF18
omBREUNEREER
NEARERLZEEAS
NEHEEBELEZEREE
BAERELERIHE RE
REBMERERERFEIS
SREF VB A 4 2 IR
KTy E KA BE KKK o
I T8 & 5t BUR 2 B E
HE-_ZTZ—N\&+_-A
“t+—BULEFEZHER
AR 7% B AN & B IE 9 Bl R
421,785,000 7T & # N
303,000/ 7T °

N

© BE-—FE—N\F+=5
S+—RILFEE BHE
FrRDEPER TS
&)56,000/8 JT °

2.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from application of
HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income (CONTINUED)

(a)

Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised
revenue derived and received from registration
fee when service package contract was
entered with customer of fitness centres
for provision of consultation services for
fitness and health activities. Upon application
of HKFRS 15, registration fees received
should be recognised as revenue over the
contract period when those future services
are provided in accordance with the service
package contract. This change in accounting
policies resulted in an increase of revenue of
HK$2,856,000 and taxation of HK$486,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Under HKAS 18, incremental sales commission
incurred to employees in connection with
obtaining contracts with customers for use
of fitness centres, in the form of monthly
membership, were expensed when incurred.
Upon application of HKFRS 15, incremental
costs of obtaining contracts were capitalised
as contract costs. This change in accounting
policies resulted in a decrease of cost of sales
and services of HK$1,785,000 and increase of
taxation of HK$303,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 respectively.

The change in accounting polices resulted in a
change in exchange difference of HK$56,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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2. @ﬁﬁ%ﬁ“]’é,ﬁﬁyjﬁ%ﬁn_,_ﬂlj 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
([EEMERESERN]|) RS AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
& B S 3R & 2 B I’“]'ZIK(F) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)
NAEEREIEMZHET BB New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
TEMEER R E BB EREE mandatorily effective for the current year
CHENE ), (CONTINUED)
21 BEREVBREENFZISHEREE 2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
FAAZWA (&) Customers (CONTINUED)
EHE B BEHEEREISH A Summary of effects arising from application of
BT EE () HKFRS 15 (CONTINUED)
HG e HL B X7 Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows
YREREE
BEREER
Bz EH
Amounts
5% without
As EHtE  application of
reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
Mzt FHL FHL TEL
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEXE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BB R0 A Profit before taxation a 108,866 4,641 113,507
BBEL BRI 2 ¥ ERS Operating cash flows before
okl movements in working capital
BHHEF D Decrease in contract costs b 1,574 (1,574) =
EENFERBUWIEE  Increase in other payables and
b deposits received C 48,970 11,627 60,597
ANBERYD Decrease in contract liabilities ¢, d (55,728) 55,728 -
EEWAZIMCRA) Increase (decrease) in deferred income d 732 (67,355) (66,623)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

4.

RAFEBRFIER ZHTEER
BHREZEAREBUBREELER
CHESE 2

21 BERAVBHREEANEISHEREE
FABZWA (&)

GEE

a. REFBGELFI8E KK
BRETPIILRBERAHRE
RBRERMBBEELEZRA M
RBREAE AR AERARS
PLZBRPEMNEEREELZE
BHEMENELRH © ILAE
ARREHERHE_—_T-N\F
TZR=+—BIEFEZBRBA
Y 738 104,641,000 7T ©

b. RIEEB S ERFE 185 - EE
BUSAeEEAERARZSF L
CEREFANHBREEE ZEILH
EMENELERIE - HERAY
B &R 41,574,000 7T °

c. BRIEEB G ERE 185 HE
G R P BERGET A E A FE AT )8
kEWZES - BELERBERA
BREREHEEM  KREHAR
2 B P #3011,627,000% T E A
AHBERIETIBEAEHME
5038 R B iR & 18 00 -

d. BIEEE ST ERFE18% - 3178
NeEEZSLAINIRZEKZ
DERBELERBELERA - Bl Z
% B 5K 867,355,000/ ;L E A &
HWEBRLEH S BEABETEKRA
B e

2.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (CONTINUED)

Notes:

Under HKAS 18, the Group recognised revenue derived
and received from registration fee when service package
contract was entered with customer and incremental
sales commission incurred to employees in connection
with obtaining contracts with customers for use of
fitness centres in the form of monthly membership were
expensed when incurred. This changes in accounting
policies resulted in an increase of profit before taxation of
HK$4,641,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Under HKAS 18, incremental sales commission incurred
to employees in connection with obtaining contracts with
customers for use of fitness centres in the form of monthly
membership were expensed when incurred. This resulted
in decrease in contract liabilities of HK$1,574,000.

Under HKAS 18, advance from customers in respect of
sales contracts was included in other payables and deposits
received. HK$11,627,000 advances from customers in
relation to manufacture and sales of prescription drugs
and laboratory related products, cement and clinker was
reclassified from decrease in contract liabilities to increase
in other payables and deposits received.

Under HKAS 18, instalments received in advance for
prepaid membership packages or personal training classes
was classified as deferred income. HK$67,355,000
instalment received in advance was reclassified from
decrease in contract liabilities to increase in deferred
income.
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(ERAMEBREERDRE
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RAFERFIERZHTELH
BHREZEREBVHREEA
CHESE 2

22 ERAMBREENFIORIEMT
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related

Amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments, and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces
new requirements for (1) the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities; (2) expected credit losses (“ECL") for
financial assets, and (3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9, in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017
and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018
are recognised in the opening retained profits and
other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.



BAhREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

eV BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

RAFERFERZHTELH
BHREZEAREBYHREEA
CHESE 2

22 ERUMBREERNFORIEMT
BIRMEBABTA(EF)

I E R T3 &R E 9%
HELZZEME

XN - N\F—H—H
VIR E B REFEM B RE
ERFORZBEREEBRELE
BERTERIFEIRETCERE
EDBRRFE(BERE)

(a) FEHEEEBRERRETZBE

AEBRAEBV B RE
RERIFH 2 LT AR E
BHEEEBE ETHM
BRKBZRACHEH
BHEEEE  BFTER
HEEBR BREESXK
TAE R AR EE RS &

DHE -

FRHEMEMBRRATF
BEREBEZEHEIAE B
B Hiv gl 8 kiR
© BEHEMBITER R
s —MAEERARS
L ENGI A
BAREAKREMTE 2 FBH
EEBENIRI2EAESR
EEBE ([12B A EHE
EERDFRH EEER
B B ¥ 16 7 58 LA 2R I £ K
PRGN ©

2.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
Amendments (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The classification and measurement (including
impairment) of financial assets subject to ECL
under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018 are summarised as
follows:

(a)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses lifetime
ECL for all trade receivables. To measure the
ECL, trade receivables have been grouped
based on share credit risk characteristics.

ECL for debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
loans receivables, other receivables and
deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances, amounts due from a joint venture/
an associate/other related parties and other
investment are assessed on 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit since initial
recognition.
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HE-Z—\F+=ZA=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018
2. ERAHITERNBREER 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
([EEMERESERN]|) RS AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
EBEREERESETAR &) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)
NAEEREIEMZHET BB New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
TEMEER R E BB EREE mandatorily effective for the current year
CHENE ), (CONTINUED)
22 ERMBHREERNFEFISRT 2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
B |BRBBIBITER(E) Amendments (CONTINUED)
I IE & B 73R 2B B 9% Summary of effects arising from initial
FELZHEHE(F) application of HKFRS 9 (CONTINUED)
(a) FBHEEEBSERTZHE (@) Impairment under ECL model (CONTINUED)
(#&)
N_-_ZT— \&E — f — As at 1 January 2018, additional credit
H 5B EEEIEEG loss allowance of HK$12,406,000 has
12,406,000% ot 7 2 been recognised against retained profits of
7,808,000/ 7T B IR & i HK$7,808,000 and non-controlling interests
A R - 4,598 000}%773 of HK$4,598,000. The additional loss
ERIEERERER - 5 allowance is charged against the respective
INEREBEBEEERBEE asset.
Bk o
TREE (BIEEKE S All loss allowances for financial assets
g - ﬁ{ﬂgﬁéqyw\lﬁ&& including trade receivables, other receivables
& EWEZRNUE—BEA and deposits, loans receivables and amounts
SN E s — B A A sk due from a joint venture, an associate/other
HiEE A RR) R related parties as at 31 December 2017
—+F+-_A=+—8Z2 reconciled to the opening loss allowance as at
FTEEBEREEEEN _-Z 1 January 2018 is as follows:
—N\FE—A—HZHIE
BREHROT :
Bl B He@E%s -Heg -EBE
BA%E RUSE  RUER R% RERR AARE @it
Amounts
duefrom  Amount  Amount
other  due from due
Trade Other Loans related ajoint  froman
receivables receivables receivables parties  venture  associate Total
T T Fim T ThT Fin T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RoE—tE+-A=F-H At 31 December 2017 - HKAS 39
-BRGHEAE39% 20,368 15,154 - - - - %52
ERROREENE Amounts remeasured through opening
FERERENE retained profits and
158 non-controlling interests 1,950 1,621 3,110 4478 233 1,014 12,406
“Z2-\¥-A-H At 1 January 2018 22318 16,775 3,110 4478 233 1,014 47928
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

RAFERFERZHTELH
BHREZEAREBYHREEA
CHESE 2

22 ERUMBREERNFORIEMT
BIRMEBABTA(EF)

G FEF & BRI 7 3 & R E 95
BELZHEME (&)

(b) FEiBIR e RIE N FEEE
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) R EIETE #E B IR m
HRIe N FEBESZ T HEE
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TTHEEAERBERERR
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2.

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(CONTINUED)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
Amendments (CONTINUED)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

(c)

loss (“FVTPL”) and/or designated at FVTPL

At the date of initial application, the Group
no longer applied designation as measured
at FVTPL for the investments in convertible
bonds and exchange rate linked structured
deposits, as these financial assets are required
to be measured at FVTPL under HKFRS 9. As
a result, these investments of HK$61,331,000
were reclassified from financial assets
designated at FVTPL to financial assets at
FVTPL.

Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

Bonds amounting to HK$31,635,000
previously classified as held for trading are
reclassified to debt instruments at FVTOCI as
the Group has assessed its business model for
managing its bonds on 1 January 2018 which
meets the definition of FVTOCI under HKFRS 9
at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

2.

124

ER#HTEBMEREER 2.
(ERAMHEBREERDRE
BB REEAEITA &)

("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

E@ﬂKEE?ﬁ%UEi&Z%ﬁ%T?ZEEﬁ

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

TEMEER R E BB EREE mandatorily effective for the current year

CHENE ), (CONTINUED)

23 FERAMEBHAIERAEBAGEM 2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
BRRREHZEE financial position arising from the application

AR EAEESTHRREE &
ABHNREZAMBEARRK » T
RBTHREER D RERZA

T gEy ., )
B NIEHFE HDBEVER

of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the entity’s accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement
of financial position had to be restated. The
following table shows the adjustments recognised

HER - for each individual line item. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

—E—tE —E-N\E
TZA=+-0H BERERE FENERS -A-H
(BEH) EBIE155 ERIZoH (BEF)

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
TET TAT TAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EREBEE Non-current assets

AU Contract costs - 3,878 = 3,878

BEREMZENER Debt instruments

ATEREZERIE  atFvI0Cl - - 31,635 31,635

RBEE Current assets

EWE55E Trade receivables 532,671 - (1,950) 530,721

AW Contract costs - 12,220 - 12,220

HitfEWZE 4R Other receivables, deposits and

SEIRENE] prepayments 149,432 - (1,621) 147,811
U E Loans receivables 178,878 = (3,110) 175,768
ERBEREEATE Financial assets at FVTPL

BREEREE 114,720 - (31,635) 83,085

—HAERFARK Amount due from a joint venture 7,972 - (233) 7,739

—RBEDRAIRK Amount due from an associate 34,667 - (1,014) 33,653

Hi BB A R Amounts due from other related parties 208,691 - (4,478) 204,213
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FE FA %7 5] & 8 Bt 7% 3R & % A 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
((ERAMBREERN]D RE AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
BHEREEREITI AR (2) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)
RAEAEERBERZHIEEER New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
BHREZEARERBMBEREEL mandatorily effective for the current year
EHENE ) (CONTINUED)
23 ERMEFHTERYHBAGE M 2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
BRRRERZTE (EZ) financial position arising from the application

of all new standards (CONTINUED)

“E-t% —B-)N\E
TZA=+-B GBHEBERE BAVERS -A-A
(BEH) ERIE15% ERIEH (BEF)
31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
FET TAT TAT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEE Current liabilities
HiENFIERE MRS Other payables and deposits received 123,782 (18,711) - 105,071
HEaR Tax liabilities 87,292 (135) - 87,157
530N Deferred income 114,721 (114,721) - =
aNER Contract liabilities - 144,761 - 144,761
RARG#E Capital and reserves
BRIRERGEE Share premium and reserves 1,214123 (133) (7,808) 1,206,182
AR ER Non-controlling interests 624,689 (113) (4,598) 619,978
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
B Deferred income 46,310 (39,618) - 6,692
ahaR Contract liabilities - 44,768 - 44,768
M RBEBERABEFEZEREE_-ZT Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
—N\E+ZA=1+—HILFEHN activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
KEXEBEReRENS ' B December 2018, movements in working capital have been
BELFAR-"ZT—NF—HA—H completed based on opening consolidated statement of
WEYAR & MR R R EEE financial position as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed above.
BB -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs have been
issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Leases'
Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 = 2017 Cycle'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

i Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs have been
issued but not yet effective (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and provide additional guidance with the objective of
assisting entities to determine whether a transaction
should be accounted for as a business combination or an
asset acquisition. Furthermore, an optional concentration
test is introduced to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The amendments will be mandatorily effective
to the Group prospectively for acquisition transactions
completed on or after 1 January, 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgements. The
amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January, 2020. The application
of the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS
16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs have been
issued but not yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while other
operating lease payments as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to
lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows by the Group. Upfront prepaid lease
payments will continue to be presented as investing or
operating cash flows in accordance to the nature, as
appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether
the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17,
and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$274,375,000 as
disclosed in note 46. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs have been
issued but not yet effective (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$13,730,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised
cost and such adjustments are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets .

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. The Group intends to elect the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts
that were not previously identified as containing a lease
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4. Therefore,
the Group will not reassess whether the contracts are,
or contain a lease which already existed prior to the
date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
intends to elect the modified retrospective approach
for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments and biological assets that are
measured at fair values and fair value less costs to sell,
as appropriate, at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components
of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.



BAhREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

eV BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEESHHE ®)

RERBEEE)

FEERBEEWBAR A EESZ
BE (F)

FERERAERSEESREWER
REZAFEZEANEIMEBRERR
REHER  UERBRARRRR -

EARKEXREENEB AR 2 EHI2
B AEEERIIEIZNBARZ
BEMBBARIFERES (WA) -
Wt sk B RN B ARER - IR
WREZAFEREFMREERZZ A
FEAREGANRRBREGHNER
AEE (BREBE) RABRZEERE
ENEEFTE - BEREMEEKE
B ARMER AR 8%
BUAKBEEER L EZMB AR
BEEXBREAR(ANZERETEY
BmEERPAETA RTMEH DR
ERERIERES —HEEZRH) -
REEIEGIEE BERIMBRRRE
ZEMREZRTVE aREARE
BEVBHREENER BFEGT
Z R L3RR RAIRE Z V] 5 R
DFE - R (ER) R — R E AR
H—HEERRZRE 2T HER K
7N o

et

WEXBRAUIBEAR - REBE
HREZEZRERAFEAE AQ
FEDEAKEREREE  A&H
RARKESREBAMELEBERK
KERRBWMB T I HIEMEITZ
PRAE NI B B 2 P ERMET
B - BBRUBIRA—RRELRE

3.

HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (CONTINUED)

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (CONTINUED)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis
is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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3.

HZE-Z—\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash generating unit
("CGU") (or groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If
the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU
within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the
operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of
the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(CONTINUED)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets
of the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(CONTINUED)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint venture
are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’'s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group's performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether
the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by
the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before
the transfer of the associated goods or services in
which the Group adjusts for the promised amount of
consideration for a significant financing component, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. The relevant
interest expenses during the period between the
advance payments were received and the transfer of the
associated goods and services are accounted for on the
same basis as other borrowing costs.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset
so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss
on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the
assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the respective properties have been
delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.
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3.

HZE-Z—\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018) (CONTINUED)

Monthly fees received for membership are recognised
as revenue on straight-line basis over the service usage
period. Instalments received in advance for prepaid
packages are recorded as deferred income.

Revenue from trial classes is recognised when the trial
class is provided.

Revenue from personal training classes is recognised
when the personal training class is provided.

Revenue from registration and processing fee is
recognised when service package contract is entered
with customer.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Royalty arrangements that are based on sales are
recognised by reference to the underlying arrangement.

Services income is recognised when the relevant services
are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
structures held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purpose, and
other than construction in progress, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets, other than construction in progress, less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets - research
and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (CONTINUED)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research
and development expenditure (CONTINUED)

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

] how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination (CONTINUED)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets, intangible
assets and contract costs other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible, intangible assets
and contract costs with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment at least annually and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.

—Z— \fF£ £ 3R Annual Report 2018 145



BHEREXEBEERAF

Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

e BHRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZ2-Z—\F+=-A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

146

BEESTTHRE#)

BREE - BREEREGHNRE
(BEBRIN) ZRE (&)

AEEgEREAEXREREE L
AR EEER - ZTARAEERGEETE
EZAIWOe Rl AEEG[HAE
EMEBRSELBUZAIREEHA -
BRRAIGE N Bz DR EER
REABEENGEIEEMEMNREELE
- BRIDEZAERNGED —HD
REEZzHNRSELEGAR -

EAEBRET BV EMEERES
HAGENMEEEREBERRESE L
PXASED » AN 52 [ 42 58 A 2 R R 7 A e
REAEEBA B I EMEER
BER - EF  WEEEEEAKE
FEHIM A A R EX AR B B R S IR A% 2 (R
EREERZEERNREEREH
ZRA(BHERR/FAX) R ZHER - A
EMERBORAZEERRBIRE
BE(A) - B - B ESAKK
AZBERNERBEREELSEM L
BEMSTAREMNERSELEN
ZAREE -

] W [B] 5 BR 7% 2 B R EH 6 R AN L
REEMET ZERE - RFHEER
EBER - At RIRSREAT AR
REPBRERE RBRRERRE
RImSMatazcE¥EHEREE
(IR SEEEN) 2FERR (5L
msE - A ARKRERERKEL S

) -

—Z— )\FEF 3 Annual Report 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible assets, intangible
assets and contract costs other than
goodwill (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for
assets capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15,
the Group assesses and recognises any impairment
loss on other assets related to the relevant contracts in
accordance with applicable standards. Then, impairment
loss, if any, for assets capitalised as contract costs is
recognised to the extent the carrying amounts exceeds
the remaining amount of consideration that the Group
expects to receive in exchange for related goods or
services less the costs which relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not been recognised
as expenses. The assets capitalised as contract costs
are then included in the carrying amount of the CGU
to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that CGU.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible assets, intangible
assets and contract costs other than
goodwill (CONTINUED)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (CONTINUED)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating
lease. Specifically, the entire consideration (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments on land use rights” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
released over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Biological assets

Biological assets represent laboratory mice which is
measured on initial recognition and at each end of the
reporting period at their fair value less costs to sell. A
gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological
asset at fair value less costs to sell and from a change
in fair value less costs to sell of a biological asset is
included in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated cost of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary difference. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, and interests in associates and joint ventures
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, (i) the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into RMB; and (ii)
the assets and liabilities of the Group denominated
or translated in RMB are then translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$), using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for that period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). The accumulated exchange differences
arising from translation into presentation currency will
not be recycled to profit or loss.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution plans where the Group'’s obligations under
the plans are equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as expenses
unless other HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to

employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provision of reinstatement cost

A provision for reinstatement cost is made for the
estimated costs of dismantlement, removal restoration
of plant and equipment arising from acquisition or use
of assets, which are capitalised and included in the cost
of plant and equipment and recognised when the Group
has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Equity-settled share-based payment to
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (employee share-based compensation reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the employee share-based compensation reserve. For
equity instruments that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the equity instruments granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in employee share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained
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3.

HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Awarded shares granted to employees

When trustee of the share award scheme purchases
the Company’s shares from the open market, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as shares held for share
award scheme and deducted from total equity. No
gain or loss is recognised on the transactions of the
Company’s own shares.

The fair value of services received is determined by
reference to the fair value of share award granted at
the grant date and is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (shares held for share award reserve).

When the trustee transfers the Company’s granted
shares to grantees upon vesting, the related costs of the
granted shares vested are reversed from shares held for
share award scheme. Accordingly, the related expense
of the granted shares vested is reversed from shares
held for share award reserve. The difference arising from
such transfer is debited/credited to retained profits. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of awarded shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of
the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss with
a corresponding adjustment to the shares held for share
award reserve.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

] the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group

manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or
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Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments are recognised in OCl and accumulated
under the heading of FVTOCI reserve. Impairment
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments.
The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss
are the same as the amounts that would have
been recognised in profit or loss if these debt
instruments had been measured at amortised cost.
When these debt instruments are derecognised, the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loans receivables,
other receivables and deposits, amounts due from a
joint venture, an associate or other related parties, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, other investment, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.
The ECL on these assets are assessed collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.



BAhREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

e MR MEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEESHHE ®)

SRIAE)
ERMEE(H)

=@ EERE (RER 22 8RIKX

BB B R

(i)

9K ) (&)
BN R

RS EE R B 1A TR IA K
BEXNBIENE - ARELERS
MTARHRERRLBEENZE
fe B2 & R T AN VISR TERR A 5
HIREXD 2B o fELLRT 4R -
rEESERABYABEXF
ZEERFEEEH BEEAR
BNBANHTBERARLEN
TENRIERZ AL ER

ARME - AEERTEEEE
A S AR g BT 5IE
K

s EBMIAZIIE (A=K
W*BZTE?Z&HjEEAB’-ﬂZ
BHzEXRTKREBER

s FERRZINBHISEF
HEBERL  PIWEE
BE BERAZEERYN
= HER ARG 0

e XB MBHELHEMRRZ
fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi?rTﬂ“@]z’Eﬁﬁ
A8 R B ABTT
BB N

s EBAREXRELRER

SRR ZERAER %

3.

BHE—_T—

NEFE+=A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; or
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk (CONTINUED)

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables and loans receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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3.

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables are each
assessed as a separate group);

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

—Z— \fF£ £ 3R Annual Report 2018 165



BHEREXEBEERAF

Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

e BHRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZ2-Z—\F+=-A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

166

BEESHHE #®)

ERITHEZ)
tREE(B)

2RAERE (RN T2.2 BIHX
BB B R RAEORE) ()

(v TEHEEERERERE)

BREEEMEEREE A FER
BZEBTAREN  NEERE
BEAERMATMIAZERASHE
P18 25 B O RE R LR (B I s 3
18 EEWE SR - AR
HIR -~ EUWE R - M TR
K~ —fEAE R AR —
ERARRZBEFABEBER
BHERER - ERNBEEEMEE
WaRE AT EREE 2 BB TR
B BEBENEMEE KT
R ARNBEEMEREEER
FERERFHET R mAEH
Mz EEBIAFEWRIEZ K
[ & 78 e

EHEEZ T BERAKTE (R-F
—NF—HA—HEFEEHHEREE
UECL 400

AEEZSREEDBAEBERK
BAVERE EMEERERKE
WHRIE - DEBURREMEECHE
NER  YRVIFERZFEE °

FBBRmRR N FIEBEEZ EHBEE
EERMEENRFEEREER @ H(iDKE
ERBBBEGREATFERER £

BEEGSRASBIERERATE
R -

—Z— )\FEF 3 Annual Report 2018

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (CONTINUED)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (CONTINUED)

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
other receivables, loans receivables, amounts
due from other related parties, amount due
from a joint venture and amount due from an
associate where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account. For
investments in debt instruments that are measured
at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in OCI
and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve without
reducing the carrying amount of these debt
instruments/receivables.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified as financial
assets at FVTPL and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when

the financial asset is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.



BAhREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

eV BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEESHHE ®)

SRIAE)
ERMEE(H)

BBRBRENFEREZ 2B EE
(%)

S
U

WETHNER  BeMEESRER

FEERE :

e BASREEZIZEMNARNE
HARE: 3k

o« ROSHA  RERALES
HERZEHNSBIAME Y
—25 BB REREHE
I 5

s SREE/KRBIBERNMAIAR
EREMIAZITETR -

bR THIER - Bl EE (FE
EEZERMEERIN) AARTZ R
RIEERBBRARKREAFERE

o FABEEAIHEKAREDRE
EXZ T —BErEXHER %

s HZHETREERHEMEEN
TRBEIMEZEKED - M
RIRZN S B 2 BEE [ B B 3 sl 4%
BRES HREAFEEEEER
FHERE - BARERNZER S
RZEEEABREME X

e HER/EBEEHAZERAANITE
TREZAEMNZAKED MBS
SR EREIVRA RN G
BRH(BEXREB)EE/EBE
BEkRAFERE -

B

BRBERREATEREZEREE
BAVEE AEFTEMELZ
NFEEPRNEPEL 2 HRERE
BaRER NMERRER 2 Watsk
BIEFHEBENEREERNZER
BB RFE - Wt A TE A W zk M &
Bl—H\-

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Financial assets at FVTPL (CONTINUED)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the “other gains and
losses” line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other
receivables, loans receivables, amount due from a joint
venture, amount due from an associate, amounts due
from other related parties, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. The accounting policy on impairment
loss of financial assets is set out below.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For financial assets at amortised cost, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (CONTINUED)

] it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When the trade and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables,
other payables and deposit received, amount due to an
intermediate holding company, amounts due to other
related parties and bank and other borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Obligation arising from a put option on shares of a
subsidiary written to non-controlling shareholders

Put option written to non-controlling shareholders,
which will be settled other than by exchange of fixed
amount of cash for a fixed number of shares in a
subsidiary is treated as a derivative financial instrument
and is recognised at fair value upon initial recognition.
Any changes of fair value in subsequent reporting dates
are recognised in profit or loss.

The gross financial liability arising from the put option
is recognised when contractual obligation to purchase
the shares in a subsidiary is established even if the
obligation is conditional on the counterparty exercising
a right to sell the shares to the Group. The liability for
the share redemption amount is initially recognised and
measured at present value of the estimated purchase
price with the corresponding debit to the non-controlling
interests. In subsequent periods, effective interest on the
estimated gross obligation under the written put option
is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Method of measuring progress for
performance obligation satisfied over time

Under HKFRS 15, revenue from contracts with customers
is recognised by a single method for each performance
obligation satisfied over time and the method should be
applied consistently to similar performance obligations
in similar circumstances. The Group has considered that
the output selected would faithfully depict the Group's
performance towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation. Accordingly, revenue recognised
from provision of membership packages in fitness
centres, royalty fee income and service fee income in
relation to fitness and health activities in Taiwan are
based on output method.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(CONTINUED)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables (upon
application of HKFRS 9)

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
internal credit ratings as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is
based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group's trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 49 and 26.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$686,951,000 (net of credit losses of
HK$22,008,000). Details of the allowance for credit
losses are disclosed in note 26.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(prior to application of HKFRS 9)

The Group makes allowance for bad and doubtful
debts based on an assessment of the recoverability
of trade receivables. Allowances are made on trade
receivables whenever there is any objective evidence that
the balances may not be collectible. In estimating the
allowance for bad and doubtful debts, the management
considers the credit history of customers, including
default or delay in settlement, subsequent settlements,
aging analysis of the trade receivables and the business
relationship with the customers. Where the actual
outcome of the recoverability of trade receivables is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of trade receivables and
allowance for bad and doubtful debts in the period in
which such estimate has changed.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(CONTINUED)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(prior to application of HKFRS 9) (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$532,671,000 (net of allowance of
HK$20,368,000). Details of the allowance for bad and
doubtful debts are disclosed in note 26.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of
the CGUs to which goodwill and the intangible assets
have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the present value of the future
cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs containing
goodwill and the intangible assets using suitable
discount rates. Where the expected future cash flows
arising from the relevant CGUs differ from the original
estimation, an impairment loss may arise. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 21.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of
goodwill and intangible assets are HK$437,569,000
(2017: HK$439,160,000) (note 19) and HK$322,093,000
(2017: HK$324,302,000) (note 20), respectively.
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WA 5. REVENUE
(A) BE-Z—N\F+=-B=+—8 (A) For the year ended 31 December 2018
LtFE
(i) KEBEPELHZWARN (i)  Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers
BE B&K
BEXK BEXK ES S @t
Medical,
pharmaceutical
and health Fitness Cement
business business business Total
TEL TAEL AT TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EnkREESE Types of goods and services
RERBERNBERERE Manufacture and sales of
HHEM prescription drugs and
laboratory related products 495,757 - - 495,757
gL RIRHEE SN Operation of fitness centres
BREZARE and provision of consultation
services for fitness and health
activities
— LA BRER ~ Personal training classes - 130,837 — 130,837
-SRER - membership packages - 179,655 = 179,655
EReERIRBRRE2 Royalty fee income in relation to
BHEERA fitness and health activities in
Taiwan - 54,182 - 54,182
EHaERIRERREZ Service fee income in relation to
RBEBKA fitness and health activities in
Taiwan - 2,993 - 2,993
BB RHE KR RAH Manufacture and sales of
cement and clinker - - 447,738 447,738
SEKE Trading of cement = = 782,562 782,562
“@=t Total 495,757 367,667 1,230,300 2,093,724
BWABRER Timing of revenue
recognition
HEEE Point in time 495,757 130,837 1,230,300 1,856,894
¥ 5 Over time - 236,830 - 236,830
@it Total 495,757 367,667 1,230,300 2,093,724
B Wi Geographical markets
F The PRC 495,757 26,490 1,230,300 1,752,547
i 1B Singapore - 284,002 - 284,002
=y Taiwan - 57,175 - 57,175
HoEy Total 495,757 367,667 1,230,300 2,093,724
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(A) For the year ended 31 December 2018
(CONTINUED)

5.
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(ii)

Performance obligations for contacts with
customers

For manufacture and sales of prescription
drugs and laboratory related products,
revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been delivered to the designated location
(delivery). The normal credit period is 30 to
90 days upon delivery. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits
range from 10% to 20% of the total contract
sum. Sales-related warranties associated
with the goods cannot be purchased
separately and they serve as an assurance
that the goods sold comply with agreed-upon
specifications. Accordingly, the Group
accounts for warranties in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets consistent with its previous
accounting treatment.

For provision of personal training classes
in fitness centres, revenue is recognised at
point in time when the customers obtain
the services. For provision of membership
packages in fitness centres, revenue is
recognised over time when the control of
the services have been transferred to the
customers. Trade receivables mainly represent
receivables from financial institutions in
relation to the payment settled through
using credit cards by individual customers
of which the settlement is normally 15 days
from transaction date. Transaction price is
received by installments or in advance in
full for prepaid membership packages or
personal training classes and this will give
rise to contract liabilities in which revenue
have not been recognised. Royalty fee income
in relation to fitness and health activities in
Taiwan and service fee income in relation
to fitness and health activities in Taiwan is
recognised over time when the control of the
services have been transferred. The settlement
is normally 30 days from transaction date.

For manufacture and sales of cement and
clinker and trading of cement, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the designated location (delivery).
The normal credit period is 90 days to 1 year
upon delivery. The Group requires certain
customers to provide upfront deposits range
from 10% to 20% of total contract sum.
When the Group receives a deposit before the
goods have been delivered to the designated
location, this will give rise to contract liabilities
at the start of a contract.
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5. WA &)
(A) BE-—E—-N\E+=-B=+-—H
LEE (&)

(iii)

PREEPENZRNRE

HZE-Z—\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(A) For the year ended 31 December 2018
(CONTINUED)
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining

HEEZX5E performance obligation for contracts with
customers
R - NF+= The transaction price allocated to the
=+—H SEEFERE remaining performance obligations
NEE CREBASEBDKRE (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
#)) 2 3 5 (8 & 78 B R sR UK December 2018 and the expected timing of
AZBEBIT : recognising revenue are as follows:
e
Fitness
business
FAT
HK$'000
—E R Within one year 127,212
—FAEBETNEBARE More than one year but not
more than two years 61,323
188,535
BE EHZNEREEFU Contracts for medical, pharmaceutical and
RKREBZ2EH B — health business and cement business are for
FHRIMN—F -MBBY periods of one year or less. As permitted
% W& 2B F 1598 FT 2 under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
O REREZERETE allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
Nz RGHBIRIKE - disclosed.
(B) Eﬁzgg tF£+=A=+—H (B) For the year ended 31 December 2017
AEBRFRNHWADTAOT An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is
as follows:
—T—+F
2017
FET
HK$'000
BERIHER T B R Manufacture and sales of prescription drugs
EREHEEMR and laboratory related products 353,774
RS 5 R0 R R & A Operation of fitness centres and provision
2 % 5 R 75 of consultation services for fitness and
health activities 195,763
EAeERgERERS 2 Royalty fee income in relation to fitness and
BB IR A health activities in Taiwan 31,252
FHEeERT REERS 2 Service fee income in relation to fitness and
AR 7% & U A health activities in Taiwan 2,074
238 RIHE KR R#K Manufacture and sales of cement and
clinker 275,683
BEBE/KE Trading of cement 485,790
1,344,336
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
acquired fitness business. The chief executive, being
the chief operating decision maker, had reassessed
the Group’s operations and measurement of financial
performance assessment and identified (1) medical,
pharmaceutical and health business; (2) fitness business;
and (3) cement business as three separate operating and
reportable segments of the Group.

The operating business organised and managed in
each segment represents a strategic business unit that
offers different products and services for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance. The Group has following operating and
reportable segments:

o Medical, pharmaceutical and health business -
manufacture and sales of prescription drugs and
laboratory related products.

o Fitness business — operate fitness centres and
provide consultation services for fitness and health
activities and operate the franchise business for
royalty and service fee income.

° Cement business — manufacture and sales of
cement and clinker and trading of cement.

No operating segments identified have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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PEHER (&) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) 7MBUARESE (i) Segment revenue and results
REEDBRARFEE 2D Analysis of the Group’s segment revenue and
™ results is as follows:

BR BERERER
Medical, pharmaceutical and BEER *EEH 3
health business Fitness business Cement business Total
“E-\f C-EZ-+tfF ZE-Nf —T-+F CZE-N\f CT-tF CZE-\f C—F-t%
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
TiEn TEL TiEn T#n THR T#n THR T#n
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NREPABHRA Seqment revenue from external
customers 495,757 353,774 367,667 229,089 1,230,300 761473 2,093,724 1,344,336
1855 Segment results 54,736 33,817 67,859 39,864 85,805 14,370 208,400 88,051
AARBERA Unallocated corporate income 4,072 8,85
APRLERT Unallocated corporate expenses (59,755) (39,055)
BERK Finance costs (43,851) (21,882)
B AR Profit before taxation 108,866 35,970

BE_Z—\GEE_F—+tF
+ - A=+—HLEFERITESD
HEHEE - J2®A T 2K
REAEE @ HEER - o
WEHESHI @M TEE
ROMEFERARFTAREE
AR o T B R 2 Bt R IB R
FAARTEBEERKERE
ZETEHEE o

There was no inter-segment sales during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. The
accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Segment results represent the profit from each
segment without allocation of unallocated
corporate income and expenses, and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker of the Company for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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6. DIHER (&) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) »BEERES (ii) Segment assets and liabilities
BE BERRRER
Medical, pharmaceutical EES kEEH £8
and health business Fitness business Cement business Total
“E-N\f ZE-tF ZB-N\f ZE-tE ZB-N\f ZT-tf ZEB-\f CFT-+%
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
TiEn i TiEn Tin Tan i TiEn TiL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PHEE Segment assets 995,566 1,280,513 738,518 713,103 1,469,622 1,352,080 3,203,706 3,345,696
ERHEEE Deferred tax assets 2,663 4,360
FORLERE Unallocated corporate assets 136,095 94,154
RABE Consolidated assets 3,342,464 3444210
BE BERRRER
Medical, pharmaceutical REEH KEEH &8
and health business Fitness business Cement business Total
“B-\f ZE-tF ZB-N\f ZE-tf ZB-\f C—T-tf ZB-\f ZF-t%
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
TiEn Tin TiEn Tén TAx FiL TAx TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PEEE Segment liabilities 150,772 122,908 162,347 248 806 358,164 212,603 671,283 584,317
MEEE Tax liabilities 105,533 87292
FIREMREE Bank and other borrowings 548,992 805,002
ETHA Deferred taxation 106,297 113,537
FOELEER Unallocated corporate liabilities 1,298 5,350
FRAk Consolidated liabilties 1433403 1595498
LB E‘Bﬁfﬁ NTaR= N For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
BRMmM=E and allocating resources between segments:
. Fﬁ EEEOIRERED e all assets are allocated to operating segments

180
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other than deferred tax assets and unallocated
corporate assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than tax liabilities, bank and other
borrowings, deferred taxation and unallocated
corporate liabilities.
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D EBE R (2 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(iii) H oL EE (iii) Other segment information
STAD B ERS D EETEZ Amounts included in the measure of segment profit
B or loss or segment assets:
BR BERREXH
Medical, pharmaceutical BEER KEER ESil ) L
and health business Fitness business Cement business Unallocated Total
Z8-NF CTF RN CELE CR-NE CT4F N CELF DR\ TR
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 217
T Thn Tin Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEXTBEE Addition to non-current assets 68,085 69,583 4095 604,678 12412 18,174 9 220 84,601 694,705
BERNE Amortisation and depreciation 29211 17,08 30,355 18,724 21,404 20,678 159 315 81,495 56,745
FAREERATEREL Fair value (gains) losses on
EREEZATE NG BE financial assets at FVTPL - = - = 8.437) (2,168) 10,806 (6,841) 2,369 (9,009)
HEMA Inferest income (4,545) (am) (57) @) (088 63 @) (%6 (1792  (190%3)
EREEREZL Impairment losses (reversed) on financial
SHAEZRERE(BR) assets recognised in profit or loss 3429 892 2,100 5771 (2.851) 16,381 (224) - 2454 17,850
HEERER Written off on loans receivables - - - - 45,447 - - - 45,441 -
8 (BD) REFERNH (Reversal of) impairment loss on inventories - (618) - 2 - 2,087 - - - 1469
il NG E 3 Share of results of an associate - - (12,704) (8632) - (133) - - (12,704) (8,765)
El-BagnnzE Share of results of a joint venture (13,059)  (11,666) - - - - - - (13,059 (11,666)
Bl THERE BNRERE Release of prepaid lease payments on land
use rights 3212 291 - - 184 180 - - 3,3% 3,151
HERMENE  BRERREL Net loss (gain) on disposal and write-off
Bl (hs) 58 of property, plant and equipment 678 ) 3374 - 3 111% - - 401 11176
EREEHRMBER AR Fquity-settled share-based payments 412 8868 - - - - 675 1529 4799 10,397
R-RRENE 2B Interests in an associate - - 303 13,007 - - = - 303 13,007
R-RaEnA kR Inferests in & oint venture - - - - - - 535 2109 45375 21,083
(iv) EEFTEREF2EH (iv) Information about major customers
HE—_E—N\E+-_A=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue

JJ:EJ; CRBAOEEB —REP

Z W A 610,205,000 7T (=

L —+4F : 375,162,000 7T)
BEEAEEWABBEI0% °

from a customer in the cement business amounting
to HK$610,205,000 (2017: HK$375,162,000)
individually represented more than 10% of the
Group’s revenue.
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6.

DEER (&)
(v) hEE

AEEZ EEMNFE - F K
kEE - BEREARERERE:
BREIIREL ZWANER T
EREEMEUERY - BEAR
SEERPDEE (ELCHREE
KB HEIRIRITEREIN) OB #
DEREEZHBEMNESY -

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(v) Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC,
Singapore and Taiwan. Information about the
Group’s revenue from continuing operations
from external customers is presented based on
the location of operations. Information about the
Group’s non-current assets (other than deferred
tax assets and pledged bank deposits) is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

RENREFZWA
Revenue from *¥RBEE
external customers Non-current assets
“E-N\E C—E—+tF% ZB-NFE C—ZT—+F
2018 2017 2018 2017
TERT TEL TR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H The PRC 1,752,547 1,129,941 1,086,653 1,083,078
N Singapore 284,002 181,069 569,788 591,480
8% Taiwan 57,175 33,326 303 13,007
2,093,724 1,344,336 1,656,744 1,687,565
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H e A 7. OTHER INCOME
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERTTZHFBUA Interest income from banks 4,189 4344
JE U B SRR Bk A Interest income from loans receivables 6,178 6,499
REAREEHEARZ—% Interest income from a non-controlling
FEFERR AR R 2 F B A shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary 5,683 6,387
KE—BFRNMIERAFZ Interest income from an intermediate
LU A holding company - 995
REEMEWKRIEZ Interest income from other receivables
M EMA 322 828
REBBEMEE KSR Interest income from debt instruments
AFPEREBZEHRIAEZ at FVTOCI
FEWA 1,238 -
REHMEE 2 FERA Interest income from other investment 45 -
*E—H&a&ERd Interest income from a joint venture
Z B A 287 -
17,942 19,053
HHEHERK AT E 22 EE  Interest income from financial
Z H B WA assets at amortised cost 16,704 19,053
FBEMEEUYZEIRAFEE Interest income from financial
BEZEHEELZ assets at FVTOCI
MEUA 1,238 -
17,942 19,053
BT 468 B K 4 B Government grant and subsidy
—EEW AR E (H5E35) - release from deferred income (note 35) 6,824 -
—MHERX — expenses related 12,342 8,725
REFL I & Sales of scrap 1,034 2,277
& WA Rental income 3,693 3,869
R A Sundry income 2,939 6,172
44,774 40,096

—Z— \F 3] Annual Report 2018 183



BLEREXEEERATF

Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

e BHRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—\F+=ZA=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

8.

HttmREEARSMEE
MERE (KRB HE)

(a) Hitlz R EE

184

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL

ASSETS NET OF REVERSAL

(a) Other gains and losses

—E-N\F —EF—+F
2018 2017
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
bE 5 B 18 F 5 Net foreign exchange loss (9,338) 4,071
FBERERATFERE  Fair value (losses) gains on financial
BreamBEEZRT assets at FVTPL
B (58 ks (2,369) 3,798
HeERMEYE BE  Netloss on disposal and write-off of
BB EEFE property, plant and equipment (4,077) (11,176)
HEBLEEZEE Net loss on disposal of intangible assets
)= E-C (407) -
W sE BE A S RERR ¢ Written off recognised on:
—EWE R (FIFED — Loan receivables (note i) (45,447) =
mAEETRZH 2 Gain on shortfall of profit undertaking
Yoz (B Eii) (note ii) 58,900 27,125
HE—HMBARZ Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Weas (Mt sE44) (note 44) 7,165 _
HE—H&agRAZ Loss on disposal of a joint venture
&8 - (180)
4,427 23,638
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HibRaRGEUARSHEE
WERE (HRREEE) &)

(a)

HibW s K B8 (#)

FsE

)

(if)

REBEE=-Z—\F+=-A=+—H
EFE ARRSEFRERBRE
KRR BEAR-ZE—-N\FRAHE
B BEVRREMELRER
A& 4% A A R 135,000,000
7t (#8% 141,652,000/ 75) 2 &
WEF R AERE RN T 8B EEEM
i o ERAEBENERSHF 2
N BEERAEFBEREKER -

R ¥& B B BB TFKT True Holdings
REKMBAR ([TFKT True£E )
51% M ANz A K2 E B i
AR AR RENERF ([True
Yogatk B ) 29% & AN 25 (S 78
[Truel B E1E]) 2 RE &
Active Gains Universal Limited
(I Active Gains ] » TFKT True
Holdings,z 3F 2 IR iR 3R ) B3 55 =
Tk (Truelk BEBZREAB
TFKT True HoldingszZ &l A) 5
AGE  MTFKT True=B@HE-F
—t&+-_A=+—HALEE"
HEz-_Z2—N\F+=-A=+—8
FFERBEE-FT—NFE+=A
=+ BLEFEZEBEREER
i 1 #6 7 o Bl 2> 528,200,000
gt (% 7T ]) ~ 10,900,000% Jt &
13,800,000 7T (% B 10% T~ A%
BRE  BATFKT TrueE&ZE

T—tHF+-A=F+—RHLF
f %zi_7 NE+=ZA=+—
AEFEERBE-ZT—HAE+=
B=+—BLEFEZEERERA
BB 1% 4 F) 2 B 2 747,380,000k
JC ~ 9,810,000 7T & 12,420,000
ETTEABES) © Active GainsiIASE
TRAAEBZHHEERTEZE
(ZOTFKT TrueEE BIRZEE - BB
FEBEREE) FLA00% 2 S8R
18 o

E BRI AETR 2 &z ks
BITFKT True sk BEZ=—ZT—N\F
+ZB=+—BLEFEZHRERH
1% % 7 £210,900,0003= JT 2 = %8
(ZZT—+4 : 8,200,000 7T) °
ER2EE  BHEZZ—NEFE+=A
=t+—BLEFEZENEETR
ZERARGEMBEREABTE
TEHE R -

BHE—_T—

NEFE+=A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS NET OF REVERSAL (CONTINUED)

(a) Other gains and losses (CONTINUED)

Notes:

)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, loans
receivables with an aggregate principal amount of
RMB35,000,000 (equivalent to HK$41,652,000) and
the corresponding interest receivables had been fully
written off in view of the fact that the counterparty’s
representative and the shareholder have indicated that
the debtor does not have resources to repay due to
severe financial difficulties noted in June 2018. Based on
the Group’s knowledge on the counterparty’s situation,
the Directors considered the loans receivable cannot be
recovered.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement for the
acquisition of 51% equity interest in TFKT True Holdings
and its subsidiaries (the “TFKT True Group”) and 29%
equity interest in True Yoga Holdings Limited and its
subsidiary (the “True Yoga Group”) (collectively the
“True Acquisition”), Active Gains Universal Limited
(“Active Gains”), the non-controlling shareholder of TFKT
True Holdings, and Mr. Patrick John Wee Ewe Seng,
the warrantor for the True Acquisition and founder of
TEKT True Holdings, have undertaken that if the audited
consolidated net profit after tax of TFKT True Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017, year ended 31
December 2018 and year ending 31 December 2019 shall
be less than United States dollars (“US$") 8,200,000,
US$10,900,000 and US$13,800,000, respectively (subject
to a 10% buffer of downward adjustment which will be
triggered if the audited consolidated net profit after tax of
TFKT True Group is less than US$7,380,000, US$9,810,000
and US$12,420,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017, year ended 31 December 2018 and year ending 31
December 2019 respectively), Active Gains shall pay to the
Group an amount equal to such shortfall (including the
amount of net loss in the event TFKT True Group is loss
making) on a dollar-to-dollar basis multiplied by 100% in
the US$.

Accordingly, the gain on shortfall of profit undertaking
represented the difference between the consolidated
net profit after tax of TFKT True Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and US$10,900,000 (2017:
US$8,200,000). The Directors do not anticipate shortfalls
of profit undertaking for the year ending 31 December
2019 at the date of these consolidated financial
statements were approved for issuance.
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HttSEREEUARSHMEE
WERE (HRRE ) &)

(b) EREERERIR (R
B & %)

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES AND

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS NET OF REVERSAL (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment losses of financial assets,
net of reversal

—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FTET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
A TR ERER (B E)  Impairment losses (reversed)
2 BIEEE recognised on:
*EEH&E%?KIE — Trade receivables 972 2,696
—ﬁT‘M’EH& — Other receivables 26 15,154
—Fﬂﬁlf = - Loans receivables 1,263 _
— B E QR R — Amount due from an associate 660 -
——Fﬁ/\ EWNEIDSEN — Amount due from a joint venture (225) -
— E i B Bk 75 RO — Amounts due from other related parties (242) -
2,454 17,850
B & B A FINANCE COSTS
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
THERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
T EEZAE Interests on following borrowings:
RITEK Bank loans 9,173 7,254
HEpEE Other borrowings 34,583 12,980
BT IFERAR R Imputed interest arising from a put
—IHRABEELE 2 option granted to non-controlling
EEER S (M) shareholder (note) - 1,435
BmERESMT Obligations under finance leases 95 78
ERTHE Loans arrangement fee = 135
43,851 21,882
B & Note:

R IETruelt 8 =18 2 I B 5 &% * Active Gains
(TFKT True Holdings 2 FE#E AR AR 3R ) &% T — 18
Roh HARE - Al M ZN & B [ & TFKT True Holdings
2 9% M AN HE 75 o 3R 0h BARE O] R Active GainsBA
10,800,000 7T Z 1T {E BT + METFKT Truef
@Ek _iE +tE+-_A=+—HALEEZE

& bR 1& 41 7 T 15 2 528,200,000% 7T
( ﬁm%T;ﬂ%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ EN7,380,0003T) °

B8 BTFKT True Holdings& {5 2 & 43 75 — 48 i
S & R Truel B8 =5 T8 75 A B FE SR 3R 00 A AT
EEZemBERE NESHAEZEIEAR
Active GainsfT i a2 & B i & B 15 2 4 F 71
ReBHERBZABYSRAEFBEEEZR
BERERLE  WHBERIEERESAAR -

Bt - 5% FActive GainsiZ ik FIAE AT EE 4 2 &
B ERBHEEANER HARBE=-T—t4F
+=A=+— EJLEFZ%T%?'J%G%‘&E%ﬁEZ
H (Ki3E8(a)) MR AHEFMELEZSRAE
MECR T —tF+ A=+ BHEKRILRE

=
=7
o °©
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Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement for the True Acquisition, Active
Gains, the non-controlling shareholder of TFKT True Holdings, is granted
a put option to sell to the Group 9% of equity interest in TFKT True
Holdings. The put option is exercisable by Active Gains with an exercise
price of US$10,800,000 provided that the audited consolidated net
profit after tax of TFKT True Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 shall be not less than US$8,200,000 (subject to a 10% buffer of
downward adjustment i.e. US$7,380,000).

The gross financial liability arising from the put option is recognised
upon the completion of the True Acquisition when contractual
obligation to purchase the shares in TFKT True Holdings is established
even if the obligation is conditional on Active Gains exercising a right
to sell the shares to the Group. The liability for the share redemption
amount is initially recognised and measured at present value of the
estimated purchase price with the corresponding debit to the non-
controlling interests. Accordingly, the imputed interest arising from
this put option granted to Active Gains is recognised in profit or loss.
Such gross financial liability arising from the put option has been
derecognised as at 31 December 2017 as a result of the shortfall of
undertaking for the year ended 31 December 2017 (note 8(a)).
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10. EE - E5THAE - EER 10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
SREEAEME EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

REEEE EENSHETEAE Emoluments of directors’, employees’ and senior
B2 B Fiil A & EE D & BT management for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
BT EEEEERBENT applicable disclosures required by the Listing Rules and
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:
EEME Directors’ emoluments
EfEMNEZ(ZE—+F: £8) The remuneration paid or payable to each of the seven
EENEEHTE xgz FE a0 T (2017: seven) directors and the Chief Executive Officer
were as follows:
ZE-N\E
2018
BikE
§4/ERE  BiEY uBHaER
REMER RRAHE  HEMR PANES

Salaries/ ZHEAL  Retirement Equity-
EZHE  servicefee Performance benefits settled ~ MEAH
Directors'  and other related scheme share-based Total
fees benefits bonuses contributions  payments emoluments
TEn TiER TEn TiEn Tén Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

BERUTERYUNES: Chief Executive Officer and

e Executive Director:

BHNAE Mr. Jiang Chaowen* 9 1,500 - 63 406 1,978

yhEs: Executive Directors:
LI Mr. Huang Yu 10 681 75 34 - 800
(not\e 3)

o P8 (K3t

ERELEM Mr. Ng Qing Hait* 1 1823 m 9 114 2,748
(not\e b)
(Mt3tb)

3Ky £ Non-Executive Director:

RE i Mr. Zhang Yi** 1 104 - 3 _ 108

BukunEs: Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BEREE Mr. Chan Sze Chung 10 80 - - 34 124

Bt it Mr. Zhang Ruibin 10 80 - B 3 12

RRERE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack 10 80 - - 34 124

57 4,348 788 191 622 6,006

& BEHNEGER=—_ZE—+E+=-_A+—H v Mr. Jiang Chaowen was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer

BZERARRAZEFBHTERRZZ and Executive Director of the Company on 11 December 2017

—NEFE—A=-Z+=ZBEZETAELARH and 23 January 2018, respectively. His emoluments disclosed
TES . FXFBEBAXTEZNE above include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
BREERTFANELEEERTE RAITE Executive Officer and Executive Director during the year.
ERERBZME -

# HEESEAER-_ZE—NENLA=BLIL ## Mr. Ng Qing Hai ceased to be the Executive Director of the
HEARBZHITES  HEBEETA Company on 3 September 2018 but continued to act as a
NAIZEHRERBAE - FXFIBESS senior management of the Company. His emoluments disclosed
BEEZIESBIERNERNEASNITE above include his services rendered by him as an Executive
ERERB2ME - Director during the year.

** RBEAEEAR-_TE-NF-HAZT=HE **  Mr. Zhang Yi resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the
FEARATZEHTES . FXFHBEE Company on 23 January 2018. His emoluments disclosed
Bk > TS B A e B e 8L T Sti)r%\gc;p(éjlﬂgﬁghltsh;eyr\e/;cfS rendered by him as an Non-Executive

E=RMHRE M -
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HE-Z—\F+=ZA=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

10. EX  RRTRAB - EER
EREEZAEME @)

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

gtk
2017

RV
3oL il

54/BRE S ook
REwEH  BER  nEAR o6E

Salaries/  FTEZ7EAL  Retirement Equity-
EEHS  senicefee  Performance benefits settled Hemsm
Directors' and other related scheme  share-based Total
fees benefits bonuses  contributions  payments  emoluments

TETL TR TEL TAL TAT TET
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

UrEs. Executive Directors:
ERfE Mr. Huang Yu 10 649 200 30 = 889
(note )
(Fi#Ea)
BB LM Mr. N Qing Hai'* 10 2,834 288 131 383 3,646
(note h)
(FitzEp)
FATEE Non-Executive Director:
EES Mr. Zhang Yi" 10 1,800 1,088 54 1,533 4,485
(note a)
(FizFa)
BukungEs Independent Non-Executive Directors:
RERsL Mr. Chan Sze Chung 10 79 - - 7 166
Rt Mr. Zhang Ruibin 10 79 - 4 71 166
REEEE Mr. Zhang Junxi Jack 10 79 - - 7 166
BETHAL: Chief Executive:
e Mr. Jiang Chaowen - 57 = 3 - 60
60 5,577 1,576 218 2,147 9,578

# HEBEER-_T—tE+-A+—H
RIFHEARBZEETREE (RIEL™
HRAEEREZDITRA S ZBAL) - M
BREEARRZIITES - EXMEEE
BRELEZHMERERREE_F—+
FH_A=t-"BRLEEEREZTER
BRATESERHRBZHE

. RHELEER_ZT—+tF+_HA+—HBH
ARABZHATESHERIFNTES

z BHAXEER_Z—tF+_A+—H
BRERRRRZEREHRTE - ERE
Bl ) R e e S
s Eles=ts—re s - — B =5
HEERERATERARE 2HE -
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Mr. Ng Qing Hai ceased to be the Managing Director of the
Company (equivalent to the role as the chief executive under
the Listing Rules) on 11 December 2017 but continued to act
as an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ng Qing Hai's
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Managing Director and Executive Director during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Mr. Zhang Yi was re-designated from an Executive Director to a
Non-Executive Director of the Company on 11 December 2017.

Mr. Jiang Chaowen was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 11 December 2017. His emoluments above
include his services rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer
from 11 December 2017 to 31 December 2017.



BAhREEXEEERLA
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

eV BHRRHE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. %? :aif%' THRAE-EER

NEFRRBTESZ M RBKREER
RRABRAEBEBAIRHE Z REE
e ALFRIERTEE e EE
BEEALRHEMBARESMEHR
ZIRBER - A LR RBYIFATE
EZMeRBREETARRESZMIE
HZRBEER -

TEATIZEREERLERE  HAR
BARBUNSEBRET

RBE-_T-N\FR-_T—tF+_
A=+—BHILFE " ﬁ%?ﬂi%%ﬁ&%&
fa] B &

(a) %%’E?EEWE?MEZ*HE%%$§U—
BIBTEAL

(b) SHEEFACHEZEEAE BRI
TEAL -

HZE-Z—\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
non-executive director’'s emoluments shown above
were for his services as director of the Company or its
subsidiaries. The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

Bonus was determined with reference to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

None of the Directors waived any emoluments during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Notes:

(a) The amount represented the discretionary bonus of the preceding
year approved to the respective directors during the year.

(b)  The amount represented the bonus on monthly target scheme
approved to the director during the year.

—Z— \fF £ 3R Annual Report 2018 189



BLERREXEEERAT
Tongfang Kontafarma Holdings Limited

e BHRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZ2-Z—\F+=-A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

10. EX  RRTRAB - EER
EREBAEME &)

BEME

AEBAZZRFMALTTERSE
(ZE—tF: MB)REARAEEFK
RIEER WEZMESE N EXREE -
BE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HIF
B Efp=%(ZF—tF =8)K%

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2017: two) were the Directors or the
former director of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosure above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2017: three) highest paid individuals for

SEFMALTZMEOT the year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:
—®-N\F —T—+%F
2018 2017
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$000
FHehEMmETR Salaries and other benefits 4,143 2,895
BREBFAE ZIEL Performance related bonuses 356 250
RRAEH GBI Retirement benefits scheme contributions 151 148

EREEUAROAERZ Equity-settled share-based payments

BES 438 2,583
5,088 5,876

BREZMENFRTIIEE :

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

EE®A
Number of employees
—g-N\F —F—LF

2018 2017

21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 =
1,000,001#% 7C £ 1,500,000/ 7t HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1

2,000,001 7 £2,500,000/% 7  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 2

3 3

REBE-T-N\Ft+-_A=t—BL1
FE AREHMEALZRSHHA
TR REMME (Z—CF : &)
AMEREEIREMALR AR EE
& ZHH -
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
emoluments (2017: Nil) were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group.
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10. EE - RETHRAE - EER 10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

SREBAEME &) EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
EREEAEMSES Senior management’s emoluments
REBGHREBAEREAEZ (ZZ Of the senior management of the Group, six (2017: six)
—tF: RB)RARBESFTHANE were the Directors or former directors of the Company
E HEZHEE R ERE - BE whose emoluments are included in the disclosure above.
—E-N\F+ZA=T—HILFE - The emoluments of the remaining eight (2017: nine)
ESNE (ZE—+HF: hE&) AT 2 individuals for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
BT : as follows:
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
THERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HehEMmETR Salaries and other benefits 6,465 5,465
BREBFTEZIEL Performance related bonuses 643 697
RRAR GBI K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 404 444
BREEURDAEER Equity-settled share-based payments
E 708 3,196
8,220 9,802
BEzMe N FRTNEE : Their emoluments were within the following bands:
EEHE
Number of employees
—E-N\FE ZZT—tF
2018 2017
#£ 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 5 6
1,000,001% 721,500,000/ 7t HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 2 1
1,500,001/ c £2,000,000/%8 7t HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 =
2,000,001/t £2,500,000/% 7t HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 2
8 9
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HEZ2-Z—\F+=-A=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. %18 11. TAXATION
—E-N\#F —E—tF
2018 2017
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
X HBEE The charge comprises:
B B A 18 Current tax
—FR B ERREE — PRC Enterprise Income Tax (33,456) (1,974)
—EBMNEHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax (10) (19)
— TN 1 E TS — Singapore Corporate Income Tax (587) (1,979)
—BETEMSH — Taiwan Corporate Income Tax (6,811) (4,999)
(40,864) (8,971)
WEFEBERE Over provision in prior years
—HHEPEMRERH — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 535 7,475
—BENEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax 9 14
544 7,489
RAETEIE (M aE41) Deferred tax (note 41) 2,966 1,363
(37,354) (119)
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B\ e

PR EMERIZEANSHEB QR
ZREGE o BP BB EERE
B MERFPBRK LT ER A
Bt zMBRARAIREBEEZ
—NER_TE—+F+_A=+—
AEFEZFEREREIS% - Z—H
A B S 2 M B A F) ERA] A
EWRER M- --REEBR) U
AIREBE—_ZET—N\EEk_F—+tF
T A=+ HLEFEZHAEERHE
12.5% o A BN Z 2 E A KT /8 A )
BE-_Z—-N\Ft+-A=1t—BI#E
EZHEBABERAE25% (ZE—+4F:
25%) °

RZE—-—NF=ZAZ+—H BBL
ZEEAB(CE—LEEBB (BFTA)
(B75%) P EZR) (TEHIEZ]) 3
ANGHARS - ZIEHIERR—-F
—NF=ZA-+N\BEIRERE "
WRIRBTEEBR - RBEFFHBAR
o AEREEEREZ2AEAT
i F R 8.25% B R AL - K2
BEBTTA® A A5 1216.5%H) B R4
Bio AEEMRBFEHER ZEE
B 25N S HEAEIR16.5% 2 8] — T
R ARIR

EZRE - BERASHMARSH TR
CEREGAMBERRLEE N
1% At - MEFEZFBNFHG
B ERTOR N Z216.5% & ©

AN R FTIS M @ F R 2 fhaT
JERBR A IZ17 %51 & -

A2 0 PR E B B 2 3
BB FIE179%31 5 -

HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

11. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the
rates applicable to respective subsidiaries. According
to the PRC tax laws and regulations, two subsidiaries
established in the PRC, which was recognised as the
High and New Technology Enterprise, is entitled to
enjoy the preferential tax rate at 15% for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. Another subsidiary
established in the PRC was recognised as{{> %%t =
B M4 mEIBE) and is entitled to enjoy the
preferential tax rate at 12.5% for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. The applicable tax rate for
other subsidiaries established in the PRC is 25% (2017:
25%) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill"”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Singapore Corporate Income Tax is calculated at 17% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Taiwan Corporate Income Tax is calculated at 17% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.
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11. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

11. B\ (@)

AEEHRBEXHEFEEEREME
E R A BR B RS M E BRI T

The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B A% A1 5 A Profit before taxation 108,866 35,970
REINFTEBMNE25% Tax at the domestic income tax rate
—E—+F :25%) of 25% (2017: 25%)
AEZHE (27,217) (8,993)
N 2 RIETE Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose (14,870) (6,837)
DERBMMAZRIBZE Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose 13,379 11,215
AERZHIBEE 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
M2 (1,233) (596)
BEMER A E Tax effect of preferential tax rate 1,107 1,293
RERUIREHFERZ Tax effect of deductive temporary
MIBE & differences not recognised (7,435) =
FHEMAAERKEE 2 Effect of different tax rates of
BB A |l 2 R AR 2 subsidiaries operating in other
oA jurisdictions 782 597
R IRBF 2 BN 2 Tax effect of withholding
mmE e tax on undistributed earnings (1,610) 104
BEFEHBERE Over provision in prior years 544 7,489
FERER AR AR  Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised 5,640 672
JE(G— Bt E R RIEBZ Tax effect of share of result of an
MIEZE associate (3,176) (2,191)
B —HEERRIEEZ Tax effect of share of result of a
FiIEE 2 joint venture (3.265) (2,917)
Efth Others - 45
AEEHIBEZ N Taxation charge for the year (37,354) (119)

BANEERNTREECTERERL

BLZEERE -

The domestic tax rate represents the statutory tax rate of

the major group companies operating in the PRC.
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12. XEERF 12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

—E2-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEHE M TR R T3 Profit for the year has been arrived
BIRRER at after charging:
EIRAN(BIHEEEME) Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)
He MEM AR Salaries and other costs 204,333 139,119
=3 ﬁ%j@i%ﬂxf BERZ Equity-settled share-based payments
E: 4,799 10,397
RRAE A RETE Retirement benefits contributions
schemes 20,929 25,759
B8 TR Total staff costs 230,061 175,275
o BIRAR(BEEARILz  Less: staff costs (capitalised in
Ty inventories) (36,708) (31,932)
?iIﬁJZZlK (B8 Total staff costs (included in cost of sales
REEE RIRBKA - 288K and services, distribution and selling
HEBAETHER) expenses and
administrative expenses) 193,353 143,343
ZEEN & Auditor’s remuneration 4,073 2,107
MEERRAEZEER Research and development expenses
(FFAEMRAS) (included in other expenses) 25,283 23,727
FEREZERE Loss on impairment of inventories
(Bt AS4E RRIAKA) (included in cost of sales and services) = 1,469
M ERE A Provision of financial guarantee
(GFAE A B ) (MfaE) (included in other expenses) (note) = 1,488
m A ESH Amortisation of intangible assets 12,711 5,231
WEYETE Depreciation of investment properties 162 158
ME  BERREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 68,622 51,356
iR ITE A Total amortisation and depreciation 81,495 56,745
EHtmEREZ Release of prepaid lease payments on
FENEERE land use rights 3,396 3,151
MEZKERERS Operating lease rentals in respect of
premises 106,554 66,865

—Z— \FEF 3R Annual Report 2018
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13.
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REBEZ2-_ZE—N\F+=_A=+—H
IEFE AEERAERHBRS
TZz2—BAATRERALZNREE
534,000/ 7T (=& — £ 4 : 763,000
BIT) o R ERIBI AT A XXt
ZBINRALEE -

TFKT True [ BL() A& #100,000,000%= & ([ZF&
K 2ERBRBRINEN—RF= ﬁ(f%

/\J)ZFEDHLIJ@FTQ KA — B B ER

ZERBBIIRAERAR T —BHTFKT True
Holdingsz JE 12 IR IR R ETiE 6l 2 E 88 ([ & 3
A REBEE=ZZ—tF+=-A=1+—81
FEERZHE— Hﬁ%h%@%mjxﬂgmﬁf
TRKT True = BEAZBEFRBERAERILEZ
FEET RS -

BREFN (EE)

ARAFBIBREE2BRERAREER
M BR) DERATHREE -

13.

NF+=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

12.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
paid HK$534,000 (2017: HK$763,000) services fee to a
personnel services company providing temporary labours
to the Group. Such amounts are excluded from the total
staff costs as mentioned on above.

Note:

TFKT True Group granted a financial guarantee to a third party (the
“Lender”) in respect of (i) loan facilities amounting to Thai Bhat
("THB")100,000,000 and (ii) the accrued interest payable to the Lender.
The loan facilities were granted by the Lender to an entity under
control of the non-controlling shareholder of TFKT True Holdings (the
“Borrower”). The further provision recognised represented the accrued
interest up to the date when the Lender agreed to release TFKT True
Group as the guarantor in respect of this loan facilities during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

—B-NE —EF—+F
2018 2017
TR FHT
HK$'000 HK$’'000
AU ESRERK Earnings (loss) for the purposes of basic
BERN(BE) 2 and diluted earnings (loss) per share —
X (EE) attributable to owners of the Company
— KRR AR EL 32,499 (1,806)
—E-N\F —T—+tF
2018 2017
B %
Shares Shares
ik =] Number of shares
AU ESRERNK Weighted average number of ordinary
BEaN (&8 2 shares for the purposes of basic and
T @ AR N 19 diluted earnings (loss) per share 5,455,121,336 4,943,780,754
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BREFN (BE) &)
EXFR 2 BB S B A

B B 22 Ehat ) ([ R in 2Rt 81 1) +5
BB EE -

HARARABRENTEESRZE
—N\ERHHFEHTE  WEFEEE
—E-NF+ZA=Z+—HIEFEZ
BRE SR EREZSERE
BETTE -

BE_T—+tHF+-_A=1t—HLF
B HEFASRESERY A2
ARRBRENETE  FRREE
BHEBREERD -

Hﬁ /%\

ARBEEG((EFT]) TEHIKM
BE_Z-N\F+-_A=+t—HL*F
BZRBRE(ZF—1LF : &) °

ARARBE=T—N\F+=f
=+ B E A RERIE S (E(
BE(ZF—£F ) ¢
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (conTINUED)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown
above has been arrived at after deducting the shares
held by the share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the computation
of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average
market price for shares for 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the computation
of the diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s share options as such
assumption would result in a decrease in loss per share.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

No dividend was declared or paid by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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15. 1% - BERZHE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B 48
BTR k&%
EEY HERKE  AEIR  Fumiture,
Buildings HEEE Plant  Construction fixtures RE BERE
and  Leasehold and in and Motor Fitness ag
structures  improvements ~ machinery progress  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
Thn Thn Thn THL ThnL TR Thn TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S cost
RZE-t%-f-A At 1 January 2017 369,723 14,185 259,950 37,565 25,618 6,179 - 713,220
EiEE Exchange differences 213171 2,845 19,850 4,941 2,107 512 505 58,137
WERBARRES Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries - 43855 7070 10,790 3,308 7% 12337 78,155
HE Additions 101 6,659 13,712 50922 4,536 5,542 1,285 82,757
HERMH Disposals and write-off (9,558) (1.812) (13,342) (1,209 (819) (3.289) (511) (30,540)
EEpE Reclassification 1,787 7813 430 (14,786) 655 (6) 4107 -
RZE-tE+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2017 389,430 73,545 287,670 88,223 35,405 9,733 17,123 901,729
EiEE Exchange differences (19,809) (2,104) (14,673) (4.794) (1.721) (541) (37) (44.013)
HE Additions 11,800 8,212 9,299 17,99 5,895 4,651 450 58,299
& Rk Disposals and wrte-off (764) B6M)  (13) d (1997) (1485 000 (1009%)
EFE] Redlassification 3,120 - 8,888 (12,008) = - - _
HE-EHEAR Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - @n (62) - (339)
RZE-NE+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2018 383,777 76,029 289,858 89413 37,305 12,29 16,902 905,580
il DEPRECIATION
RZF-t5-R-A At 1 January 2017 48434 1,001 103,956 - 5537 2,088 - 161,016
EXZEE Exchange differences 4109 345 8,49 - 612 139 54 13,755
REERE Provided for the year 11,982 12,716 16,216 - 5,776 1971 2,695 51,356
REERMERHH Eliminated on disposals and write-off (2,697) (1,810) (6,604) - (m) (2,565) (484) (14931)
RE—tE+-A=1-A At 31 December 2017 61,828 12,252 122,064 = 11,154 1,633 2,265 211,1%
EizR Exchange differences (3,587) (962) (6,739) - (142) 210) (174) (12,414)
TEERE Provided for the year 14,503 20,703 17,685 - 6,738 4,608 4,385 68,622
R E R EEYE Eliminated on disposals and write-off (120) (39) (383) - (1342) (965) (687) (349)
HE-AKBAT Disposal of a subsidiary = = = = (52) 12) = 64)
RZF-\FtZA=1-A At 31 December 2018 72,624 31,958 132,667 - 15,756 5,054 5789 263,848
BERE CARRYING VALUES
R-E-NE+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2018 311,153 44,07 157,191 89413 21,549 7,242 11,13 641,732
RZE—tE+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2017 327,602 61,293 165,606 88,223 24,251 8,100 15,458 690,533
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HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings and structures 2.5% - 9%

Leasehold improvements 4.5% — 18%

Plant and machinery 5% - 9%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 20%

Motor vehicles 18% — 33.3%

Fitness equipment 14.3%
The buildings of the Group are situated on the leasehold
land in the PRC.

Details of the pledged of assets referred to note 50.

DEPOSITS FOR EQUIPMENT AND
MACHINERIES

On 28 September 2012, Shanghai Allied Cement Co.,
Ltd. * ( E/8BE KRR A5 (“Shanghai SAC”) entered
into three purchase agreements with independent
third parties for the purchases of certain equipment
and machineries at the aggregate consideration
of RMB380,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$433,197,000 (2017: HK$456,018,000)). The
equipment and machineries under the three purchase
agreements were purchased for future use in the
development of new cement production facilities at
Bailonggang, Pudong, Shanghai (“Bailonggang Project”)
which is to be managed and operated by a joint venture
company to be set up (details refer to note 47). The
Group and the Company do not intend to retain such
equipment and machineries for their own use. As at 31
December 2018, Shanghai SAC has settled the respective
first payments of the total consideration in an aggregate
amount of RMB68,270,000 (2017: RMB68,270,000)
(equivalent to approximately HK$77,827,000 (2017:
HK$81,927,000)) under the three purchase agreements.
Details of the transaction were set out in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 3
October 2012 and 15 November 2012 respectively and
note 47 to these consolidated financial statements.
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17. thFRAEZESHEHERE 17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE
RIGHTS
—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
FTERT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
T {FERREZ The prepaid lease payments
FENHEERERRE on land use rights comprise:
FHEETZ Leasehold land in the PRC under
RS 1 medium-term lease 115,017 110,429
T EmMELE 22T Analysed for reporting purposes as:
FERE Non-current 111,736 107,140
&N Current 3,281 3,289
115,017 110,429
ME T HAE A RFISREREL - The leasehold land is released on a straight-line basis
over the remaining term of leases.
BEHRBZFHER2H8M5E50 Details of the pledged of assets referred to note 50.
18. REY= 18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AT
HK$'000
A COST
R-ZZE—tF—H—H At 1 January 2017 5,133
X =% Exchange differences 377
RZE—+F+-_HA=+—8H At 31 December 2017 5,510
fE 5 =58 Exchange differences (276)
R-E—NF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2018 5,234
oy AMORTISATION
R-ZZE—tF—H—H At 1 January 2017 67
N =R Exchange differences 9
RNEEFENR Charge for the year 158
R_ZE—+F+_HA=+—H At 31 December 2017 234
X =% Exchange differences (17)
REE N Charge for the year 162
R-_ZE—N\FE+-_HA=+—8H At 31 December 2018 379
SRHEE CARRYING VALUE
N=E— \NE-F= H=1F—H At 31 December 2018 4,855
R_E—+F+_HA=+—H At 31 December 2017 5,276
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19. &8 19. GOODWILL
TFHTT
HK$'000
5N COST

RZZE—+F—H—H At 1 January 2017 217,555

W e B B8 =) BT EE AR (BT 5E43(A)) Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 43 (A)) 219,417
fE N =% Exchange differences 2,188
R-_E—+tF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2017 439,160
fE 5 =58 Exchange differences (1,591)
R-E—NF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2018 437,569

RZZE—+ERA-+HB KEE
TKE —RBIEZFETZTruel
BBEIE - HEMNEA36,720,000E T
(8 & 7284,580,000/ 7T) ° [ U &
MEAZEE SR A219,417,0008
T BNl TRE RS L R RE
FERZARGER - F1BHELR

B 7E43 o

On 29 May 2017, the Group completed the True
Acquisition from an independent third party for a
cash consideration of US$36,720,000 (equivalent to
HK$284,580,000). The amount of goodwill arising as a
result of the acquisition was HK$219,417,000 and has
been allocated to operating fitness centres and providing
consultation services for fitness and health activities.

Details referred to note 43.
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20. BLEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

FEE efeR EREWE BE  G¥BE  EFEE  ERER MK g
Mining Club Product Franchise  Customer Development  Computer
right membership license ~ Trademark ~agreement relationship expenditure  software Total
Thn TR TR TEr  TEr  TER TR TEn TR
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
(note a) (note b)
(Wka)  (Wshd)
A4 CosT
RZF-t#-F-H At 1 January 2017 11,222 178 6,520 - - - - - 1800
EiEE Exchange differences 831 = 553 (599) (1,260) (112) 286 - (301)
WENBAASEL Avising on acquisition of subsidiaries - = - B45 1956 1753 - - 307585
hE Addition 2 L - = = . 6,555 2% 6,791
WZE—+EF-A=T—H  At31 December 2017 12,053 Vi 03 086 195316 1740 6,841 236 3309
EizE Exchange differences (603) = (401) = - = (757) 4 (1,765)
HERM Disposals and write off = = = = . < = (407) (407)
HE Additions = - = = = -8 175 12431
RZF-\ETZAZF—H 3! December 2018 11,450 s 6672 9876 195316 17422 18346 - 3360
B AMORTISATION
N=E-+5-f-H At1 January 2017 2,169 - 176 - - - - - 23
EizR Eichange differences 173 - 4 - - = - - 17
FEEMR Charge for the year 291 - 457 - 379 685 - - 5,231
RZS—tEFZA=T—H  At31 December 2017 263 - 677 _ 3,798 685 - - 7793
i3:53 Eichange differences (142) - (79) - - - 20 - (237)
FERAMR Charge for the year 299 - 457 - 6,511 483 612 -
RZE-NEFTZA=F—H  At31 December 2018 2,79 - 1,059 - 10,309 5,517 592 - 20,267
REE CARRYING VALUES
RS- N\ETZAZF—H 3! December 2018 8,660 8 SE13 9876 185007 11905 17,75 - 308
RZE—tE+-A=F—F  At31 December 2017 9420 8 630 9876 191518 16737 6,841 36 3430
B =% : Notes:
(@) ANEBECEHELGHPBEEE A (@)  The Group’s trademark has finite legal lives but is renewable

202

REHEARERAESR -EFERA
AEEERHETHENREEED -
It BEERERARGERAEREH -
RESERedRe R AFRELEER
HER - BERTEEE B EA
FHRAERER/LE -BMKLZ &
GFRESFERSEGNRBERAELRR
ERERER -
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upon expiry at minimal costs. The Directors are of the opinion
that the Group would renew the trademark continuously and
has the ability to do so. As a result, the trademark is considered
by the Directors as having indefinite useful lives because it
is expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The trademark will not be amortised until its useful lives are
determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired.
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20. B EE (®)
CENE))

(b)  ATruelk B E BT KT - AE B @True
Yogabk R HE R REHR B EL LR
X¥B2BREN BZE—+tFHA
Z+ N BRERBHZ30F - MTrue Yogatk &
BEAXMNREAEE - §AXN ZRFTE
BEAD RVSTEBERINRBE - RE
BT N\FE+-A=+—HLEEED

RIFREE U AS54,182,0008 T (=
—-+4F : 31,252,000 7T) KRS E WA
2,993,000 7t (ZZF—+tF : 2,074,000
BIT) °
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RO BILBERBERER AT B
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& A 104
e s 34

HE-Z—)\F+=A=+—HLLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

(b) Upon completion of the True Acquisition, the Group grants
and provides True Yoga Group with non-exclusive rights to
operate the franchise business in Taiwan for a term of 30
years commencing from 29 May 2017 and True Yoga Group
shall pay a monthly franchise fee. The monthly franchise fee
will be sub-divided as (i) royalty fee and (ii) service fee. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, royalty fee income and
service fee income of HK$54,182,000 (2017: HK$31,252,000)
and HK$2,993,000 (2017: HK$2,074,000), respectively, are
recognised.

Other than the club membership and trademark, which
have indefinite useful lives, the intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

periods:

Mining right 50 years
Product license 7 years
Franchise agreement 30 years
Customer relationship 5 years
Development expenditure 10 years
Computer software 3 years
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21.

204

BMEREFEERENML

R AR ZRE - 19tz
EmEAREMEESREMEARSELES
(RN

21. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purposes of impairment assessment of goodwill,
the carrying value of goodwill as detailed in note 19
have been allocated to two groups of CGUs, as follows:

5k
Goodwiill

—E-N\F —EF—+F

2018 2017

FTERT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000
SLEMIERFELERZ  Manufacturing and sales of prescription
fEEE M ([EBAAD) drugs and laboratory related products

("Unit A") 218,152 219,746
g MM 5 A Operating fitness centres and providing

R ([ B fuB)) consultation services for fitness and
health activities (“Unit B”) 219,417 219,414
437,569 439,160

AEEEEERE  REBEE-Z—N
ERZE—tFTA=1T—HILHF
B EREEEBERNZREELEN
BMERE LlReEEBM 2T
OB AEREFZHB BRI
T e

RFF G E20PT &t 2 B & E KR
ZRE FEENEECHEEAY
A E A OR R A8 7 M) 28 2 BB B3R
CELEM-
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Management of the Group determined that there were
no impairment in any of its CGUs containing goodwill
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above
CGUs and their principal underlying assumptions are
summarised below.

For the purposes of impairment assessment of intangible
assets and trademark of the Group as set out in note 20,
they are allocated to individual CGUs of Unit B that are
expected to generate future economic benefits.
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21. IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering a
five-year period, and discount rates for Unit A and Unit
B are 15% and 18.75% respectively (2017: 15% and
18.53% for Unit A and Unit B, respectively), determined
by valuers using Capital Assets Pricing Model. The value
in use calculation were determined by independent
valuers. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% for both
Unit A and Unit B (2017: 3% for both Unit A and Unit
B). These growth rates are based on the forecasts of
the relevant industries and do not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industries.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
included budgeted sales and gross margins and their
related cash inflows and outflows patterns, estimated
based on the units’ historical performance and the
management’s expectation of the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
recoverable amounts of Unit A and Unit B to fall below
their respective carrying amounts.
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22. A—EBELAT 2ER

22. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

—B-NE CZT—+F

2018 2017

THET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

REMKA L™ Cost of investment, unlisted 21,640 21,640
FE(G U BB 12 fE 1 Share of post-acquisition reserves (21,337) (8,633)
303 13,007

AEERBREARCE—BERAH
RASESTMKY 2 2ERMTER
BRG] - AN TA3A)FTIKRE - 2
BERMIZERER AR Z29% A
ER-ZFE—tFRA-+ILBARLASE
B o True YogaEBEHE A BN ELK
B G PO RIBRE S AR AR
e 2ERMIMIZRBER QG ZFBH
FIEAR -

The Group’s only associate at the end of the reporting
period is True Yoga Holdings Limited which was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. As disclosed in
note 43(A), 29% equity interest in True Yoga Holdings
Limited was acquired by the Group on 29 May 2017.
True Yoga Group is engaged in operating fitness centres
and providing consultation services for fitness and
health activities in Taiwan. Details of True Yoga Holdings
Limited is as follows:

ARERE
I LS Benk BREmER RAE ERRAER ITXE
Paid up Effective equity
Place of Place of registered interest attributable
Name of company registration operations  capital Voting power to the Group Principal activities
8-0\f  ZEFtE ZB-NE ZE4F
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
ERIBRARAT REES RE 165,245,003 & RELER
True Yoga Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Taiwan New Taiwan dollar 29 29 29 29 Investment holding
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22 A—HEBEATR 2R (&) 22. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

RiIpFBHM B RS EHERE @True
YogafR Bl 2 MG E R EHIIMT -

Summarised financial information in respect of True
Yoga Group prepared in accordance with HKFRSs is set

out below.
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
A Revenue 375,890 224,332
KEEBEEBLE2HEWZR#E  Loss and total comprehensive income
for the year (43,807) (29,768)
rEEELMAFEERR Loss and total comprehensive expense
ENi R GE for the year, attributable to the Group (12,704) (8,633)
2R B Dividends received - —
EMEBEE Non-current assets 151,839 186,501
mENEE Current assets 83,392 120,895
ERMBAE Non-current liabilities (10,571) (49,935)
mEE & Current liabilities (223,615) (212,609)
1,045 44,852
Eﬁiﬁ/\ NAZEm Reconciliation to the carrying amount of
€ ,\ZLTEE : interest in the associate:
BtE N AR A A Net assets attributable to the equity
FEE holders of the associate 1,045 44,852
AREE NS AR Z AR  Proportion of the Group's ownership
FE 2 b 31 interest in the associate 299% 29%
REBPEZ NF 2z 2 Net assets of the Group's interest
FEE in the associate 303 13,007
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23.

208

R—EEeEQRZER 23. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRE KA Cost of investment 74,196 36,855
FE (G U BE 12 R 1 Share of post-acquisition reserves (28,821) (15,762)
45,375 21,093

AEERBEFFERE—FZEAAFE=
(TMAADETLEBEBRENRER
& o BIEZHE ASEHEEAKXR
THIZEBREAGRAR ([RED -
ZHAELTBABA 2HEHIEZHESE
FER(ERFER]) - RRELFH
Apros Therapeutics, Inc. ([Apros] -
—EREEZFRE REFREN AR
ERFMEKLZZAT]) 281.48% (=
T—+F :68.74%) #Ez  AprosE N
HEREER NS TFEBEMNRE - R
E-NE+-_A=+—08 XEEKR
#9,500,0003 JT (#8& 774,196,000
Br) (ZZ —+4F : 4,750,000 ¢
(#8 % # 36,855,000 7T)) REHE
K-AMANBREBAGHDEERS
FEFZRENXR299.99% (ZF — + 4 :
99.99% )z - WEB—EIEEEMH
BARARRE AREE RERBS I 5
HWERERE -

RIERTEAZEEWE BREE
ARREREAFERZRE  EZEE
BN (ANZps) A G RRE AN IEE
BB ZIRER - KEEEBEALR
mEAE ML EREREE BRE
Bl#EB99.99%EH Z A& AR °

& B ¥ B Al 52 B8250,000% 2= B A%
MZEERE  ZEEE—&TE - K
EE AR BITEIEGIRE - EIFER
ROIEEBHRMBFEER (22—
TENHAERB)  K(i)Aprosit £ &1t
AR EFEIMER 2REER
PERFTTIE - EER A REBEEEL
BEITTERK -
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The Group entered into a general partner investment
and shareholders agreement with an individual third
party (the “Individual”) in previous years. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Group and the Individual jointly
controlled Taisheng Investment Co., Ltd. (“Taisheng”),
and Taisheng is the general partner and in turns has
full control over Tongfang Konta Capital, L.P. (“Konta
Capital”), a partnership, which holds 81.48% (2017:
68.74%) equity interests of Apros Therapeutics, Inc.
("Apros”), a company duly incorporated under the laws
of Delaware, the United States of America. Apros is
engaged in medical research with a focus in immunology
and small molecule. As at 31 December 2018, the Group
invested US$9,500,000 (equivalent to HK$74,196,000)
(2017: US$4,750,000 (equivalent to HK$36,855,000))
in Konta Capital and, accordingly, directly held 99.99%
(2017: 99.99%) of Konta Capital as a limited partner
and also provided management services to Konta
Capital via a non-wholly owned subsidiary in return for
management fee.

Based on the partnership agreements of Konta Capital,
the limited partner does not have any voting rights
in Konta Capital, and only the general partner (i.e.
Taisheng) has the voting power to control the relevant
activities of Konta Capital. Considering Taisheng is only
a jointly controlled company, Konta Capital is therefore
considered as a 99.99% joint venture of the Group.

The Group has an option to subscribe for 250,000 shares
of Taisheng, which by then the Group could exercise
control over Taisheng. The option shall be exercisable
at any time after the earlier of (i) the fourth anniversary
of the date of investment (i.e. 5 August 2020) and (ii)
the registration of a patent for a lead compound by
Apros. In the opinion of the Directors, the value of the
subscription option is insignificant.
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23. R—EEELRZEE @) 23. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)
%%EUE ZIEEBIRF AR E B R B The Directors consider that the investment will enhance
BRE N BEEEE L 2 A K Al E the research and innovation capability of the Group
BEN in the development of medical and pharmaceutical
products.
REBFEELE QA ZFFBHEINWNOT : Particulars of the Group’s major joint venture is as
follows:
HREER
B/ 4% KREEL
ARER G AR sy ifEx Rirk ERBRxER TERE
Paid up ordinary
share capital/ Effective equity
Place of Place of paid up interest attributable
Name of company incorporation operation registered capital Voting power to the Group Principal activities
Z§-\F RtE ZR-NE CE4F
2018 2017 2018 217
% % % %
REER REEs XH2ATE  100%% RERR
Konta Capital Cayman lslands The United States ~ US$100 50 50 99.99 99.99 Investment holding
of America

REBEVEREENREBAAR
AeZERAREKBAR ([REFEER
KB 2MBERBEERILT

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Company’s joint venture and its subsidiary (“Konta
Capital Group”) prepared in accordance with HKFRSs is
set out below.

—B-NE —E2—+F
2018 2017
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B E E Current assets 22,882 29,856
ERBEE Non-current assets 11,859 -
mEAE Current liabilities 731 (15,942)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities - -
JE o A% A — B Al Non-controlling interests — deficit 11,365 7,179
—Z— \fF£ £ 3R Annual Report 2018 209
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23.

24,

210

R—EBEeEg N RS #) 23. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)
—E-N\F ZE—+F
2018 2017
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEEREGEERE The above amounts of assets and liabilities
A T&IR : include the following:
HENREEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22,480 14,058
BB E (TEIEENM  Curent finandal liabilities
B 5538 K E M FE A 3B (excluding trade and
DA K BEES) other payables and provision) 731 15,942
WA Revenue _ _
e Depreciation — (1,109)
RRRIREEGER Loss attributable to owners of the Company (13,059) (11,666)
RREXRMBARZ Loss attributable to non-controlling interests
IEEREREGEE of Konta Capital’s subsidiary (4,186) (5,276)
KEEEE Loss for the year (17,245) (16,942)
LB R B R ERAR S B RS R NPT R Reconciliation of the above financial information to the
RRAEREASE 2 EREAEE 2 carrying amount of the interest in Konta Capital Group
AR - recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
TERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREAEB ZFEE Net assets of Konta Capital Group 45,375 21,093
AEBERERFREAE Proportion of the Group's ownership
LB R interest in Konta Capital Group 99.99% 99.99%
AEBREREASE Carrying amount of the Group's interest in
RS 5 Konta Capital Group 45,375 21,093
FIEHEW = 24. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
ERBLURFPEZEZKYE - The balance represented completed properties located in

the PRC.
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25. 78 25. INVENTORIES
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERETIIER : Inventories consist of the following:
Fx Raw materials 51,187 28,276
TR Work in progress 18,834 16,155
ZLRK oh Finished goods 44,882 52,970
114,903 97,401
REEER - FEMKZA1,235,822,000 At the end of the reporting period, cost of inventories
BT (ZF —+F :825,641,000% of HK$1,235,822,000 (2017: HK$825,641,000) are
T HERA/X A - recognised as expenses.
26. EWE 5 MIE 26. TRADE RECEIVABLES
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
FET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e E B IE Trade receivables
—Em kR — goods and services 708,599 553,039
B EE IR EE Less: Allowance for credit losses (22,008) (20,368)
JEWE 5 R IB %5 Total trade receivables 686,591 532,671
RMEHRENZEZAHZS 2RI The aged analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance
B H53E (HKREEEEEE) 2 Rk for credit losses, is presented based on the invoice date
DT ¢ at the end of the reporting period as follows:
—EB-NE CZZE—+F
2018 2017
FE T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
0£90K 0 to 90 days 296,537 254,138
91E 180K 91 to 180 days 197,311 197,028
181E365K 181 to 365 days 181,889 74,446
HBid1F Over 1 year 10,854 7,059
686,591 532,671
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26.

212

BREZREARBRERE &)

RZE—N\F+-_A=+—H B¥%
Z A% 5145,210,0008 T (=
—+4% : 131,913,000 7T) ' EANX
EERARREERKESHRIEZA -
AEERREAREEERREZ SR
YEEEB AEBEZHEEREE
ZEERHARR B AR —4F o

R-—_ZE—N\EFE+=-_A=+—H ' K&
BErRKESFELEHBIENRRER
HE @M A B ET IR AEEE
(R |EEBHR) 2 BIERK - &
T 4258 /354,842,00008 7T - % S8
R4S AR » 12,956,000 7T #81 ER90
RKFA L MARBEBEEBEEFZE
RS RIEREE  AJWEZERE
o MU EKREAEX -

R-ZT—+F+-_fF=+—8 &
BIREEAN BIEE AR R7,059,000/8
T2 ERBERERKEZHEA  %F
RN EBRKESFRIBAZEPLE
EFE: (BRERBEENK RE
3R BREZRERE DT RER
FzEBBR) BFE AEELE
IR EERT A EMERM -

EEHBERREZERESHIBZE
BaommT

26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, total bills received amounting
to HK$145,210,000 (2017: HK$131,913,000) are held by
the Group for future settlement of trade receivables. The
Group continues to recognise their full carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period. All bills received by
the Group are with a maturity period of less than one
year.

At 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$54,842,000 which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as it is not considered as default. Out of
those past due balances, HK$12,956,000 has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
since these balances could be recovered based on the
repayment history and the current creditworthiness of
these customers.

At 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for
credit losses are individually impaired trade receivables
with an aggregate balance of HK$7,059,000 which
was assessed after considering the credit history of the
customers, including default or delay in settlement,
subsequent settlements, aging analysis of trade
receivables and the business relationship with the
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

—E—4F
2017
FHET
HK$'000

HEiE1F

Over 1 year 7,059
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26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Movement in the allowance for credit losses:

—E—+F

2017

FHET

HK$'000

—H—H 1 January 34,562
PE i =58 Exchange differences 2,768
LW IEER 2R EE B Impairment losses recognised on receivables 4,422
ERE X B R IAM S 2 518 Amounts written off as uncollectible (19,658)
FRWE 2z KB Amounts recovered during the year (1,726)
+=-—RA=+—H 31 December 20,368

E-FT-\F+-A=+—HBLF
- BE SRIEZ BET AT ER
A HiEE49 ©

BHRA

AEERNSAEASELAERRZ
FHLZEFPARNELHEE 2RE
HEMSE

BRI AR EREE S KA
MR IEE R E M2 K e & R
BHEERRERAZ —ED - FA -
REZERBERIERN KSR
2,402,0008 7T © EALK AN 2 F 44
Rl A E AR AN Y R E - TAHT
BR_ZE—NF+_A=+—HE—
FARRBZEHNKAEDEARSDE
g o

HARBREERZEERFEHN S —
FHUARN - AIAREERBERER
TERBISEHESRE AN AR
BEKAREERERRMAX

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note
49.

27. CONTRACT COSTS

The Group incurred incremental sales commission to
employees in connection with obtaining contracts with
customers for use of fi